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Group Management Report

CORPORATE DEVELOPMENT 2006

As a globally present research-based biotechnology company, MorphoSys operates in an ever-
changing environment that presents both opportunities and challenges for its business. A strong
fundamental demand for new therapeutics and research tools underpins the Company’s future
growth prospects. With Group revenues of € 33.0 million and an operating profit of € 6.2 mil-
lion, MorphoSys surpassed its financial goals set at the beginning of the year 2006. This posi-
tive development was attributable, first and foremost, to the strong demand for MorphoSys's
proprietary antibody technology HUCAL, as well as the industry-wide need for therapeutic anti-
bodies and research tools.

The MorphoSys Group operates in two corporate segments, with headquarters based in Martins-
ried, near Munich, Germany. The corporate segments are responsible for business operations
and represent the segments required for the purpeses of International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS).

THERAPEUTIC ANTIBCDIES SEGMENT

The Therapeutic Antibodies segment comprises MorphoSys's activities in the area of therapeu-
tic antibodies, which inctudes its therapeutic antibody cellaborations with pharmaceutical and
biotechnology companies, as well as its proprietary antibody development programs. In 2006,
MorphoSys was able to sign new partnerships with Daiichi Sankyo, OncoMed, and Schering-
Plough, and existing partnerships with Novartis, Pfizer, and Roche were expanded. After Bayer AG’s
acquisition of Schering AG, the collaborations with the two companies were consolidated under
the existing contract with Schering AG. At the beginning of 2006, the second HuCAL anti-
body entered phase | clinical trials, and the Company ended the year with 43 active partnered
therapeutic antibody programs. The proprietary antibody programs MOR103 and MOR202 are
well on track. For MOR202, a formal preclinical development candidate was selected hy the
end of 2006, and for MOR 103, MorphoSys expects to file for an IND (investigational new drug}
in the second half of 2007. Total revenues of the Therapeutic Antibodies segment increased by
19% to € 34.7 million, thus representing 65% of total Company revenues.




03 ——

ABD — RESEARCH ANTIBODIES SEGMENT

In 2006, MorphoSys continued to build its Research Antibodies business segment, or AbD,

by acquiring the UK- and US-based Serotec Group. The segment comprises the former brands
“Antibodies by Design”, “Biogenesis”, and “Serotec”. During 2006, all brands were renamed
and all products of the segment are now marketed under Abl} - Antibodies Direct. AbD is active
in the field of research antibodies, and distributes research antibodies through a comprehensive
sales catalog, Furthermore, AbD offers custom monoclonal antibodies, and provides contract
manufacturing services. The Research Antibodies segment coniributed revenues of € 18.3 mil-
lion, representing about 35% of total Company revenues,

MANAGEMENT OF THE GROUP

MorphoSys provides its proprietary antibody technology HuCAL for national and international
customers for therapeutic, research and diagnostic applications. The Therapeutic Antibodies seg-
ment operates under the Company’s name MorphoSys, the Research Antibodies segment under
the brand name AhD — Antibodies Direct. The Company operates globally and is represented
with offices in Germany, in the UK and the United States as well as in Norway and in France. Fur-
thermore, MorphoSys has established a distribution network with mare than 100 distributors, to
serve customers in more than 70 countries, including all major economic regions.

MorphoSys has a dual management and supervisory structure. The Group is managed by the
Management Board. The Supervisory Board advises the Management Board and monitors its
management activities. The Management Board is responsible for all operational activities of
hoth segments of the Company. The subsidiaries are managed hy managing directors, who
report to the Management Board of MorphoSys AG.

MAGCRGECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT IN 2006

The world economy continued its growth track in 2006. World gross domestic product {GDF})
increased by approximately 5%, compared with about 4% in 2005. In 2006, economic growth
focused on the rapidly developing countries of Asia, Latin America as well as Central and East-
ern Europe. In the developed industrial nations, economic conditions remained positive. The
exchange rate of the US dollar and the euro remained largely stable, with an upwards trend for
the euro towards the end of the year. By contrast, energy and raw material prices again rose sharply.
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Growth rates in the United States slowed slightly during the year with economic growth in Q3
2006 being the towest since 2003. In the United States, signs of inflationary pressures and
labor market tensions as well as higher interest rates, rising gasoline prices and signs of weaken-
ing in the property sector were offset hy continued strong consumer spending,

The economy in the Eurozone is experiencing the strengest upturn since the year 2000. In 2006,
growth in the Eurozone was above its multi-year average at around 2.5%. The German GDP
grew by approximately 2.5% in 2006, the strongest rate in five years. As a result of the economic
upswing, unemployment in Germany has fallen below the 10% threshold for the first time in
several vears.

The Asian economic region again experienced sustained growth during 2008. The Chinese
economy grew by approximately 11 %, driven by high exports and a strong rise in capital
spending. [n Japan, the moderate upward trend continued thanks to an increase in domestic
demand.

DEVELOPMENT WITHIN THE PHARMACEUTICAL AND BIOTECHNCOLOGY SECTOR

Globai pharma growth rate in the sector has slowed significantly during the last years, but
according to IMS Health, future growth rates are expected to stabilize at 5% to 8% until 2010.
During 2006, pharmaceutical companies faced several indusiry challenges, including pipeline
and pricing pressure, government regulations, major blockbuster drugs such as the cholesterol-
lowering drug Zocor® {Merck & Co.) and anti-nausea drug Zofran® (GlaxoSmithKline) going
off patent, and the appearance of biosimilars on the horizon, Additionally, the FDA continued
its cautious stance, adding risk warnings and low number of approvals. Nevertheless, there
were also positive developments. European authorities have speeded up the approval procedures,
and it is widely hoped that the recent appointment of a new FDA commissioner will result in
shorter approval time and less risk aversion. Additienally, several product approvals and the
label extensions of successful drugs such as Avastin® and Herceptin® had a positive impact on
the industry.
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To maintain growth rates, pharmaceutical companies are under pressure to acquire innovative
products and technologies, resulting in increased M&A activity between pharmaceutical and
biotechnology companies. Abbott Laboratories’ acquisition of Kos Pharmaceuticals for approxi-
mately US$ 3.7 hillion is ene example of this trend, the primary motive for the transaction be-
ing Abhott’s goal of obtaining access to the cholesterel drug market. Other examples in 2006 in-
clude Pfizer's acquisition of PowderMed to strengthen the company’s entrance into the vaccine
market, and Merck & Co.’s purchase of Sirna Therapeutics to get access to RNAI, a technology
for the regulation of gene activity. M&A activity in the hiopharmaceutical industry often comes
in waves based on the changing strategic needs of pharmaceutical companies and the develop-
ments in the capital markets for biotechnology companies. [n contrast to the recent past, when
pharmaceutical companies were predominantly interested in license agreements and partner-
ships, teday acquisitions appear to have greater strategic importance.

Antibody- and protein-based technologies and companies have been particularly scught after.
The vear 2006 saw a further decreasing of competition in the antibody industry, This was pre-
dominantly atiributable to the acquisition of two main competitors of MorphoSys, namely the
acquisition of Abgenix by Amgen at the end of 2005, and the takeover of Cambridge Antibody
Technology (CAT) by AstraZeneca in May 20046. In addition, Merck & Co. announced the acqui-
sition of two antibody technology companies, Abmaxis and GlycoFi, and Novartis beught NeuTec
Pharma, a biotechnology company developing antibodies for infectious diseases. Finally, in Sep-
tember 2006, Amgen acquired Avidia, a privately held biopharmaceutical company that dis-
covers and develops a new ¢lass of human therapeutics known as Avimer™ proteins.

At the end of 2006, 20 therapeutic antibodies were approved. In June 2006, Tysabri®, marketed
by Biogen Idec and Elan, was reintroduced as a monotherapy treatment for relapsing forms of
multiple sclerosis {MS). Tysabri® had been recalled in 2005 after cases of rare and fatal neuro-
logical disease occurred in connection with the use of the drug. In June 2004, Lucentis® (Genen-
tech) received approval for the treatment of neovascular (wet) age-related macular degeneration
(AMD). And in September 2006, Amgen’s Vectibix™, developed hy Abgenix to treat metastatic
colorectal cancer, was approved by the FDA, thus becoming the 20th antibody drug on the market.
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REVENUE SPLIT {in %)

® Europe & Asia

* North America

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

REVENUES

In the fiscal year 2006, revenues increased by 38 % to € 53.0 millien year-on-year (2005; € 33.5 mil-
lion). Reasons for the increase included revenues arising from extended deals, the inclusion of
success-based payments from existing collaborations, as well as the inclusion of Serotec Group
revenues, contributing 23 % of total revenues. Revenues arising from the Therapeutic Antibodies
segment accounted for 65% or € 34.7 million of total revenues, while the Ab[} segment generated
35% (€ 18.3 million) of the total. Total Company organic growth amounted to 22 % compared to
the same period in 2005. Approximately 42 % of total Group revenues resulted from MorphoSys’s
three largest atliances with Novartis, Centocor and Roche (2005: 64 % from Novartis, Centocor
and Schering). Geographically, 62 % of MorphoSys’s commercial revenues were generated with
biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies located in Europe and Asia, compared to 38% in
North America (see also Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements — section 2). This
compares {0 36% and 42 % respectively, in the year 2005,

56% a2y
2005 ™~ ]
62 % 38%
2006 | s ——— 3
0 10 20 0 40 50 60 70 80 90 100

THERAPEUTIC ANTIBODIES SEGMENT

The Therapeutic Antibedies segment comprises all collaborations with a strong therapeutic
and licensing aspect to them, In 2006, this segment generated its revenues with the following
antibody collaberations: Bayer, Boehringer Ingelheim, Bristol-Myers Squibh, Centocor (Johnson
& Johnson}, Daiichi Sankyo, Eli Lilly, F. Hoffmann-La Roche, ImmunoGen, Merck & Co., Novartis,
Novoplant, OncoMed, Pfizer, Schering, Schering-Plough, and Shionogi. The Therapeutic Anti-
bodies segment also includes all activities in the area of proprietary product development. [ts total
revenues enclose € 27.2 million funded research and paid license fees, as well as € 7.5 million
success-based payments {which include clinical milestones).

ANTIBODIES DIRECT - ABD SEGMENT

The AbD segment, embracing the Serotec Group, MorphoSys's Antibodies by Design unit and
the Biogenesis Group, generated 35% (€ 18.3 million) of total revenues. The Serotec Group, new-
ly acquired in January 2006, contributed € 12.3 million in revenues, or 67 % of the total segment
revenues. The Group also recorded grant revenues of € 0.2 miilion {2005: € 0.4 million} during
the reporting period.

As of December 31, 2006, orders in the amount of € 2.5 million were classified as back orders
in the segment.
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OPERATING EXPENSES

In the fiscal year 2006, operating expenses increased by 72% to € 46.9 million (2005 € 27.3
million), with operating profit remaining almost unchanged at € 6.2 million (2005: € 6.2 mil-
lion). The total increase in operating expenses of € 19.6 million was mainly due to the inclusion
of the Serotec Group in the consolidated accounts with an impact of € 13.8 million, due to higher
personnel-related costs in conjunction with new collaborations, and increased expenses for
proprietary product development.

Stock-based compensation expenses amounting to € 1,2 million are embedded in cost of goods
sold, sales, general and administrative expenses as well as research and development expenses,
and changed little in comparison to the previous year, remaining as a non-cash charge.

Applying IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” under [FRS accounting, a purchase price allocation
(PPA) is currently carried out for the Serotec acquisition. The resulting preliminary values were
retroactively recognized to the purchase date, and amortization as well as depreciation of assets
identified were included in total operating expenses during the year 2006. Total PPA effects on
operating profit including the Serotec acquisition amounted to € 1.5 million (2005: € 1.0 million).

COST OF GOODS SOLD (COGS)

COGS is composed of the AbD segment’s cost of goods seld during the vear 2006 and includes
the amortization of assets identified in connection with the Biogenesis and Serotec PPAs. In 2006,
COGS rose significantly to € 8.0 million compared to € 2.5 million in the year 2003, which re-
sulted mainly from the € 5.5 million inclusion of Serotec COGS in the consolidated Group accounts
and the inclusion of € 0.7 million depreciation of inventories resulting from the purchase price
allocation exercise in conjunction with acquired companies.
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COST BY EXPENDITURE TYPE

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R&D) EXPENSES

In 2006, research and development expenses increased by € 3.5 million to € 17.5 million (2005:
€ 14.0 million). This was mainly the result of expenses for product and technology development
amounting to € 3.0 million. The impact on R&D through the amortization of intangibles of
acquired companies amounted to € 0.8 million.

SALES, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE (S, G&A) EXPENSES

Sales, general and administrative expenses amounted to € 21.4 million compared to € 10.8 mil-
Yion in the previous vear. The increase is mainly derived from the inclusion of the Serotec Group
in the amount of € 8.3 million, higher S,G&A personnel costs at MorphoSys AG in Munich, and

integration costs associated with acquired companies.

COST BY EXPENDITURE TYPE

For the year 2006, personnel costs {excluding expenses arising from stock-based compensation)
amounted to € 18.1 million {2005: € 10.8 million) or 39% of total operating expenses, thus rep-
resenting the largest cost block within operating expenses in the year 2006. The higher person-
nel costs arose mainly from the increased head count resulting from the inclusion of Serotec Lid.
and its affiliates and from the Group’s expanded overall operational activity.

External services, representing the second-largest cost block by cost type and mainly consist-
ing of marketing expenses, legal costs, costs for tax, auditing and accounting as well as general
consulting, amounted to € 6.1 million {2005: € 2.9 million) or {3% of total operating expenses
in 2006. Most heavily impacting these coests in 2006 were proprietary drug development and
the inclusion of marketing costs from the Serotec Group.

Infrastructure costs included rent costs as well as depreciation of property and equipment and
impacted operating expenses by € 5.9 million {2005: € 3.0 miilion) or [3% in 2006. Increased

infrastructure costs were primarily the result of the inclusion of the acquired Serotec Group of
companies. The Company leases for facilities on a group level amounted to € 1.7 million and

€ 0.9 million for the full years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 respectively.

Personnel Cost

Cost for External Services

Infrastructure Cost

Others




NGN-OPERATING ITEMS {NON-TAX)

Non-operating expenses excluding taxes amounted to € 0.9 million compared to hon-operating
expenses of € 1.0 million in the year 2005. Losses on foreign exchange totaled € 1.2 million
and resulted mainly from contracis with commercial partners who share such foreign gains
and losses. Bank fees and interest expenses (€ 0.3 million) were more than offset by gains from
available-for-sale securities (€ 0.7 million).

TAXES

Income tax expenses of € 1.2 million were partly offset by amortization of deferred tax liabili-

ties resulting from the Biogenesis and Serotec PPAS (€ 0.5 million). Furthermore, tax expenses
comprised withhalding tax (€ 0.2 million) retained from payments made by foreign customers.

As a result of the forecast for taxable income in 2007, a deferred tax asset on tax loss carry-
forwards has been capitalized, which further reduced tax expenses by € 1.2 million.

OQPERATING PROFIT/NET INCOME

For the full fiscal year 2006, Group operating profit remained almost unchanged at € 6.2 mil-
lion compared to 2005. Earnings before interest and taxes {EBIT) amounted to € 5.4 million,
compared to an EBIT of € 5.3 million in the same period of the previous year. Earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) amounted to € 10.3 million compared
to € 8.6 million in the previous year.

A nel income after taxes of € 6.0 million was achieved for the year 2006, compared to € 4.7 mil-
lion in the same period of 2005. The resulting basic net profit per share for 2006 amounted to
€ 0.94 {2005: € 0.84).

LIGUIDITY/CASH FLOWS

Cash flow from operations amounted to € 16.3 million in 2006 (2005: € 4.4 million). The Com-
pany’s total cash flow was impacted by MorphoSys's successful private placement offering in
March 2006, resulting in a total cash inflow from financing activities of € 19.6 million {2005
¢ 18.4 million}. Net cash used in investing activities was primarily impacted by the acquisition
of Serotec in January 2006 (€ 21.2 million), and amounted to a total of € 36,2 million (2005:

€ 31.4 million).

ASSETS

Total assets increased by € 47.7 million to € 127.8 million in the year 2006, compared to

€ 80.1 million in the year 2005. This was primarily a result of the acquisition of the Seratec Group's
assets, including acquired goodwill in the amount of € 30.2 million, and due to cash inflows from
a capital increase and cash generated from operations. For a more detailed split of the impact of
the Serotec acquisition, see also Notes to the Consalidated Financial Statements — section 11.
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TOTAL ASSETS (in million €)*

» Cash Equivatents and
Available-for-Sale
Financisl Assets

® Accounts Receivable
» intangibles

o Goodwill

o Deferred Tax Asset

Qther Assets

The value of inventories at year-end 2006 has sharply increased from € 0.5 million to € 3.5 mil-
lion, reflecting the higher stocks through the acquisition of the Serotec Group. Many research anti-
bodies are held in stock, to allow immexiately shipping upon ordering by the customers.

At the end of 2006, MorphoSys's accounts receivable increased by € 0.4 million to € 3.7 million
(2005: £ 3.3 million).

With the restructuring and concentration of almost all US activities as well as UK activities of
the AbD segment in Raleigh, North Carolina, USA, and Oxford, UK. land and building owned
by the Company in New Hampshire, USA, as well as Oxford, UK, are held for sale and have
been reclassified in the amount of € 0.7 miltion from non-current assets to current assets,
accordingly.

On December 31, 2006, the Company held € 66.0 million in cash, cash equivalents and avail-
able-for-sale financial assets, compared to a balance at year-end 2005 of € 53.6 million.

53.6 3.3 124 41 6.6

2008 “_:
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* Differences due 1o rounding up/down, see consolidated balance sheets

LIABILITIES
In the fiscal year 2006, current liabilities increased by €7.3 million to € 18.3 million from

€ 11.0 million at the end of 2005. This change primarily arose from the increase of accounts
payable by € 6.2 million to € 10.5 million {2005: €4.3 million) and was mainly a result of the
inclusion of the Serotec entities into the consolidated financial statements as well as from in-
creased operational activity involving higher short-term accruals. The growth in non-current
liabilities was significantly impacted by the rise of non-current deferred revenues by € 2.5 million
due to payments arising from new coniracts signed in 2005 and 2006, in addition to an increase
in deferred tax liability in combination with the Company’s Serotec PPA exercise.




LIABILITIES (in million €)”
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* Differences due to rounding up/down, see consolidated balance sheets

EQUITY
Total stockholders’ equity amounted to € 100.1 million on December 31, 2006, or an equity ratio
of 78%, compared to € 64.0 million on December 31, 2005.

As of December 31, 2006, the total number of shares issued amounted to 6,715,322, of which
6,686,160 were outstanding, compared to 6,025,863 and 5,996,701 on December 31, 2005,
respectively.

The increase in 2006 stockholders’ equity compared to the prior year arose largely from the
issuance of 208,560 new shares following a capital increase as consideration for the Serotec
acquisition. The issuance of 384,338 shares stemming from the capital increase against cash
successfully placed in March 2006 also contribuied to the higher number of total shares. An
additional increase of 96,561 shares resulted from the conversion of bonds issued to employees
as well as exercised options. Furthermore, the grant of new stock options impacting equity
amounted to € 1.2 million.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
In the fiscal year 2006, MorphoSys's investment in preperty, plant and equipment amounted to
€ 3.5 millien, resulting in an increase of € 2.9 million compared to the same period of the prior
year. Concentrating the Group’s UK activities into one new UK headquarters in Oxford contrib-
uted € 1.2 million to the same. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment for 2006 accounted
for €1.5 million, compared to € 0.9 million in 2005. The increase was mainly due to an addition-
al depreciation of € 0.5 million recognized as a result of the depreciation of stock in connection
with the PPA exercises of the Serotec acquisition. In 2006, the Company invested € 0.4 million
in intangible asseis. Amortization of intangibles amounted to € 3.4 million and increased by

€ 0.7 miltion year on year, mainly due to the amortization of intangible assets acquired in the
Serotec deal.
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FINANCING

During 2006, two capital increases were carried out. As part of the acquisition of the Serotec
Group in January 2006, one-third of the purchase price was paid by means of a capital increase
against contribution in kind. The 208,560 new shares from the capital increase {3.5% of the
share capital) went to the former owners of the Serotec Group and are subject to a graded hold-
ing pertod.

In March 2006, MorphoSys successfully placed 384,338 shares {6.5% of the share capital) in
a private placement to international institutional investors at a price of € 44.50 per share. The
issue was oversubscribed several times. The Company raised gross proceeds of approximately
€ 17.1 million. The proceeds from the cash capital increase are intended to be used for general
purposes, including further acquisitions in the field of research antibodies.

SUBSIDIARIES/CORPORATE ACQUISITIONS/DIVESTITURES

ACQUISITION OF THE SEROTEC GROUP

In January 2006, MorphoSys’s Research Antibodies segment was further sirengthened through
the acquisition of the Serotec Group. The acquisition of Serotec, a renowned and internationally
active supplier of research antibodies, more than tripled MorphoSys’s existing Research Anti-
bodies segment revenues and established the Company as one of the leading suppliers of re-
search antibodies and antibody research technologies in Europe. Serotec provides MorphoSys
with a strong distribution network including subsidiaries and sales offices in the United States
and in the United Kingdom as well as in Germany, France and Scandinavia. Serotec (Serotec Ltd.,
Serotec, [nc., Serotec GmbH and Oxford Biotech Lid.) has hecome a wholly owned subsidiary

of MorphoSys AG and is being integrated within MorphoSys’s existing Research Antibodies
segment represented at that time by the Biogenesis and Antibodies by Design brands.

The purchase price of approximately £ 20 millien (roughly € 29.3 million) has been paid via
approximately £ 14 million {roughly € 20.5 miilion) cash and through the issuance of 208,560
new MorphoSys shares from a capital increase against contribution in kind.

INTEGRATION .

During 2006, the newly acquired Serotec Group was integrated in MorphoSys's existing Re-
search Antibodies segment. All products were combined in one sales catalog, and all offerings
and marketing activities have been consolidated. The existing websites were integrated, and
will be further expanded as an e-commerce platform.

In August, a new US office in the technology cluster Research Triangle Region near Raleigh,
North Carolina, USA, was opened. The new 500-square-meter facility will provide additional
space for new staff, increased stock levels for the expanded product range, and the expansion
of sales for the custom menoclonal antibodies provided by AbD. All US activities of the AbD
segment were concentrated in Raleigh, but another sales representation was kept in Brentwood,
New Hampshire, USA.
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By the end of 2006, all UK-based activities of AbD were centralized in a new building in Oxford,
UK. The 2,200-square-meter facility acts as new UK headquarters for the MorphoSys Group of
companies.

For 2007, a streamlining of corporate structure in order to increase administrative efficiency is
planned.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

Customer satisfaction determines MorphoSys's success. We strive to establish long-term part-
nerships and customer relationships, bringing lasting success to both sides. [n the Therapeutic
Antibodies segment, MorphoSys has shown an outstanding track record in establishing and
expanding existing partnerships over the years, and more recently also in the AbD segment.

THERAPEUTIC ANTIBODIES SEGMENT

In 2006, the Company expanded several existing partnerships and signed new collaborations
in the Therapeutic Antibodies segment. The following partnerships were either established or
expanded in the 2006 fiscal year (in alphabetical order}. For a detailed description of other
partnerships, please refer to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements — section 25.

DAICHI SANKYQ - SECOND PARTNERSHIP IN JAPAN
In March 2006, MorphoSys announced a license agreement and therapeutic antibody collabo-
ration with Japan’s pharmaceutical group Daiichi Sankyo for an initial two-year term with the
option of an extension of up to three more years. For the Company, it is the second commercial
partnership with a top 10 pbarmaceuticat company in Japan. MorphoSys's HuCAL GOLE
tibrary was installed at Daiichi Sankyo’s research site in Tokyo.

Daiichi Sankyo committed to start one therapeutic antibody program with MorphoSys and
received an option for further programs. MorphoSys will apply its proprietary HuCAL GOLD
technology to generate antibodies against a target provided by Daiichi Sankyo. Subsequently,
Daiichi Sankyo will be respensible for preclinical and clinical development as well as the
ensuing marketing of resulting products. If extended beyond the initial two-year peried, the
contract provides Daiichi Sankyo with access to additional MorphoSys capabilities, such as
target validation, antibody optimization and preclinical development. Such an extension would
trigger an additional up-front payment and result in increased research funding for MorphoSys.
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NOVARTIS - LARGEST ALLIANGE FURTHER EXPANDED

In June 2004, MorphaSys announced an expansion of its existing collaboration with Navartis.
The collaboration, which is currently MorphoSys's largest partnership, will now go through May
2011. Novartis committed itself to increase the number of new therapeutic antibody projects an-
nually - resulting in increased levels of Novartis's funding for research and development at
MorphoSys. In addition, Novartis will have the option to gain access to the MorphoSys HuCAL
GOLD library at an additional research site and will have access to the newly developed RapMAT
quick-affinity optimization technology at the HuCAL library installation sites for optimization of
non-therapeutic antibodies. Furthermore, the agreement also provides for increased annual
license fees, with commercial license fees, research and developmental milestones, and roval-
ties on marketed antibody products remaining unchanged. The non-exclusive option on inter-
nalization of the entire MorphoSys HuCAL technology platform, offered to Novartis under the
terms of the initial collaboration in 2004, remains in place.

ONCOMED PHARMACEUTICALS - UNIQUE APPROACH IN CANCER THERAPY

The US-based biopharmaceutical company OncoMed Pharmaceuticals, Inc., has acquired

a license to use MorphoSys’s HuCAL technology in the research and development of human
therapeutic antibodies for the treatment of varicus cancers, including breast, lung, colon
and prostate cancer by targeting cancer stem cells. The two-year contract includes an option
for OncoMed to develop HuCA L-derived therapeutic antibodies. The agreement includes an
up-front payment and annual user fees.

PFIZER - EXPANSION DOUBLES POTENTIAL DEAL YOLUME

[n December 2006, MorphoSys anncunced an early expansion of its collaboration with Pfizer
until the end of 2011. Under the extended agreement, Pfizer has the option to begin new thera-
peutic antibody projects with MorphoSys resulting in an increased level of programs to be
performed within the collaboration. As a result, the potential value for MorphoSys in research
funding and potential developmental milestone payments increased to more than US$ 100
millien, not including royalities. Additionally, the extension triggered a one-off payment from
Pfizer to MorphoSys.

SCHERING-PLOUGH - INCREASED MARKET SHARE AMONG BIG PHARMA

In May 2006, MorphoSys signed an initial two-vear license agreement with the Schering-Plough
Corporation for the use of its HuCAL GOLD technology in the research and development of
human therapeutic antibodies. Under the terms of the agreement, MorphoSys grants access o
its proprietary antibody library to Schering-Plough for use in its drug discovery programs at
one research site. Schering-Plough has the option to develop HuCAL-derived therapeutic anti-
hedies against up to ten disease-related targets.
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The initial two-year term of the agreement also provides Schering-Flough with the option of
an extension of up to three more years. The HuCAL GOLD antibody library was installed at
Schering-Plough’s research site in Palo Alte, California, USA, the location of Schering-Plough
Biopharma, an affiliate of the Schering-Plough Research Institute.

COLLABORATIONS WITH ACADEMIC INSTITUTES

In addition to the commercial partnerships with pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies,
MorphoSys has forged two relevant collaborations with leading academic institutes which offer
potential benefits for both business segments.

THE BURNHAM INSTITUTE
In November 2006, MorphoSys signed a broad alliance with the Burnham Institute for Medical
Research in La Jolla, California, USA, covering the use of fully human recombinant research
antibodies and the commercialization of resulting products. The Burnham Institute will receive
access to novel HuCAL GOLD-hased research antibodies from AbD to identify and validate tar-
get molecules with potential medical implications. MorphoSys retains the commercialization
rights for all antibodies emerging from the collaboration both as research antibody tools distrib-
uted via the AbD sales catalog as well as in therapeutic or diagnostic applications.

COLLABORATION WITH LEADING RESEARCH INSTITUTE IN JAPAN
MorphoSys and its partner the GeneFrontier Corporaticn have expanded their existing marketing
alliance in Japan. The collaboration now also covers the generation of HuCAL-derived antibodies
for proteome research and target validation together with a leading Japanese research organi-

zation as well as the commercialization of resulting antibady products. GeneFrontier will utilize
MorphoSys’s HuCAL GOLD antibody library to generate novel HuCAL antibodies against targets
provided by the research institute. For this purpose, the HuCAL antibody technology was in-
stalled at GeneFrontier's research laboratories within a research facility in Tokyo. GeneFrontier
will provide MorphoSys with financial compensation for access to the technology. Both com-
panies agreed to share the commercialization rights for all antibodies discovered in this project.
Similar to the contract with the Burnham Institute, this contract offers significant new product
potential for the AbD division, but also a potential long-term benefit for MorphoSys’s therapeutic
business. ’
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RESEARCH ANTIBODIES SEGMENT

In the Research Antibodies segment, several agreements were signed in 2006. The common
aim of these activities is to support the central goal of the Company in this segment, namely,
to make HuCAL the industry standard for research antibody generation.

CHEMICON — HUGAL ANTIBODIES POSITIONED IN LEADING MARKETING CHANNEL

[n January 2006, MorphoSys and Ghemicon International, Inc., a unit of the Millipere Corpora-
tion, signed a three-year agreement for the distribution of HuCAL-based recombinant research
antibodies through Chemicon's worldwide sales network, Chemicon may market the licensed
HuCAL-based research antibodies for use in in vitro research as stand-alone products or as
components of reagent kits and may, in addition, also market the antibodies for clinical diag-
nostic applications. MorphoSys receives payment for antibody generation, optional additional
fees, and royalties on all products.

CHIMERA BIOTEG — CO-MARKETING AGREEMENT WITH ANTIGEN SERVICE PROVIDER

In February 2006, AbD and Chimera Biotec GmbH announced the start of a co-tnarketing agree-

ment. The parties agreed to co-market the rapid generation of monoclenal HuCAL antibodies by

AbD and Chimera Biotec's complementary Imperacer™ assay technology for ulirasensitive anti-

gen detection. Each partner will offer the other partner’s services to its customers throughout
the worldwide market.

HUCAL ANTIBODIES IN BIODEFENSE-RELATED PROJECTS

In September 2006, AbD was able to secure a contract as the sole source on a hiodefense-related
project by USAMRIID, an organization of the US Army Medical Research and Materiel Command
and tead medical research laboratory for the US Biclogical Defense Program. USAMRIID has
ordered fully human recombinant research antibodies against five bacteria-derived toxins.
AbD generated these antibodies successfully within five weeks using the HuCAL GOLD anti-
body library and delivered the requested products to USAMRIID.

Biclogical toxins derived from living organisms, such as bacteria and other microorganisms or
plants, are biological agents with potential implications in hioterrorism. HuCAL-derived anti-
hodies may support the development of countermeasures against such biclogical toxins or act
as therapeutic agents themselves.
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT/ALLIANCE MANAGEMENT

MorphoSys uses its own HuCAL technology for the development of therapeutic antibodies and
research applications. Its technology has been thoroughly tried and tested in numerous pari-
nerships. The following represents the progress made in proprietary product and technology
development as well as existing collaborations throughout the year:

THERAPEUTIC ANTIBODIES SEGMENT

MOR103 AS NEW LEAD PRODUCT ON TRACK TO CLINIC

At the beginning of 2006, MorphoSys rearranged the further development of its proprietary
therapeutic antibody programs. As a result of a straiegic review process initiated in 2005,
MorphoSys decided to focus the majority of its efforts on its anti-inflammatory compound
MOR103 as new lead compound in the indication of rheumatoid artbritis. MOR103 is a fully
human HuCAL antibody against an undisclosed target. The Company intends to evaluate
clinical efficacy of the compound. As a next development step, MorphoSys will provide all
necessary information to regulatory authorities and ethics committees within the second
half of 2007 to start human clinical trials.

In regard to MorphoSys's cancer-related MOR202 antibody program, the Company generated
additional preclinical data around this project, and a preclinical candidate was selected.

MorphoSys discontinued further development of its anti-ICAM-1 program, which consisted of
the MOR101/MOR102 therapeutic antibody projects.

ACCESS TO FULLY HUMAN GELL LINE FOR MOR103

In August 2006, MorphoSys AG signed a second PER.C6® license agreement with Dutch biotech-
nolagy company Crucell N.V. and a biopharmaceutical manufacturing agreement with its tech-
nology partner DSM Biologics. The license agreements allow MorphoSys to use the PER.C6®
cell line in the production of clinical-grade material for the development of its proprietary
MOR103 therapeutic antibody program. Production of clinical-grade material is a relevant step
to keep to the timeline for this project.

BOEHRINGER INGELHEIM STARTS NEW CANCER PROGRAM

In November 2006, MorphoSys and Boehringer Ingelheim expanded their existing collaboration
with a new antibody program. Boehringer Ingelheim exercised an option for optimizing a thera-
peutic HuCAL antibody and acquired an exclusive license for this project. The antibody iden-
tified by Boehringer Ingelheim at its research site in Vienna, Austria, is direcied againsta
cancer disease-related target molecule. As a result, the collaboration now inciudes three areas
of disease — the development of new therapies against cancer, inflammatory and cardiovascular
diseases.
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FURTHER PROGRESS IN CENTOGDR GOLLABORATION

[n February 2005, MorphoSys AG announced the achievement of a fourth therapeutic milestone
within the scope of its collaboration with Centocor, Inc. In meeting the milestone, MorphSys
developed several highly optimized fully human tgG antibodies against a Centocor target in-
volved in inflammatory and autoimmune diseases. The HuCAL GOLD antibodies passed pre-
defined criteria. Achievement of the milestone triggered a payment from Centocor to MorphoSys.

FIRST CLINICAL DATA WITH HUCAL ANTIBODY 1009C3

In December 2006, MorphoSys’s partner GPC Biotech presented pretiminary clinical data for
the HuCAL-derived anticancer antibody 1D09C3 at the 48th Annual Meeting of the American
Society of Hematology. 1D09C3 is currently in a phase 1 clinical program that is evaluating the
antibody in patients with relapsed or refractory B-cell lymphomas, who have failed prior stan-
dard therapy. The objectives of the phase | program are to determine the maximum tolerated
dose and 10 establish a recommended dose for a phase 2 efficacy trial. The preliminary data
from 25 patients suggest that the HuCAL-antibody is well tolerated in this heavily pretreated
patient population. A maximum tolerated dose had not vet been reached. Hints of antitumor
activity were observed in two patients.

PROGRESS IN COLLABORATION WiTH MERGK & CO., INC.

[n December 2005, MorphoSys signed a license agreement with the US pharmaceuticai com-
pany Merck & Co., Inc., for the use of its HuCAL GOLD and AutoGCAL technelogies in research
and development of human therapeutic antibodies. During the course of 2006, installation of
the Company’s proprietary AutoCAL technology was successfully completed at two of Merck’s
research sites, Rome, Italy, and West Point, Pennsylvania, USA, and milestane payments were
received.

ALZHEIMER ANTIBODY ENTERED CLINICAL TRIALS

in January 2006, MorphoSys’s partner Roche filed all necessary applications to commence a
European phase 1 clinical trial with a HuCAL-derived antibody to treat Alzheimer's disease.
This clinical trial is currently underway in patients.

The HuCAL antibody targets are intended to remove abnermal build-ups of amyloid beta protein
in cerebral tissue, which are typical to Alzheimer disease progression. The applications filing to
commence clinical trials triggered a clinical milestone payment from Roche to MorphoSys.

FIRST ANNUAL HUCAL USER DAY
In December 2006, MorphoSys held its first HuCAL GOLD User Day in San Diego, California,
USA, on the back of the international IBC's Antibody Engineering Conference. The meeting
was intended to support and intensify the interaction between MorphoSys and its partners,
and to increase the partners’ knowledge of the HuCAL technology and handling.
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RESEARGH ANTIBODIES SEGMENT ABD
Due to the activities of the Research Antibodies segment, HuCAL antibodies have feund their
way tnto many new areas of application. In 2006, the following research-related items arising
from the AbD business were announced.

PARTNERSHIP WITH JAPANESE KAZUSA DNA RESEARGH INSTITUTE
In May 2006, AbD concluded a research and development program with the Japanese Kazusa
DNA Research Institute. The two parties have jointly developed and characterized a series of
recombinant research antibodies from MorphoSys's HuCAL GOLD antibody library. The anti-
bodies are directed against proteins sourced from Kazusa's inK1AA ¢DNA cloning and expres-
sion project, which aims at identifying and characterizing previously unidentified genes and
their corresponding proteins. Both parties share distribution rights and have made these HuCAL
antibodies available via the sales catalogs of the Kazusa Institute and AbD.

HUCAL ANTIBODIES IN PARKINSON AND ALZHEIMER RESEARCH
In December 2006, AbD presented results from one of its customers at Japan’s renowned Hokkaido
University obtained by using HuCAL-derived antibodies. A set of monoclonal and fully human
mini-antibadies was selected that specifically recognize the DJ-1 protein oxidized at a single
aming acid. The analysis demonstrated that the HuCAL-based antibody fragments provide a set
of useful probes for studying the DI-1 protein. DI-1 was initiatly identified by researchers at
Hokkaido University as a novel cancer target and has recently been linked to certain forms

of Parkinson’s and Alzheimer’s disease. As with other HuCAL-based antibodies generated for
customers, AbD has made a DJ-1-specific antibody available via its sales catalog and customer
website.

PROPRIETARY TECHNOLOGY DEVELOPMENT AND IMPROVEMENTS
LAUNCH OF NEW TECHNOLOGY PLATFORM

In December 2006, MorphoSys presented a new technology platform called RapMAT, a new
antibody optimization system. The RapMAT approach improves MorphoSys's capabilities to
generate antibodies using the proprietary HuCAL GOLD antibody library and reduces the time
until promising lead candidates can be isolated. The new system works hand in hand with
the established HuCAL GOLD technology and builds on its advantageous features, such as its
modular design with unique restriction sites flanking all important segments of the antibody
genes. Resulting antibodies remain of fully human compaosition.
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INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Securing and exploiting intellectual property (IP) remains a core focus of MorphoSys. In line
with this philosophy, MorphoSys is active in seeking, when appropriate, 1P protection for its
proprietary drug candidates and its drug discovery plaiforms. Thus, at times, the Company
pursues trade secret protection in lieu of filing patent applications when it believes the former
will bring more value to the Company. In 2006, the Company filed numercus patent applica-
tions, including those covering its proprietary antibody programs and advances to its robust
discovery platforms. IP continues to play a key role in the Company’s successful partnering
track record. For example, MorphoSys filed for [P protection on its RapMAT technclogy, access
to which was a feature of the expansion of its collaboration with Novartis in June 2006.

HUMAN RESOURCES

MorphoSys's future success relies on having an expert and committed workforce, One of the
key management tasks is to attract and maintain highly qualified and motivated employees for
all areas of the Company.

LONG-TERM PERFORMANCE-RELATED REMUNERATION

All emplovees participate in the operational and financial success of the Company. In order to
strengthen and expand the reward system for individual contribution, MorphoSys offers a
performance-based bonus to all employees. This bonus supptements the existing remuneration
system and opens up an additional performance incentive. Emplovee bonuses are based on the
success of the Company and on personal performance. By setting personal goals, department
goals and Company goals, each employee has the chance to contribute to the successful devel-
opment of MorphoSys and to participate in its success.

In addition to the performance-related compensation, all employees have the chance to partici-
pate in a stock optien or convertible bond program as part of a long-term equity incentive scheme.
The aim of this program is to give employees a long-term stake in the success of the Company.

QUALIFICATION AND TRAINING

Supporting science and management education is a priority for MorphoSys. The Cotnpany offers
career opportunities in the areas of research and product development as well as a variety of
management positions. All emplovees enjoy a wide range of professional and personal develop-
ment programs as well as a working environment that encourages enthusiasm and collabo-
raticn among departments and hetween the Company’s different locations.

HUMAN RESOURCES

One of the most important goals of the human resources department is to provide an optimal
working environment for all employees. Flexible working hours and employment arrangements
have a long tradition at MorphoSys: the goal being to help strike a better balance between pro-
fessional duties and private needs, which in turn contributes to employee commitment to the
Company. MorphoSys provides equal opportuanities to wormen and men at their workplace. This
tradition is based on the open and international corporate culture thai nas characterized the
Company from the beginning and has remained strong up to the present day.
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NMUMBER AND QUALIFICATION OF EMPLOYEES
On December 31, 2006, the MorphoSys Group employed 279 people (December 31, 2005: 172).
On average, the MorphoSys Group employed 265 people in 2006 (2005: 170).

Of the 279 employees, 98 people were emploved by the Serotec Group on December 31, 2006,
and on average 88 in the course of the year.

Of the 279 employees, 155 worked in research and development and 124 in sales, general and
administration. On December 31, 2006, 59 of MorphoSys’s emplovees held a Ph.D. degree
(December 31, 2005: 46).

Of the 279 employees, 158 were engaged in the Therapeutic Antibodies segment and 121 in the
AbD segment.

On December 31, 2006, MorphoSys had 1 apprenticeship position (December 31, 2005:; 1)

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Germany 183
UK 78
l?lSA 18
Total 279

EMPLOYEES OF MORPHOSYS GROUP

172
2005

2006

50 100 150 200 250 300

SUPERVISORY BOARD
At the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting held in Munich on May 17, 2006, MorphoSys’s shareholders
re-glected Prof. Dr. Jiirgen Drews and Prof, Dr. Andreas Pliickthun to the Supervisory Board.

JOB SAFETY

Regular medical checks are carried out for the MorphoSys employees. An initial medical check-
up is performed for all new employees of the research and development department. In addition,
the Company offers all employees in research and development the optien to be vaccinated
against hepatitis A and B.
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MorphoSys conducts its research in safety level “Bio [" and “Bio 11" laboratories under strict
observance of ail relevant legal guidelines. Internal standards are more stringent than those
guidelines which are legally required.

As part of the expert team of employees responsible for work safety, biological safety and fire
prevention, there is one designated employee dedicated to work safety alone. This person is
responsible for providing employees with regular training and updates to inform them of the
latest guidelines. MorphoSys employees are familiar with all requirements relating to job
safety, handling of hazardous materials as well as accident and fire prevention. During 2006,
there were no industrial accidents reported.

Due to regular maintenance by internal employees, all laboratory equipment adheres to the
highest possible standard of safety.

REMUNERATION REPORT

REMUNERATION OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD

The annual remuneration of the members of the Management Board consists of a fixed compo-
nent, a performance-related bonus, a medium- and long-term performance-related component
in the form of convertible bonds and stock options as well as of other fringe henefits, Each year,
the appropriateness of the total compensation packages is subject to a review of the Remuner-
ation & Nomination Committee. The complete compensation packages are compared to the out-
come of the Annual German Biotechnology Industry Remuneration Study (GRS Study), and to
other international benchmark socurces. The adjustments to the compensation packages are
adopted by the plenum of the Supervisory Board. The last date on which salaries were adjusted
was in July 2006.

The total annual salary of the members of the Management Board comprises the fixed compo-
nents plus additional other compensatory benefits, which encompass primarily the use of com-
pany cars, the reimbursement of travel and telephone costs, allowances for health, social care
and invalidity insurances as well as special allowances and benefits received when working
outside of the home country. Furthermore, all members of the Management Board participate in
private pension funds. MorphoSys pays the monthly contribution to these funds. These payments
are included here as other compensatory benefits and amount to 10% of the annual fixed salary
of each Management Board member plus tax contribution,

Additionally, each member receives a performance-related cash bonus payment. Such payments
are dependent on individual goals and company-related goals, which are determined by the
Supervisory Board at the beginning of each fiscal vear. The corporate performance targets
reflect operating performance as measured by revenues and net income and other Company
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goals such as share performance or the successful integration of business units. At the end of
the year, the Supervisory Board evaluates the level of attainment of these goals, The bonus is
determined by the Supervisory Board on the basis of the Company’s business development
after due assessment of the circumstances. Approximately one-third of the bonus payment is
dependent on personal goals, the other two-thirds depend on the extent to which the Company
goals have been reached.

In the fiscal year 2006, the total cash remuneration paid to the members of the Management
Board amounted to € 1,156,415 (previous yvear: € 887,964). The table below shows the detailed
and individualized compensation for the Management Board in Z006:

PERFORMANCE- OTHER TOTAL

FIXED RELATED COMPENSATORY COMPENSATION

in & COMPENSATION COMPENSATION BENEFITS 20006
" Dr. Simon E. Maroney 300,000 136,024 7733 506,337

Mr. Dave Lemus 204,750 104,973 99,456° 409,179

Dr. Marlies Sproll 181,500 13,052' 46,347 240,899

' Performance-related compensation for November and December 2005 (Dr, Sproll was appointed as member of the Management
Board as of November 1, 2005)

? Includes € 68,913 annual contribution to private pension fund and allowances to insurances

3 Includes € 48,283 annual contribution to private pension fund and aliowances to insurances

* Includes € 40,088 annual contribution to private pension fund and allowances to insurances

The long-term performance-refated remuneration consists of convertible bonds and stock options
under the plans as resolved by the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting. These are outlined in the
"Equity-based Compensation for the Management Board” section below.

In 2006, 25,000 stock options were granted to Dr. Marlies Sproll in connection with her appoint-
ment as Chief Scientific Officer. Additionally, 14,248 convertible bonds were granted to mem-
bers of the Management Board in 2006. The value of the stock options and convertible bonds
granted to members of the Management Board under the 2002 option and convertible bond

plan attributable to fiscal year 2006 totaled € 676,399 (2005: € 697,410).

During 2006, members of the Management Board exercised convertible bonds and subsequently
sold the new shares, Further details are given in the schedule provided under “Directors’ Dealings”
in MorphoSys’s Corporate Governance Report.

No credit or similar benefits were granted to members of the Management Board. In the year
under review, the Management Board members received no benefits from third parties that
were either promised or granted in view of their position as a member of the Management Board.
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The service contracts for the Chief Executive Officer Dr. Simon E. Mcroney and the Chief Finan-
cial Officer Mr. Dave Lemus have a term of three years each. Dr. Marlies Sproll was appointed
as Chief Scientiftc Officer for the first time in November 2005; her respective service agreement
has a term of two years. In the event of a non-reappointment and non-prolongation of the service
agreement, each member of the Management Board is entitled to receive a severance payment
in the amount of one annual fixed salary. If the service contract of a member of the Management
Board is terminated by death, his/her spouse or partner for life is entitled to the monthly fixed
salary for the month of death and the following twelve months. After a change of control trans-
action, each member of the Management Board is allowed to extraordinarily terminate his/her
service contract and may demand the outstanding fixed salary for the remaining contractually
provided term of contract, or two years, whichever is greater. Furthermeore, in such a case, all
granted stock options and convertible bonds shall he treated as immediately vested.

REMUNERATION OF THE SUPERVISORY BUOARD

The compensation of the members of the Supervisory Beard is specified by resolution of the
Annual Shargholders’ Meeting. [n accordance with the German Corporaie Governance Code,
members of the Supervisory Board receive fixed as well as performance-related compensation.
[t takes intc account the responsibilities and scope of tasks of the members of the Supervisory
Board as well as the economic situation and perfermance of the Company.

[n the 2006 fiscal year, the members of the Supervisory Board received a total of € 259,000
(2005: € 190,500), excluding reimhursement of travel expenses, which was in accordance with
the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting resolution of May 17, 2006. This amount consists of fixed

remuneration and attendance fees.

The table helow shows the detailed compensation for the Supervisory Board in 2006:

FIXED VARLABLE TGTAL
in€ COMPENSATION COMPENSATION COMPENSATION_‘
Dr. Geratd Méller, Chairman - 40,000 24,500 64,500

WFA’rof. Dr. Jirgen Drews, Deputy Chairman 30,000 11,000 41,000
Dr. Daniel Camus 25,000 20,000 45,000
Dr. Metin Colpan 25,000 T 7500 32,500
brof. Or. Andreas Plickthun 23,500 CoT 7,500 31,000
Dr. Geoffrey N, Vernen 26,500 18,500 45000
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The German Corporate Governance Code proposes that remuneration of the Supervisory Board
should also include components based on the long-term success of the Company. The Annual
Shareholders’ Meeting of MorphoSys AG decided on May 17, 2006, in favor of a revenues-related
compensation program in the form of phantom stocks. In addition to the cash compensation,
the Supervisory Board members will receive these phantom stocks, subject to a performance
hurdle. A phantom stock is a claim on the Company to a cash payment of the difference
between the stock exchange price at the end of the holding period and the exercise price. The
holding period for phantom stocks is three years, beginning with the issue date on January 1,
2007, and ending on December 31, 2009. An amount will enly be paid if the Company’s consoli-
dated revenues for the year show an average annual growth rate of at least 20%. 1n total, pay-
ments by the Company under this ptan to the Supervisory Board as a whole must not exceed
the amount of € 80,000 (“cap™).

The Chairman of the Supervisory Board has received 2,500 phantom stocks, the Deputy Chair-
man 2,000 phantom stocks, and the members of the Supervisory Board 1,500 phantom stocks
each.

In 2006, MorphoSys entered into consulting agreements with the member of the Supervisory
Board Prof. Dr. Andreas Pliickthun and another scientist of Prof. Dr. Pliickthun’s research team
at the University of Zurich, Switzerland, ending December 2008. According to the agreements,
the consultants shall provide consulting services in the antibody and scaffold fields. Under
this agreement, Prof. Dr. Andreas Pliickthun may receive payments of up to € 14,000 per vear,
depending on the extent to which the Company draws on his consultancy. Additionally, MorphoSys
pays a yearly fee of SFr. 135,000 for its sponsored research agreement to the University of Zurich,
represented by Prof. Dr. Andreas Pliickthun. Both agreements were approved by the Supervisory
Board plenum. No other consultancy agreements with members of the Supervisory Board are
currently in place.

No members of the Management Board or the Supervisory Board were granted Company loans.

EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION FOR THE MANAGEMENT BOARD
STOCK OPTIONS AND CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The Supervisory Board also decides each year on the number of stock options or convertible
bonds to be allocated to the Management Board members. Stock options are only granted in
the event of a new appointment of a member of the Management Board or in the case of a
renewal of a service agreement. Every year, all employees, including the Management Board,
are offered convertible bonds as a mid-term performance-related compensation component.
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Since the implementation of equity-based compensation programs at MorphoSys AG, stock
options or convertible bands are only issued twice a year on the same predefined dates.

The following overview shows the number of stock options and convertible bonds issued in
2006 to members of the Management Board (please see also 2002 Emplovee Stock Option
Program and 2002 Employee Convertible Bond Program, see sections 15 and 16 of the Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements) and their potential current value:

FAIR VALYE OF

CGNE STOCK FAIR VALUE AT
NUMBER OF OPTION/CON- THE TIME OF
MEMBER OF CONVERTIBLE STRIKE PRICE VERTIBLE BOND THE GRANT
MAMAGEMENT BOARD BONOS in & GRANT DATE EXPIRY DATE in € in €
o & - - ]
Dr. Simon E. Meroney 5,699 44.12 Jan. 15, 2006 Dec. 31, 2008 14.03 79,957___
Mr. Dave Lemus 4,749 44.12 Jan. 15, 2006 Dec. 31, 2008 14.03 66,628
Dr. Marlies Sproll ) 3.800 4412 Jan. 15, 2006 Dec. 31, 2008 14.03 23,314
NUMBER QF
STOCK QPTIONS
Dr. Marlies Sproll 25,000 44,12 jan. 15, 2006 Dec. 31, 2011 18.66 466,500

STOCK OPTION PROGRAMS

The current stock option plan of 2002 provides for the issuance of nontransferable option rights
to employees and to the Management Board. The option rights have a maximum life of five vears.
Additionally, a twa-year holding period is required after the date of grant, after which the holder
of the option rights can exercise up to the number of vested option rights, on the condition that
the value of the underlying stock has exceeded the stock price at the time of the grant by at
least 20% on one trading day before the exercise.

CONVERTIBLE BOND PROGRAMS

The current convertible bond program of 2003 provides the issuance of non-interest-bearing
convertible bonds with a par/nominal value of € 1.00 each to employees and to the Manage-
ment Board. The beneficiaries may only exercise the conversion rights after the expiration of
a waiting period of one year after the grant date. Each convertible bond with a nominal value
of € 1.00 can be exchanged for one share of ordinary no-par value common stock of the Com-
pany against payment of the exchange price. Furthermore, the exercise of the convertible
bonds is subject to the performance target that the value of the underiying stock has exceeded
the stock price at the time of the grant by at least 10% on one trading day before the exercise.

For a more detailed description of the various stock option and convertible bond programs cur-
rently in operation, see sections 15 and 16 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SUSTAINABILITY AND CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company is active in the heatthcare sector, and has developed new technologies for the
generation of fully human antibodies for therapeutic applications, but also for research and
diagnostics purposes. MorphoSys’s technologies can help improve treatment options for
life-threatening diseases within an aging population. The demand for innovative therapeutics,
helping to ameliorate the quality of life of patients, is constantly increasing and allows the
Company to grow its business globally.

MorphoSys is dedicated to sustainability and corporate social responsibility, as is clearly de-
scribed in MerphoSys’s credo. The management of the Company is convinced that responsible
and effective environmental protection and good corporate citizenship are essential to entre-
preneurial success. [n 2003, MorphoSys introduced a code of ethics directed at the members
of the Management Board and those persons of the Company responsible for finance, control-
ling and accounting at the Company. Senior Management and the Company’s financial staff play
an important and distinctive role within the Company’s corporate governance in that these
personnel are authorized and entrusted to ensure that accurate financial information is pro-
vided to investors quickly. The code of ethics — together with the related internal standards and
policies, e.g. for safety, health and environmental protection — regulate corporate procedures
and responsibilities.

MorphoSys is increasingly active in fulfilling its role as a sociatly responsible company. One of
MorphoSys’s main goals in regard to corporate culture and human resources is to secure a healthy
work-iife balance for its employees and their famities. As a part of this effort, MorphoSys -
together with other Munich-based biotechnology companies — founded a local kindergarten called
“BioKids” in 2002 and has supported this both financially and in terms of active participation
since that time. A member of MorphoSys has been consistently on the advisory board of the
holding company Kita BioRegio eV., which represents “BioKids.”

Due to & change in the German education system, schools will be seeking closer collaborations
with industry partners from 2007 onwards in order to prepare students for an earlier entry into
working life. MorphoSys supports this program. As a part of its open-door palicy, MorphoSys
already presents itself on a regular basis to visitors at an annual open house and throughout
the year.

MorphoSys offers wide-ranging employment oppertunities, offering employment for school-
leavers looking for vocational training, graduate students’ diploma thesis as well as internships
for students and technical assistants.

At the end of each year, the employees of MorphoSys AG support a local charitable non-profit
organization with private donaticns. In 2006, MorphoSys's staff donated approximately € 1,000
to Lebenshilfe eV. Schmalkalden, an organization supporting handicapped people.
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INFORMATION TECHNGLOGY

MorphoSys continued its growth of head ccunt and operaticns in 2006. For that reason, an [T
infrastructure was introduced, in particular for server consolidation. All affiliates are members
of the MorphoSys worldwide [T network, to improve business performance and ensure business
continuity.

During 2006, all newly acquired affiliates were integrated intc the corporate network to ensure
the secure and reliable exchange of data and infermation. Administration of all affiliates is
performed at the Company’s headquarters in Munich. A global [T policy was implemented to
introduce Group-wide security standards and worldwide use of data and applications.

All products from the former Biogenesis and Serotec units were merged into a new database.
The taunch of a new Weh shop, which will be based on the new product database, is scheduled
for the first half of 2007,

MorphoSys completed a relaunch of the corporate portal in June 2006. The relaunch was necessary
to fulfill the increasing requirements of the two business segments of MorphoSys. [t provides a
comprehensive information platform of all business aspects for MerphoSys's customers, partners
and shareholders.

The 1T department of MorphoSys has developed a new business offer, supplying MorphoSys'’s
partners with new bioinformatics software for sequence analysis of identified HuCAL antibodies.
This system, named SAS, has already heen installed at Merck & Co., and the installation for
Novartis is scheduled for early 2007.

MorphoSys currently plans to implement a new ERP (enterprise resource planning) software
for its S,G&A functions, Once estabiished, it is anticipated that the new software system will
be implemented across the MorphoSys Group {including its subsidiaries in the United States
and the United Kingdom) after 2007,

In December 2006, MorphoSys received Microsoft’s annual EMEA Customer Award at the
Microsoft Convergence 2006 EMEA conference in Munich, Germany, for its innovative IT.

PROCUREMENT AND PRODUCTION

MorphoSys purchases raw materials and supplies from numerous suppliers. The Company pro-
cures all needed material from international suppliers, and tends to place its purchase orders
with the most favorably priced suppliers, taking into consideration all relevant quality aspects.
MorphoSys aims to secure strategic materials through medium- and long-term contracts, and
has not experienced difficulties in obtaining sufficient amounts of raw materials and supplies
in recent years, The price of raw materials and supplies may vary substantially.

MorphoSys produces human antibodies for research apgplications in the milligram to gram or
mare scale. For production purposes, MorphoSys has access to different expression systems,
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such as cell lines and expression vectors. For the expression of antibody fragments, MorphoSys
uses hacterial expression systems, and has access to Wacker’s secretion system for antibody
fragment production. For the production of futl IgGs, for example, MorphoSys uses the HKB.11
cell line in-licensed from Bayer and the PER.C6® cell line from Crucell.

For the production of clinical-grade material of MOR1G3, MorphoSys has signed a license agree-
ment with Dutch biotechnology company Crucell N.V. and a biopharmaceutical manufacturing
agreement with its technology partner DSM Biologics.

During 20006, MorphoSys achieved substantial discounts through global sourcing. As an example,
all computer hardware is purchased from a global vendor, and the Company has established a
global seftware license management system through its headquarters in Munich.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND QUALITY MANAGEMENT

Since high standards for quality, environmental protection and safety are critical success fac-
tors for MorphoSys, all relevant environmental issues are regularly monitored and assessed.
The Company’s entire waste disposal system is continually reviewed and evaluated with
respect to the potential for improvement.

MorphoSys is not subject to direct regulation other than regulation generally applicable to busi-
nesses like itself. This includes various laws and regulations in effect in the different jurisdic-
tions in which the Company operates, including laws and regulations applicable to environmen-
tal matters, such as the handling and disposal of hazardous wastes. In total, the Company’s
research and development activities involve only small amounts of hazardous materials and
chemicals.

QUALITY MANAGEMENT

Within the framework of cur quality management system, all business processes are continu-
ously scrutinized and enhanced. Continuous improvement processes are an element of all of
the Company’s processes.

One of the areas of focus for the Therapeutic Antibodies segment was the establishment of new
and innovative analytical methods and biological assays for in-depth characterization of the
Company’s antibodies. The innovation process was triggered to further improve the therapeutic
antibody developtnent process by applying efficient selection and quality filters in the antibody
generation process early on. Quality management does not only mean ease of application, con-
venience and high product performance, but also comprehensive product safety and testing,
which are mandatory parameters for entering clinical trials.

Within the AbD segment, quality is the key to delivering a market-leading solution, and IS09001:2000
accreditation, the European quality standard, has been in place at Serotec Ltd. since December
1994, and at Serotec, Inc. as well as Serotec France since May 2003. This quality system provides
a sound framework from which to operate.
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AbD sells a group of “CE” marked products that conform to the directives of the in vitro Medical
Device Regulations and can be sold and used by customers as in vitro Medical Diagnostic
Devices. Serotec Ltd. is planning to implement 15S013485:2004, the European standard for busi-
nesses invoived in medical devices and in vitro diaghostic medical devices in 2007, and is cur-
rently working towards the implementaticn of good manufacturing practice (GMP). AbD is
dedicated to delivering customers a solution and not just a product, no matter what they order
or where they work. This commitment to customer satisfaction is demonstrated by means of a
global quality guarantee and a free antibody location service.

DECLARATIONS PURSUANT TO § 315 PARA. 4 OF THE GERMAN COMMERCIAL CODE

As of December 31, 2006, the Company’s share capital amounted to € 20,145,966 and is divided
into 6,715,322 no-par value bearer shares. With the exception of 29,162 own shares, all issued
shares are exclusively common shares with voting rights. The Management Board is not aware
of any restrictions of the voting rights or the right to transfer. This also applies to restrictions
which may result from shareholders’ agreements. The Cempany has not been notified of direct
or indirect shareholdings in its share capital exceeding 10% of the voting rights pursuant to

§ 21 German Securities Trading Act {“WpHG"). There are no owners of shares with privileged
rights or other rights giving a right to control votes.

Pursuant to § 6 of the Company’s Articles of Asscciation, the Management Board shall consist of
at least two members, with the Supervisory Board defining the concrete number of the mem-
bers of the Management Board. The Supervisory Board may appoint a Chief Executive Officer
and one or several representatives of the CEQ.

The shareholders have provided the Management Board with the following authorizations to
issue new shares or conversicn rights or to purchase own shares:

31 Pursuant to § 5 para. 5 of the Articles of Association and with the approval of the Super-
visory Board, the Management Board is authorized to increase the Company’s share
capital during the time period until April 30, 2011, in the amount of up to € 7,481,307
and by issuing 2,493,769 young bearer shares with no-par vaiue for contribution in cash
and/or in kind on one or several occasions {Autherized Capital [). The Management
Board may, with the approval of the Supervisory Board, exclude the preemptive rights
of the sharehalders under the following conditions:

311 inthe case of a capital increase in cash, to the extent that such exclusion is
necessary to avoid fractional shares; or

3.1.2 in the case of a capital increase in kind, to the extent that the young shares are
used for the acquisition of companies, shareheldings in companies, patents, licenses
or other industrial property rights, or of assets which constitute a business in
their entirety;
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3.1.3 orinthe case of a capital increase in cash, to the extent that young shares shall be
placed at a stock exchange in context with a listing.

Pursuant to § 5 para. 6 of the Articles of Association and with the approval of the Super-
visory Board, the Management Board is authorized to increase the Company’s share capital
in cash during the time period until April 30, 2011, by up to € 1,956,564 by issuing up to
652,188 young bearer shares with no-par value {Authorized Capital II). The preemptive
rights of the shareholders may be excluded if (i) fractional shares are avoided and/or (ii)
the issuance price of the young shares is not substantially below the stock exchange price
of the listed shares of the same kind at the time of the final fixing of the issuance price.

Pursuant to § 5 para. 6 b of the Articles of Association, the Company’s share capital shall
be conditionally increased by an amount of up to € 5,488,686, divided into up to 1,829,562
bearer shares with no-par value (Conditional Capital 111). The conditional capital increase
shall only be accomplished (i} to the extent that owners of options and/or convertible
bonds make use of their option and/or conversion rights issued by the Company until
April 30, 2011, in accordance with the resolution of the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting
or (ii) to the extent that owners fulfill their duties to convert. The same shall apply to
owners of options and/or convertible bonds issued by domestic or foreign affiliates,
which are totally owned by the Company.

Furthermore, there exists a Conditional Capital I in the amount of up to € 46,785 {§ 5
para. 4 of the Articles of Association), a Conditional Capital 11 in the amount of up to

€ 644,325 (§ 5 para. 6 a of the Articles of Association), a Conditional Capital [V in the
amount of up to € 1,393,761 (§ 5 para. 6 c of the Articles of Association} and a Condi-
tional Capital V in the amount up of € 1,031,961 (§ 5 para. 6 d of the Articles of Associa-
tion). These conditional share capitals may be used for the issuance of option and con-
version rights to members of the Management Board and to employees of the Company
or of its affiliates.

According to the resolution of the ordinary Annual Shareholders’ Meeting 2006, the
Company may purchase own shares in the amount of up to 10 % of the share capital
existing at the time of the said resolution. This authorization is valid until October 31,
2007. The Management Board may decide whether the shares shall be acquired as
purchase arder in the stock market or by virtue of a public offer. The acquired own
shares may be used for the following purposes:

3.5.1  with the approval of the Supervisory Board, the shares may be redeemed; or

3.5.2 the shares may be used in order to fulfill conversion rights or option rights
which have been granted by the Company or an affiliate; or

3.5.3 the own shares may be used as acquisition currency in context with the pur-
chase of companies, shareholdings in companies, husiness assets, intellectual
property rights or licenses.
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After a change of control transaction, each member of the Management Board is allowed to
extraordinarily terminate his/her service contract and may demand the outstanding fixed salary
for the remaining contractually provided term of contract or for two years, whichever is greater.
Furthermore, in such a case, all granted stock optiens and convertible bonds shall be treated as
immediately vested. The same applies to some of the directors of the Company to whom options
or conversion rights have been granted.

Additionally, the Company has commercial contracts with pharmaceutical partners, which may
be affected in the event of a change of control and could affect future cash flows significantly.

RISK REPORT

MorphoSys AG operates on a global basis. Its business activities comprise different risks, which
are relevant to many business functions. The business, financial condition and operating results
of MorphoSys may be materially adversely affected by each of these risks. In line with the German
“Corporate Sector Supervision and Transparency Act” (*Gesetz zur Kontrolle und Transparenz
im Unternehmenshereich” — KonTraG), MorphoSys has estahlished a comprehensive and effec-
tive system to identify, assess, communicate and manage risks across its functions and oper-
ations. Risk management has the goal of identifying risks as early as possible, limiting business
tosses by means of suitable measures, and avoiding risks that pose a threat to the Company’s
existence. Regular risk analyses at a corporate level are carried out in the areas of Legal, Taxes
and Insurance, Human Resources, Finance, Corporate Communications, Strategic Planning and
Controlling, Business Development, Research and Development as weil as Production.

GENERAL BUSINESS-RELATED RISKS

MorphoSys is subject to the typical industry and market risks inherent to the development of
fully human antibodies for use in research, diagnostics and therapy. It is known that the devel-
opment of drugs takes 10 to 15 years, with high attrition rates, MorphoSys is minimizing these
risks by partnering its products with pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies, which are
responsible for clinical development and marketing. In general, there is a risk that none of the
antibody products in MorphoSys's current antibody pipeline will be successfully developed.
Within its second operating segment, the MorphoSys Group generates antibodies for research
applications and diagnostics applications. There is a risk that those products will not fulfill the
requirements of the customers, or that other products will be more favorably priced.

ACQUISITION RISKS

During 2006, MorphoSys acquired the Serotec Group, through which the Company has gained
access to new distribution and sales channels. In the future, MorphoSys may acquire additional
companies or technologies to increase market share and to complement existing business.
Acquisition can expose the Company to risks associated with the assimilation of new technolo-
gies, operations, sites and personnel, the inability to generate revenues to offset acquisition
costs, the issuance of dilutive equity securities, the inability to maintain relationships with
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employees and customers, and the incurring of additional expenses associated with future
amortization or impairment of acquired intangible assets or potential business. The failure to
address the aforementioned risks may prevent the Company from achieving the anticipated
benefits from the acquisition within a reasonable time frame.

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT RISKS

MorphoSys is committed to generating therapeutic antibodies for its commercial partners and,
more recently, on its own account. Thus, the Company’s product pipeline comprises both part-
nered and proprietary therapeutic antibody development programs. These programs are subject
to a number of risks of failure inherent in the development of medical therapies. Product candi-
dates require preclinical studies and clinical trials in humans as well as regulatory approval
prior to commercialization. To date, none of the Company’s licensees or partners has commer-
cialized a product based on MorphaSys’s HUCAL technology, and HuCAL-derived therapeutics
are not expected to be commercially available for a number of years. [n addition, none of the
HuCAL-derived product candidates has successfully completed atl stages of clinical testing and
regulatory approval procedures. Preclinical and ongoing phase 1 studies may not predict and
do not ensure safety or efficacy in humans, and are not necessarity indicative of the results that
may be achieved in pivotal clinical trials with humans.

COMPETITION AND TECHNOLOGICAL CHANGE

MorphoSys’s business environment is characterized by rapid change and intense competition.
Its competitors include major pharmaceutical, chemical and biotechnology companies possess-
ing greater financial, technical and marketing resources than those available to MorphoSys.

In addition, certain biotechnology companies have formed collaborations with large established
pharmaceutical companies to support the research, development and commercialization of prod-
ucts that may bhe competitive with those of MorphoSys. Moreover, certain research and aca-
demic institutions are also active in areas similar to those of MorphoSys. Seme of MorphoSys's
competitors are currently focusing their business efforts on gaining a share of the market and
offer their technology at little or ne cost to collaboration partners. The first pharmaceutical prod-
uct to reach the market is often at a significant advantage to later entrants, particularly since
subsequent potential entrants must prove an advantage of their product over products already
on'the market. There is a risk that MorphoSys’s competitors could succeed in developing tech-
nologies and products that are safer, less costly and more effective than its technologies or prod-
ucts. [n addition, there is a risk that these technologies could produce products that reach the
market earlier and could be more successful than those developed by MorphoSys,

PRODUCT RISKS

The marketing and sale of antibody products and services for certain applications entails a po-
tential risk of product liability, and there can be no assurance that product liability claims will
not be brought against the Company. MorphoSys currently carries product liability insurance
coverage. There can be no assurance, however, that the Company will be able to maintain such
insurance at a reasonable cost and on reasonable terms or that such insurance will be adequate
to protect MorphoSys against any or all potential claims or losses.
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DEPENDENCE ON HEALTHCARE AND PHARMACEUTICAL SPENDING

MorphoSys is dependent on various sources of income, including, in particular, fees, milestone
payments and royalties from licensees and partners, the financial condition of public treasuries
and the financial markets, the government and governmental health authorities, research insti-
tutions, private health insurers and other organizations. Part of MorphoSvs's revenues is derived
fram entering into collaborations with partners, including pharmaceutical companies. Many
collaborative and/or out-licensing agreements provide for milestone payments and fees to be
paid subject to the satisfaction of specific criteria. MorphoSys has no control over whether its
partners or licensees will be able to meet such milestones, nor will MorphoSys be able to con-
trol whether products derived from its technology are being developed at all by its partners.
Moreover, certain pharmaceutical companies may be more likely to seek to in-license products
which have already reached a relatively advanced stage of development, such as phase 2 com-
pounds, as opposed to less advanced product candidates still in preclinical stages. Consequently,
the products in MorphoSys’s pipeline may not reach a sufficiently advanced stage of develop-
ment to be of interest to these pharmaceutical companies for some time. Therefore, the Company
can offer no assurance that there will be a guaranteed revenues stream from current or future
collaborations.

IP RISKS

MorphoSys has heen involved in legal proceedings in Germany and certain foreign jurisdictions,
including the United States. These involve claims brought by and against it for license or patent
infringement, which arose in the ordinary course of business. After the settlement of the litigation
with Applied Molecular Evolution/Eli Lilly in September 2005, no significant patent litigation is
pending. However, the field of recombinant antibady libraries and phage display, in which the
Company is active, is relatively new, and the intellectual property position of the various parties
involved is complex and litigious. Therefore, MorphoSys can offer no assurance that further
patent suits will not he brought by companies pessessing existing patents or patenis which have
not yet been granted or which the Company is currently not aware of. Any such proceedings,
if brought and subsequently decided against MorphoSys, could have an adverse material effect
on the husiness, financial condition and operating results of MorphoSys.

ADDITIONAL FUNDING REQUIREMENTS .

MeorphoSys’s future capital requirements will continue to be substantial and wili be dependent
on many factors, including its ability to find licensees and to enter into satisfactory collaboration
agreements, as well as the success of such collaborations in generating revenues (e.g. licensing
fees, milestone payments and rovalties). The costs of the preclinical testing of MorphoSys's prod-
ucts and technoiogies and the costs associated with filing, defending and enforcing patent
rights may exceed the returns from these preducts. MorphoSys may also need ro raise additional
funds in future years. The Company can offer no assurance that adequate funds will be available
to MorphoSys when needed on satisfactory terms or ai all. If adequate funds are not available
or are not available on acceptabte terms, MorphoSys may have to reduce its expenditures for
research and development, production or marketing. Any such development could have an
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adverse material effect on MorphoSys’s business, financial condition and results of operations.
If additional funds are raised by issuing shares, stockholders are likely to experience a dilution
of their interests.

CURRENCY RISKS

The Group accounts are administered in euros. A significant portion of revenues and expenses
are earned and incurred in currencies other than the euro. Although the euro is the most pre-
dominant currency, others, especially the US dollar, and the British pound, and to lesser degrees
the Swiss franc and the Japanese yen may experience fluctuations in the exchange rate to the
reporting currency of eurs, thus impacting financial results. The Company examines the neces-
sity of hedging foreign exchange transactions to minimize the currency risk during the year
and attempts to address thege risks by regularly employing derivative financial instruments,

INTEREST RATE RISKS
Interest income earned on our available-for-sale financial assets is affected by changes in the rela-
tive level of market interest rates. The Company follows an investment policy which dictates that
all investments must have at least an investment grade (BBB+) rating to qualify as an investment.

DEPENDENGE ON KEY PERSONNEL
MorphoSys has not experienced any difficulties in attracting or retaining key management or
scientific staff, but the continued ability to recruit and retain qualified skilled personnel is criti-
cal to the Company's success. Due to the intense competition for experienced scientists from
numerous pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies and academic and other research insti-
tutions, there can be no assurance that MorphoSys will be able to attract and retain such per-
sannel on acceptable terms. Planned activities will also require additional personnel, including
management, with expertise in different areas. The inability to recruit such personnel or
develop such expertise could have an adverse material impact on the Company’s operations.

OTHER RISKS

Further, MorphoSys continuously monitors applicable environmental, health and safety, oper-
ational as well as other applicable statutory or industrial guidelines, and has implemented func-
tions to comply with all of these effectively at each of our business locations. To minimize the
manifcld tax, corporate, employment, competition, 1P and other legal frameworks, the Company's
management bases decision making and design of policies and processes on the advice of ex-
ternal as wetl as internal experts. There could be other risks heyond risks described here that
MorphoSys currently either deems as insignificant or is not aware of at the time of this report.
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OPPORTUNITIES

The growing demand for healthcare will be met not only by using existing therapies, hut alsc
by new ones originating from advances in the understanding of the biology of disease and the
applicaticn of new technologies. [nnovative new products have been launched in recent years,
which are changing therapeutic approaches and are improving the gquality of life for patients.
In addition, due to fast-developing economies such as India and China, the number of patients
who can benefit from medicines is expanding. Taken together, these factors represent a significant
opportunity for the healthcare industry.

MaorphoSys is providing a cutting-edge technology for the development of fully human antibodies.
Human antibodies have proven to be an extremely successful class of drugs, with tremendous
growth potential. The demand for antibodies and the inierest of the industry in this class of
drugs has sharply increased over the last 12 to 18 months, clearly underpinned by several
acquisitions and large licensing agreements in this field. But not only the use of antibodies as
therapeutics, but also for research purposes and diagnostics applications, represents future
growth opportunities for MorphoSys.

THERAPEUTIC ANTIBODIES
MaorphoSys has established itself as one of the leading providers of fully human therapeutic anti-
bodies. During 2005 and 2006, the scope of competition substantially decreased through the
acquisitions of two major competitors. Only a few companies offer technologies to develap fully
human antibodies. During the last years, MorphoSys has built up a strong international patent
portfolio, and has secured its freedom to operate und to commercialize its technologies world-
wide. Today, MorphoSys owns several issued and pending patents on its core antiboedy technolo-
gies, which provide the Company with protection from competition, Due to high market entry
barriers for new companies, an increasing demand for antibody therapeutics as well as a de-
crease in competition, MorphoSys expects an increasing number of antibody programs and part-
nerships over the coming years.

By participating in drug development with multiple partners, MorphoSys has effectively low-
ered its risk profile. With currently more than 40 active therapeutic antibody developrment pro-
grams ongoing with its partners, the chance that MorphoSys will participate firancially in one
or more marketed drugs is much higher than if fewer partnerships and fewer programs were
ongoing. As time goes on and development projects advance, it is expected that both the number
and the magnitude of success-based payments will increase.

MorphoSys is also developing therapeutic antibadies for its own account. Currently, two com-
pounds, MOR103 and MQOR202, are in preclinical development. The Company plans to increase
its investments in its own development programs and intends to develop the antibody MORL03
for the treatment of rheumatoid arthritis at least as far as proof of concept in man (phase 2a).
By taking its internal programs forward without a partner, the Company stands o benefit from
more lucrative financial terms at such time when an alliance for further development is signed.
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RESEARGH ANTIBODIES
Through the acquisitions of Biogenesis and Serotec, MorphoSys established itself within the
top 20 of the worldwide leading providers of antibodies and antibedy technologies for research
and diagnostic applications. AbD is a full-service antibody company offering a unique custom
monoclonal antibody technology, a huge selection of ready-made antibodies, large-scale antibody
preduction from hybridomas, and a variety of other antibody services. The Company has estab-
lished a strong base from which to commercialize HuCAL-derived antibodies in the research
and diagnostics markets. These markets have traditionally been totally dominated by antibodies
derived from animals. MorphoSys intends to lead the transition to new in vitroe technologies
for antibody generation. In contrast to animal-based methods, in vitro technologies, such as the
HuCAL library, offer greater speed, throughput and flexibility in antibody generation.

The Company has demonstrated its ability to complete acquisitions in this segment of the indus-
try and to use these transactions to accelerate its growth, MorphoSys intends to continue using
a merger and acquisition strategy to augment strong organic growth ac a means of increasing
its market share and achieving its growth objectives. From its current position as a leader in
the European market, the Company expects to become one of the leading global players in this
field.

PERFORMANCE-BASED MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL

The Group is managed and controlled within the framework of a performance-hased manage-
ment system. Qur objective is to systematically and continuously increase the value of the enter-
prise — through profitable growth and a focus on businesses which offer the hest development
opportunities in terms of competitiveness and performance. An integrated control concept,
value-based performance indicators together with measures to enhance efficiency and growth
as well as optimize capital employed are key elements of our management system.

Operational business performance is measured on the hasis of revenues and profit from opera-
tions. On a quarterly basis, budget planning for the current fiscal year is reviewed and updated.
Furthermore, a mid-term planning scenaric covering the upcoming vears is updated an an an-
nual basis. :
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Key performance indicators for the two operating segments include:

12/31/2007
in € 12/31/2005 12/31/2006 {FORECAST)
MorphoSys Group b b
Group revenues 33.5 million 53.0 million 60-65 million

Group profit from operations 6.2 million 6.2 million 7-10 millien

Therapeutic Antibodies segment

2/ 3 of total
Revenues 2%.1 millicn 34.7 million Group revenues
Number of partnered therapeutic
antibody projects 29 43 50
Number of proprietary therapeutic
antibody projects 4 2 3
ALD segment (including Serotec
from January 12, 2006, onwards)

1/3 of total
Revenues 4.3 miilion 18.3 million Group revenues

The Company is presently reviewing additional key performance indicators beyond those listed
above.

QUTLOOK AND FORECAST

Despite the slight weakening of the global economy, the market environment is anticipated to
remain generally favorable. For 2007, MorphoSys anticipates that it will further increase its market
share for the application of human antibodies in therapeutics, research and diagnostics. A growth-
ariented strategy provides the road map for MorphoSys’s future development.

DEVELOPMENT OF THE HEALTHCARE SECTOR
According to IMS Healih, the healthcare sector is expecied to grow with only 5% to 6% — the
lowest growth rate in years. Reasons for the lower growth rates are patent expiries and the
reform of the healthcare systems within the industrialized countries. During 2007, therapeutic
products with an annual sales value of US$ 16 billion are expected to lose patent protection, This
will impact revenues and profits of pharmaceutical companies. For 2007, the approval of 25 to
35 new drugs is anticipated, e.g. GlaxoSmithKline's breast cancer drug Tykerb® or Novartis's
Tasigna®, a new treatment for chronic myeloid leukemia. However, many of those new products
target smaller niche indications, and will not contribute to stronger sales growth.

The trend towards consolidation through M&A activities will to continue with even more deals
than in 2006, especially between pharmaceutical companies and biotechnology companies with
innovative drugs or technologies.
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STRATEGY

Looking forward, MorphoSys will continue to cenduct its business in two operating segments.
Both segments are forecast to further grow and to increase market share within the anti-
bodies industry. The Company aims to sign additienal partnerships with leading international
research institutions and to establish the proprietary HuCAL technology as an industry standard
for antibody generation.

Additionally, the Company will continue to invest in proprietary drug development, as well as
in technology development, to ensure its technological leadership. For its lead program MOR103,
MorphoSys has planned to file all necessary applications to commence a phase 1 clinical trial
in the second half of 2007. For MOR202, a preclinical candidate had been selected by the end of
2006. The Company intends to continue preclinical development of its second compound.

The Research Antibodies segment (AbD) is expected to keep expanding its market share. AbD
will focus on Web-based commercialization of its products, with sophisticated technical ser-
vices and customer support, One goal is to introduce novel research antibodies of high interest
rapidly, and ta increase the number of HuCAL-based products in the catalog. Additionally, the
unit will seek to sign further strategic distribution agreements with large research antibody
suppliers.

REVENUES

In line with growth expectations for a life sciences “growth” company, MorphoSys sees its long-
term organic revenues growth averaging at at least 15% per annum. For 2007, MorphoSys
anticipates total revenues of € 60 million to € 65 million and organic growth of 15% to 25% in
comparison to 2006.

In 2007, the Therapeutic Antibodies segment will provide approximately two-thirds of total rev-
enues. MorphoSys receives periodic license payments, funded research payments, performance-
based success payments, and clinical milestones. In 2007, it is anticipated that milestones and
success-based payments will contribute an increasing percentage of total revenues as com-
pared to previous years. Such performance-based payments lend themselves to potentially higher
upside, but also more volatility and unpredictability throughout the year.

Revenues from the Research Antibodies segment {AbD) are expected to further increase and
account for approximately one-third of total 2007 revenues. Revenues from the AbD segment
corprise revenues for ready-made antibodies from the antibody catalogs, revenues for custem
monoclonal antibody services, and revenues for contract manufacturing services.
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EXPENSES

In 2007, expenses are expected to continuously increase due to a higher full-vear total average
head count of the MorphoSys Group as compared to the previous vear. Further increases in
costs are likely to arise from new investment into proprietary product development and tech-
nology development,

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS
The MorphoSys Group is committed to future growth on a profitable basis. On the Group level,
MorphoSys intends to achieve a profit from operations of € 7 million te € 10 millien.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

As in the past, research and development is to remain the key focus in coming years. MorphoSys
intends to continue its investments in technological improvement in the area of human anti-
bodies. Additionally, the Company is developing proprietary therapeutic antibody candidates in
the area of inflammation (MOR 103} and oncology (MGR202). Expenses for product development
will increase with the advancement of those programs.

HEAD COUNT
During 2007, increase in head count is mainly contingent upon new partnerships or expansions
of existing business activities to support this.

FINANCING
MorphoSys has been cash flow positive since 2003, and the current business model is predi-
cated on running operations independent of the capital markets. Free cash flow and profits from
operations are intended to be reinvested into research and development as well as in future
growth opportunities in order to secure the long-term growth of the Company. On this basis,
additional financing required for the continuation of normal operations is currently not fore-
seen in 2007. However, financing of future acquisitions cannot be excluded per se on this basis.

FUTURE CORPORATE STRUGTURE AND ORGANIZATION
A streamlining of the Group’s corporate structure is planned for 2007, in order to increase ad-
ministrative efficiency and streamline reporting processes. In that vein, the two US companies
were merged under the name MorphoSys US, Inc., in January 2007,

DIVIDENDS

Dividends may only be declared and paid from the accumulated retained earnings (after deduc-
tion of certain reserves) shown in the Company’s annual German statutory accounts, Such
amounts differ from the total of additional paid-in capital and accumulated deficit as shown in
the accompanying consolidated financial statements as a result of the adjustments made to
present the consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS. The Company’s German
statutory accounts showed taxable income in 2006; however, as of December 31, 2006, and

2003, they reflected no accumulated earnings available for distribution, and the Company’s
ability to pay dividends will therefore depend upon its future earnings.
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Consolidated Statements of Operations (IFRS)

in € NOTE 2006 2005
Revenues ) 19 53,031,172 33,486,843
Operating Expenses
._CostofGooasSoid_ | . 2| 7978641 | 2543465
Researchand Development | 17458347 | 14,029,312
" Sales. General and Administrative | 21418416 | 10753725
Total Operating Expenses 46,855,404 27,326,502
Profit from Qperations 6,175,768 6,160,341
interest Income _ o0, 741 108,101
__Interest Expense 143,197 277,228
Other Expenses, Net 7" gosom | 879.259
Profit before Taxes 1" 5785888 | 5,111,955
income Tax Benefit /{Income Tax Expense) 18 742,046 (435,58¢6)
CNeTeRORT 1 so2793 4,676,369
Basic Net Profit per Share 19 0.94 0.84
__ Diluted Net Profit per Share S 19 0.93 083
Shares Used in Computing Basic Net Profit
per Share B 19 6,379,046 5,578,865
Shares Used in Computing Diluted Net Profit
per Share 19 6,469,839 5,650,378
.

See accompanying notes
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Consolidated Balance Sheets (IFRS)

mE€ NOTE 12/31 /2006 12/31/2005
ASSETS
Current Assets
Qish and Cash Equivalents 3 3,765,320 4,017,029
Availq?_lg-_for—sa}e Financ_i;:i A;svets ) 4 ) 62,260,552 49,542,541
Accounts Receivaple S 5 | 3699386 | 3345812
Other Receivables 6 110,734 25,133
o Tn;ér?tories, MNet T h 7 3,511,405 ) 485,713
" Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets B 7 2,096,991 1,058,461
. _:f_\_§§__ez__ts__c_1_§s,_s_if_i§g as Held for Sale ] __B ] 664,108 -
Total Currenthssets T o 76,108,496 58,474,689
Non-current Assets
Property_,_Pi_arlt and Equipment, f_\let ) 8 6,894,112 N 4.696,863_
. Patent_s. Net- - S _-_;_- 1,950,154 - 2,361,00-5- )
L;ens*esgetﬁm ST 9 7,776,374 8,457,091
Software,Net o S MBI 131506
__ Know-how and Customer Lists, Net " 4,834,289 1,485,567
Googwitl n 27,002,591 4,137,349
Deferred Tax Asset 18 1,455,723 -
Other Assets o 10 1,577,570 372,574
Total Non-current Assets 51,734,626 21,641,955
TOTAL ASSETS 127,843,122 80,116,644
Meeeeeermrrereen?

See accompanying notes




né NOTE 12/31/2006 12/31/2005
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY )
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable i2 10,455,799 4,321,591
"7 Current Portion of Licenses Payable 12 | 126382 | 1012233
" provisions and Tax Liabiiies 13 | 1082042 | 978,719
Current Portion of Deferred Revenues 19 6,648,107 4,735,208
" TYotal Current Liabilies | 18312,330 | 11,047,751
Non-current Liabilities
Provisions, Net of Current Portion 13 62,763 62,763
 Deferred Revenues, Nel of Current Portion — 1g | 6216007 | 3.687199
Convertible Bonds Due lo Related Parties ~ i5 | 38371 50214
Deferred Tax Ligbility - N o . u,18 3,162,332 - i 1260_946“
" Total Non-current Liabilties 9,479,473 5,061,122
Stockholders' Equity 14, 15, 16
Common Stock, € 3.00 Par Value;
Ordinary Shares Authorized (12,729,785 and 11,416,850)
Ordinary Shares Issued (6,715,322 and 6,025,863)
Ordinary Shares Qutstanding (6,686,140 and 5,996,701)
for 2006 and 2005, respectively
Treasury Stock (29,162 and 29,162 shares
for 2006 and 2005 respectively), at Cost 20,135,263 18,066,886
Additional Paid-in Capital | 123878001 | 96412849
Accumulated Other Comprehensive ncome | 1259948 | 877863
Accumulated Deficit (45,321,893) (51,349,827)
Total Stockholders’ Equity 100,051,319 | 64,007,771
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 127,843,122 80,116,644
-

See accompanying notes
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in Stockholders’ Equity (IFRS)

Consolidated Statements of Changes

COMMON STOCK

o SHARES € "
BALANCE AS OF JANUARY 1, 2005 5,438,852 16,316,556
Compensation Related to the Grant of Stock Options and Convertible Bonds
. Exercise of Options anc Convertible Bonds lssued to Related Parties 96878 290,634
_ Exercise of Options from Treasury Stock ssued to Related Parties _:m T
Capital ingrease. Net of Issuance Cost of € 483,253 490,033 1470,399
Other Comprehensive Income: e e
Change in Unrealized Gain on Available-for-sale Securities, .
Net of Deferred Tax L
- foreigr;‘Currency Gain from Consol'rdajion L . o
Net Profit for the Year S B
Comprehensive income
BALANCE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2005 6,025,863 18,077,589
) C:_Jn?pensatign__fielat_ed to the_Grant ofAStoc_:k O_ptiq_n_s and gonvert_i_bleE_or]dE“
" Eercise of Options and Comertole Bonds Issued [0 Rolated Parties 96,561 EXCR
Capital Increase against Contribution in Kind,
_ Net of Issuance Cost of E}Z.OC}O S 208,560 625,680
L Capital Increase, Net of lssuance Cost of € 472,885‘ _____ 3 84,338 _ 1,163,014
O_ther Comprehensive Income:
Change in Unrealized Gain on Available-far-sale Securities,
77777 Net of Deferred Tax -
) _Effects fr_on'] Equity-related @ecogni[ipn of Qeferre_d qug_s o )
. F'or.e.ig-n Carfenc;t_Lo-s,é frorr_1 C_o“nsoﬁdatié;lu S T N
NetProfitfortheYesr T T
Comprehensive Income
BALANCE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2006 6,715,322 20,145,966

See accompanying notes




047 ~——

TREASURY STOC¥K ADDITIONAL REVALUATYION TRANSLATICN AGCUMULATED ! TOTAL STOCK-
PAID-IN CAPITAL RESERVE RESERVE DEFICIT {HOLDERS EQUITY
SHARES € € € € € | €
- i 30,062 (11,033) 78,646,377 403,229 49,553 (56,026,196 | 39,378,486
1,132,104 1,132,104
n_ 1,185,920 o o D 1a76563
P 24 e e e e 3,700
] 15,446,060 | 16,916,468

i
..... - — S J— S i S
) 181,450 | 181,450
LM 7 N Y}
_-“ T e S o 4,_65'5'569'__1 4,676,369
5,101,450
N 29,162 (10,703) 96,412,849 584,679 293,184 (51,349,827) | 64,007,771
e e e e B Y o] L hR50B9T
B ] 2,739,618 3,029,301
| | 7,997,500 8,623,180
". o o o 1547743 R 1};"355,“1"5"}4'
a8 623,420 | 623,420
o o - L (141,309) ' (141,309)
e )
______ B i B o o 6027934 | 6,027,934
6,510,019
B 29,162 (10,703) 123,878,001 1,066,790 293,158 (45,321,893) 100,051,319

-/
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (IFRS)

_m € NOTE 2006 2005
-OPERATING ACTIVITIES o )
Net Profit 6,027,934 4,676,369
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Profit
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciaticn 1,515,975 928,002
Amartization of Intangible Assets 3,435,279 2,696,560
" income Tax Benefit (524,615) (344,817)
" Net Gain on Sales of Financial Assets (667,534 (611,187)
Unrealized Net Loss/(Gain} on Derivative
... Financial Instruments - — (18.372) 336,004
Loss/(Gain) on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment/
Intangible Assets {28,929) 30,188
" Recognition of Deferrad Revenue (15.981.692) | (11.669,191)
mét_n;;k—based Compensa_tion . T 1,242,971 1,132,104
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
_ Accounts Receivable 1,140,530 {624,172)
 Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets - (2.954.579) 1909.014)
- u@ccounts_ﬁayable anc}_ﬁ@visions . 2,060,891 869,890
Licensas Payatle (885,851) (1.09‘6,672) ]
" Other Liabilties ' o 1642,839 | {1,520,771)
.‘_._..I?f.firfd Revenue - _ 20,423,400 “1(12333*770377
. Cash Generated from Operations 16,328,247 4,216,989
Interest Paid 20,480 228,654
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING AGTIVITIES 16,348,727 4,445,643
-~

See accompanying notes
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n€ HOTE 2006 2005
INVESTING ACTIVITIES: o ) B

Purchases of Financial Assets o (33,848,867) (43,317,784}

Proceeds from Sales of Financial Assets i 22,778,680 ) JG‘éIMIA’?S?
_ Purchases of Property, Plant and Equipment (3.548,865) | (625553

Proceeds from Disposals of Property,

Plant and Equipment e e | 38850 | 75914
 Additions to Intangibles (425,931) 173,499)
" Acquisitions, Net of Gash Acqured | (21172502 | (7.069,417)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES 20 {36,178,635) (31,398,354)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from the Issuance of Equity B o 17,103,041 N 173‘?“‘{7&23

Proceeds from the Exercise of Options and
L Convertible Bonds . - _Vm_mli,t‘i_I_’"?-.“ZE“BW

Net of Proceeds and Payments from the Issuance

of Convertible Bonds Granted to Related Parties (EfMFBE}__
™ Purcnases of Derivative Financial nstruments 50| i7s000)
o Proceeds from the Disposal of Deri;f;twes B —6 31,00;5 136,529
. Net Cgst of Sﬂare Jssgance ] } L “AJ_59.L.1.:9§_) N (48325:3}
| NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANGING ACTIVITIES 20 | 19,552,910 | 18,397,783

Effect of Exchange Rate Differences on Cash 25,289 40,759
. Decrease n Cash and Cash Equivalerts __251709) | (8514189)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD 4,017,029 12,531,198
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
END OF THE PERIOD | L2785,320 4,017,029
—

See accompanying notes
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

! ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
| ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BUSINESS AND ORGANIZATION
MeorphoSys AG (the “Company” or “MorphoSys”) is a bio-
technology company using combinatorial biology for drug
discovery with the principal objective of developing and
commercially exploiting new enabling technologies across
a broad scientific spectrum. The Company was founded in
July 1962 as a German limited liability company. In June
1998, MorphoSys became a German stock corparation.

In March 1999, the Company went public on Germany’s
Neuer Markt, the stock exchange designated for high-
growth enterprises. On january 15, 2003, MorphoeSys AG
was admitted to the Prime Standard segment of the
Frankfurt Stock Exchange.

CONSOLIDATED COMPANIES
The Company has five wholly owned subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “MorphoSys Group”:

MorphoSys USA, Inc., was incorperated in the United
States on February 16, 2000. The subsidiary’s purpose
was to assist the Company in the sale ard licensing of
MorphoSys AG products. MorphoSys USA, [nc., substan-
tiaily ceased its operations in November 2002.

MorphoSys [P GmbH was incorperated in Munich, Germany,
on November 6, 200Z. The subsidiary’s purpose is to pur-
chase, maintain and administer certain intangible assets
of the MorphoSys Group. The Company’s operations are
physically located on the premises of MorphoSys AG, and
operations commenced on December 31, 2002.

Serotec Lid. with its subsidiaries Serotec, Inc., Serotec
GmbH and Oxford Biotechnaology Ltd. {together referred
to as the “Serotec Group”) was acquired by MorphoSys in
fanuary 2006 and became a wholly owned subsidiary of
MorphoSys AG. The Serotec Group has been integrated
within MorphoSys's existing AbD segment. The purchase
price of approximately £ 20 million (approx. € 29.3 mil-
lion) was paid in cash (£ 14 million or € 20.5 million) and
the remainder in 208,560 new MorphoSys shares from a
capital increase against contribution in kind.

Serotec Ltd. and Serotec, Inc., were renamed MorphoSys
UK Ltd. and MorphoSys US, Inc., as of January 2007.

In January 2005, MorphoSys acquired Biogenesis Lid,,
Poole, UK, and Biogenesis, Inc., New Hampshire, USA,
for total consideration of £ 5.25 million less net debt of
approximately £ 0.7 million. Biogenesis UK was first re-
named MorphoSys UK Ltd. and in 2007 again renamed
Peoole Real Estate Lid. Biogenesis, Inc., was renamed
MorphoSys US, merged into Serotec, inc. The merged
entity resumed the name MorphoSys US [nc.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The consoiidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2000, were authorized for issuance in accord-
ance with a resolution of the Management Board on Feb-
ruary 6, 2007. The Management Board is represented by
Dr. Simon E. Moroney {Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Dave
Lemus (Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer} and Dr. Marlies Sproll (Chief Scientific Officer).




The Supervisory Board is represented by Dr. Gerald Méller
{Chairman, Chairman of the Remuneration & Nomination
Committee), Prof. Dr. Jirgen Drews (Deputy Chairman,
Remuneration & Nomination Committee, Science & Tech-
nology Committee), Dr, Daniel Camus (Audit Committee),
Dr. Metin Colpan {(Remuneration & Nomination Committee,
Science & Technology Committee), Prof. Dr. Andreas
Pliickthun (Chairman of the Science & Technology Com-
mittee) and Dr. Geoffrey N. Vernon (Chairman of the
Audit Committee). The Supervisory Beard is empowered
to amend the financial statements after the resoluticn of
the Management Board.

The registered offices of MorphaSys AG are located at
Lena-Christ-Str. 48 in 82152 Martinsried/Planegg,
Germany.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A) BASIS OF ADOPTION

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements

in conformity with the Internaticnal Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) requires management to make certain
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts re-
ported in the consclidated financizl statements and accom-
panying notes. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied
consistently to all perieds presented in these consolidated
financial statements.

IFRS 2 “SHARE-BASED PAYMENT"

[FRS Z “Share-hased Payment” requires an expense to be
recognized where the Group buys goods or services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares {“equity-settled
transactions”), or in exchange for other assets equivalent
in value to a given number of shares or rights over shares
(“cash-settled transactions”). The main impact of IFRS 2

on the Group refers to the expense asseciated with employ-
ees’ and directors’ share options and other share-based
incentives by using an option pricing model.

091 —

In accordance with IFRS 2.54, the Group has applied IFRS 2
to equity-setiled awards granted on or after January 1,
1999. [n accordance with IFRS 2.56, options granted prior
to January 1, 1999, are therefore not expensed. All infor-
mation is nonetheless disclosed in line with IFRS 2.44 and
2.45. Further details are given in the Notes to the Consoli-
dated Financial Statements — sections 15 and 16.

IFRS 3 “BUSINESS COMBINATIONS,” IAS 36 *IMPAIRMENT COF
ASSETS” AND |AS 3B “INTANGIBLE ASSETS"

IFRS 3 applies to accounting for business combinations
for which the agreement date is on or after March 31,
2004. IFRS 3 requires that all business combinations are
accounted for using the purchase method, whereby iden-
tifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are meas-
ured initially at their fair value. Any excess of the pur-
chase price over the amounts allocated is recognized as
goodwill. The goodwill is subject to a regular review for
possihle impairment.

The Company determined the accounting for business
combinations in 2006 only provisionally. It is currently
performing a purchase price allocation. The outcome may
result in an adjustment of the goodwill following IFRS
3.62; any adjustments to the provisional values will be
recognized within twelve months of the acquisition date
{IFRS 3.69).
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The useful economic life of intangible assets is generally
assessed at the level of individual assets as having either a
finite or an indefinite life. The Company has not identified
any assets with an indefinite life. Intangible assets with a
finite life have been amortized over their usefui life. Amor-
tization periods and methods for intangible assets with fi-
nite useful economic lives are reviewed annually or earlier
where an indicator of impairment exists.

Receivables, liabilities, provisions, income and expenses,
and profits between consolidated companies are eliminated
on consolidation.

EARLY ADOPTION OF OTHER INTERNATIGNAL FINANGIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Company has not yet applied IFRS 7, which will be effec-
tive for annual periods on or after January 1, 2007. The ap-
plication will not have significant effects on the entity’s
financial statements.

B) STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The accompanying consolidated firancial statements have
been prepared in accordance with the [nternational Finan-
cial Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted by the Internation-
al Accounting Standards Board (IASB), London, in con-
sideration of interpretations of the Standing Interpretations
Committee (SIC), the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and the IFRS adopted
by the Eurnpean Commission.

The consclidated financial statements of the Company for
the year ended December 31, 2000, comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “MoerphoSys
Group”™).

C) BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The financial statements are presented in euros unless
otherwise stated. They are prepared on the historical cost
basis except that the following assets and liabilities are
siated at their fair value: derivative financial instruments,
available-for-sale financial assets and certain licenses
(Cambridge Antibody Technology Ltd. [CAT] and XOMA
[reland Ltd.). Al figures in this report are rounded either
to the nearest euro or thousands of euros.

TAS 27 “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements”
shall be applied for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2005. The Company decided to adopt [AS 27 for
all financial statemenis beginning January 1, 2003. The
accounting policies have been applied consistently by
Group entities in accordance with [AS 27.28.

D) BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
Intercompany balances and transactions and any unreal-
ized gains arising from intercompany transactions are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial state-
ments ir accordance with [AS 27.24. Unrealized losses arg
eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains. Please
see the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements -
section 1A, IFRS 3 “Business Combinations,” IAS 36
“Impairment of Assets” and IAS 38 “Intangible Assets”
for further details.

E) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
IAS 21 “The Effects of Changes in Foreigh Exchange Rates”
defines the accounting for transactions and balances in
foreign currencies. Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rate as of the date of
the transaction. Foreign exchange differences arising on
these translations are recognized in the statement of oper-
ations. On the balance sheet date, assets and liabilities are
translated at the closing rate, and income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rate for the period.
Any foreign exchange differences deriving from these
translations are recorded in the statement of operations.
Any further foreign exchange differences on a Group level
are recognized in other comprehensive income (equity).

F} INFEREST

MorphoSys uses interest rates to calculate fair values and
discount certain liability. For stock-based compensation
calculation, MorphoSys uses the interest rate of a German
government bond with a duration of two years at grant
date.

To discount certain obligations in connection with the settie-
ment agreement with CAT, the Company used a 13% inter-
est rate to discount its liability.




G) DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge
its exposure to foreign exchange rate risks. In accordance
with [AS 39.9, all derivative financial instruments are held
for trading and recognized initially at cost. Subsequent to
initial recognition, derivative financial instruments are
stated at fair value, which is their quoted market price as
of the balance sheet date. Since the derivatives were not
tested for hedge accounting, any resulting gatn or loss is
recognized in the statement of operations. According to
the Group’s foreign currency hedging policy, receivables
which are definite and collectable within a twetve-month
period will be hedged.

H) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Company considers all cash at bank, in hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less to be cash or cash equivalents. The Com-
pany invests its cash in deposits with two major German
financial institutions, namely HypoVereinsbank and
Deutsche Bank.

I) FINANCIAL ASSETS
All financial assets are initially recognized at cost, being
the fair value of the consideration given and including
acquisition charges associated with the investment.

The Company accounts for its investments in debt and
equity securities in accordance with IAS 39. The manage-
ment determines the proper classifications of financial
assets at the time of purchase and re-evaluates such des-
ignations as of each balance sheet date. As of December
31, 2006, and as of December 31, 2005, the financial as-
sets held by the Group have been c¢lassified as available for
sale. These financial assets are recognized or derecognized
hy the Group on the date it commits to purchase or sell the
financial assets. After initial recognition, available-for-sale
financial assets are measured at fair value, with any result-
ing gain or loss reported directly in other comprehensive
income within equity until the financial assets are sold,
callected or otherwise disposed of, or until the financial
assets are determined to be impaired, at which time the
cumulative loss is reported in the statement of operations.

The Company considers a decline in the fair value of
availabie-for-sale financial assets which is longer than six
months in duration to be deemed other than temporary un-
less specific facts and circumstances indicate otherwise.
If, in a subsequent period, the fair value increases, the im-
pairment loss is reversed with the amount of reversal in-
cluded in other comprehensive income for equity securi-
ties and in the statement of operations for debt securities.

J) ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are stated at their cost less any allow-
ance for doubtful accounts (see below) and impairment
losses (see accounting policy N).

The allowance for doubtfi:l accounts is based on the man-
agement’s assessment of the collectibtlity of specific cus-
tomer accounts and the aging of the accounts receivable.
If there is deterioration in a major customer’s creditworthi-
ness or if actual defaults are higher than the historical ex-
perience, the management’s estimates of the recoverability
of amounts due te the Company could be adversely affected.
Based on the management'’s assessment, allowances in the
amount of € 189,103 as of December 31, 2006, and € 41,461
as of December 31, 2005, were recognized. The Company
does require collateral from customers for accounts receiv-
ahle in the AbD segment. The amount of collaterals held

as of December 31, 2006, was not material.
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K) INVENTORY
[nventories are stated on a FIFO hasis at the lower of manu-
facturing/acquisition costs and net realizabie value. Manufac-
turing costs of self-produced inventories comprise all costs
which are directly attributable and an appropriate portion
of overheads. Inventories can be subclassified into consum-
ables, work in progress and finished goods. Work in prog-
ress and consumables account for 2% and 1% of tetal values
respectively.

L) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accu-
mulated depreciation (see also the Notes to the Consclidat-
ed Financial Statements - section 8} and impairment losses
(see accounting policy N). Replacements and improvements
are capitalized while general repairs and maintenance are
charged to expenses as incurred. Assets are depreciated
over their expected useful lives using the straight-line
method (three to five years). Leasehold improvements are
depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets
(ten to fifty years).

M} INTANGIBLE ASSETS

MA) RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development
costs are expensed as incurred (IAS 38.5 and IAS 38.11-
38.23).

MB) PATENT COSTS
Patents obtained by the Group are stated at cost less accu-
mulated amortization {see below) and impairment losses
(see accounting policy N). Capitalized costs principatly
relate to the costs of legal counsel. Patent costs are amor-
tized on a straight-line basis over the lower of their esti-
mated useful life {ten years) and the remaining patent
term. Amortization commences when the patent is tssued.
The Company’s patents covering its proprietary HuCAL
technology were granted in Australia in October 2000, in
the United States of America in October 2001 and in Eurcpe
in june 2002, Further patent applications are pending in
Canada and Japan.

MC) LICENSE RIGHTS
The Company acquired license rights by making up-front
license payments, annual maintenance fees and sublicense
payments to third parties. The Company amortizes up-front
license payments on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life of the acquired license (ten years). The amorti-
zation period and the amortization method are reviewed at
each balance sheet date (1AS 38.104). Arnual maintenance
fees are amortized over the term of each annual agreement.
Sublicense payments are amortized on a straight-iine basis
over the life of the contract or the estimated useful life of
the collaboration for those contracts without a stipulated
term.

MD) SOFTWARE

Software is stated at cost less accumulated amertization
{sce below) and impairment losses (see accaunting policy N).
Amortization is charged to the statement of operations on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of three
years. Software is amortized from the date it is available
for use.




ME) KNOW-HCGW AND CUSTOMER LISTS

MorphoSys established a purchase price allocation {I'PA}
required by IFRS 3 “Business Combinations.” Intangible
assets identified consist of customer lists, know-how as
well as customer relationships and distributors.

MF) GOODWILL
The goodwill recognized is partly attributable to expected
synergies to be achieved as well as to the skills of the ac-
quired workforce.

MG) SUBSEQUENT EXPENDITURE
Subsequent expenditure on capitalized intangible assets

is only capitatized when it increases the future econcmic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.
All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

N) IMPAIRMENT
The management evatuates the carrying amount of the
Group’s assets for potential impairment at each balance
sheet date or whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not
be recoverable, If any indication of impairment exists, the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment
loss is recognized whenever the recoverable amount is
less than the carrying amount of an asset. Impairment
losses are recognized in the statement of operations.

The recoverable amount of an asset is defined as the high-
er of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted fo their présent value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of

the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset,

For an asset that does not generate independent cash in-
ftows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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An impairment less in respect of a receivable is reversed
if the subsequent increase in the recoverable amount can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the im-
pairment loss was recognized. With respect to other
assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recover-
able amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does nct exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment Joss
had been recognized.

0) TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade and other payables are stated at their repayment
amounts, Payables with repayment dates exceeding one
year are discounted to their net present values.

Pavables of uncertain timing or amount are shown as pro-
visions.

P} CONVERTIBLE BONDS
The Company issued convertible bonds to the Supervisory
Board, Management Board and employees of the Group
under application of IAS 32 and 1AS 39. In accerdance with
IAS 32.28, the equity portion of the bond has to be sepa-
rated and presented as additional paid-in capital. The equi-
ty component is deducted from the fair value of the bond.
The remaining vatue is recognized as stock-based compen-
sation. The Company applies the provisions of IFRS 2
“Share-based Payment” for all convertible bonds granted
to the Supervisory Board, Managetment Board and employ-
ees of the Group.
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Q) REVENUE RECOGNITION
The Company’s revenues include technology access fees
and fees derived from research and development collabora-
tion agreements predominaiely with companies based in
the United States.

Revenues related to nonrefundable technology access fees,
suhscription fees and license fees are deferred and recog-
nized on a straight-line basis over the relevant periods of
the agreement, generally the research term or the estimat-
ed useful life of the collaboration for those contracts with-
out a stipulated term unless a more accurate means of rec-
ognizing revenue is available. Research and development
collaboration service fees are recognized in the pericd
when the services are provided. Milestone revenues are
recognized upon achievement of certain criteria.

[nvestment grants from governmental agencies for the sup-
port of specific research and development projects for which
cash has been received are recorded as revenues to the
extent the related expenses have been incurred. Under the
terms of the investment grants, the governmental agencies
generally have the right o audit the use of the payments
received hy the Company.

In accordance with 1AS 18.21, 18.25 and 1AS 20.18, the
total consideration in revenue arrangements with muitiple
detiverables will be allocated among the separately identi-
fiable components based on their respective fair values
under application of TAS 18.2G, and the applicable revenue
recognition criteria will be considered separately for each
of the separate components.

Deferred revenue represents revenues received but not yet
earned as per the terms of the contracts. Grant revenues
in 2006 amcunted to € 0.2 million {2005: € 0.4 million).

R) EXPENSES

RA) COST OF GOODS SOLD

Cast of goods sold comprises the cost of manufactured prod-
ucts and the acquisition cost of purchased goods which have
been sold.

RB) STOCK-BASED GOMPENSATION
The Company applies the provisions of [FRS 2 “Share-
based Payment” which abligates the Company to record
the estimated fair value for stock options and other awards
at the measurement date as a compensation expense over
the period in which the employees render the services
associated with the award. Stock-based compensation ex-
penses for the full year 2006 amounted to € 1,242,971 and
were shown in COGS, §5,G&A and R&D expenses for the
period. Stock-hased compensation expense of € 1,132,104
for the full year 2005 was reclassified to cost of goods sold
(€ 29,293), sales, general and administrative expenses

(€ 681,142) as well as research and development expenses
(€ 421,669).

RC) OPERATING LEASE PAYMENTS

Payments made under operating leases are recognized in
the statement of operations on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.

§) INTEREST INCOME

Interest income is recognized in the statement of opera-
tions as it occurs, taking into account the effective yield
on the asset.

T) INTEREST EXPENSE .
Borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.



U) INCOME TAXES

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises cur-
rent and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in the state-
ment of operations except to the extent that it relates to
items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is rec-
ognized in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable in-
come for the year, using tax rates enacied or substantially
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to
tax payable with respect to previocus years.

Deferred tax is calculated using the balance sheet iiability
method, providing for temporary differences hetween the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial re-
porting purposes and the amounts used for taxation pur-
poses. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the
expected manner of realization or settlement of the carry-
ing amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enact-
ed or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax as-
sets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be realized.

2 | SEGMENT REPORTING

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Greup
that is engaged in providing products or services and that
is subject to risks and returns that are different from those
of other segments.
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Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s
busiress and geographical segments. The primary format,
business segments, is based on the Group's management
and internal reporting structure. Segment results and as-
sets include items directly attributable to a segment as
well as those that can be allecated on a reasonable basis.

General and administrative expenses are allocated to the
respective business segments by applying an allocation
along the head count. Intangibles attributable to both seg-
ments are allocated along revenues.

The Group consists of the following main business seg-
ments:

THERAPEUTIC ANTIBODIES

MorphoSys possesses one of the leading technologies in
the generation of human antibody therapeutics and be-
spoke antibody research projects, The Company makes
use of its technology in collahorations with international
pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies, as well as
on its own account.

ANTIBODIES DIRECT — ABD
The AbD segment leverages MorphoSys’s core technologi-
cal capabilities in the design and manufacture of anti-
bodies for research purposes. [t commercializes the
HuCAL technology, focusing on the custom generation of
research antibodies for partners on an individual basis.

GEDGRAPHIGAL SEGMENTS

In presenting information on the basis of geographical seg-
ments, segment revenues are based on the geographical
location of the customers. Segment assets are based on the
geographical location of the asseis.
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THERAPEUTIC

ANTIBODIES " ABD UNALLOCATED CONSOLIDATED
in 000’s € 2006 2005 2005 2005 2006 2005 2006 . 2005
REVENUES 34,713 29,139 18,318 4,348 53,031 33,487
Cost of Goods Sold 7,979 2,543 7.979 2,543
SEGMENT RESULT 16,589 14,778 | (3,428) (2.911) | (6,985 | (5707) 6176 | 6160
Interest Income - i S ) 60 108
‘_‘_I_nﬂt‘?_[est Expense 143 - 277
Othe; Expenses, Net o 807 o “I-;;:?m
TOTAL PROFIT BEFORE TAXES 5,286 5,112
Income Tax/
(Income Tax Expense; 742 (£36)
et pROFIT | T | T eo28 | asre
Current Assets 1,895 2,742 8,649 1,360 65,564 54,373 76,108 | 58,475
_Non-current Assets a 2,064 1121 36,967 8,957 | 12,704 | 11,564 51,735 21,642
TOTAL SEGMENT ASSETS | 3,959 | 3,863 | 45616 | 10,317 | 78,268 | 65937 | 127,843 | 80117
6,476 4,704 4,426 363 7410 5,981 18,312 11,048
Ce216 1 3687 | 2483 | 940 | 781 | 434 9480 | 5061
LIABILITIES 12,692 8,391 6,909 1,303 8,191 6,415 27,792 16,109
____Capitai Expenditure 2,128 554 1,863 128 13 20 4,005 699
Depraciation & Amortization 1,735 | 1944 1,868 | 1223 651 | 458 4,254 3,625
__ (. J ./

A segment resuit is defined as segment revenues less op-
erating segment expenses.

The following table shows the split of the Company’s assets

by geographical segments:

The following table shows the split of the Company’s con- i 000's € 2006 2005
solidated revenues by geographical markets: "'Germany k ) 117,338 77,579
Ger - $.040 1,957
USA 1,465 581
in 000's & 2006 | 2005 TOTAL ASSETS 127,843 80,117
turcpe and ~_. . J
Rest of the World 33,096 19,462
“USA and Ganads 1593 1025
totaL 53,031 33,487
—




The following table shows the split of the Company’s capital

expenditure by geographical segments:

N in 000's € ~ 2006 ~ 2005
" Germany 2,154 630
UK 1,808 gS
usA a1
TQTAL 4,005 699
M
3 I CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
in 000's € 2006 2005
Bank Balances and
Cash in Hand 3,577 3,560
_Term Deposis | 498 | T
Restricted
JLash | By o250
CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,765 4,017
~

4 l FENANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets consist of the foilowing as of December 31,
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2006 and 2005:
GROSS
UNREALIZED HOLDMNG
v REALIZED

HOLDING MARKET
in 000's € MATURITY COSsT GAINS LOSSES GAINS VALUE

DECEMBER 31, 2006
D8 Money Market Funds daily 61,598 1,888 - - 63,486
Restrictad Cash (1,225)
62,261

DECEMBER 31, 2005
DB Moeney Market Funds daily 48,637 G305 - - 49,542
Restricted Cash -
49,542




— 000

The gross unrealized holding gains of € 1,887,656 for the
year ended December 31, 2006, and € 905,364 for the year
ended Decernber 31, 2003, were recorded as a separate com-
ponent of stockholders’ equity (revaluation reserve). [n 2006,
the Graoup recorded gains of € 667,533 in the statement of
operations on the sale of financial assets, which had previ-
cusly been recognized in equity (2005; € 611,187},

For further details on accounting for financial assets, see
also the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements —
section 11 .

|
5 ' ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

All accounts receivable are non-interest-bearing and are
generally due on a 30- to 45-day term. On December 31,
2006 and 2003, accounts receivable included unbilled
amounts of € 133,333 and € 145,648 respectively.

é ‘ OTHER RECEIVABLES

According to the Gompany's hedging policy, definite
foreign currency receivahles which are colleciable within
a twetve-month period are reviewed for hedging and
shown as other receivables with their fair values. Starting
2003, MorphoSys entered into foreign currency options
and forward contracts to hedge foreign exchange exposure
related to US dollar accounts receivable.

As of December 31, 2006, two option contracts were
outstanding in the notional amount of € 1,562,500 or
USS 1,921,875 (2005: € 0 or US$ ) with a maturity
between January and February 2007. Therefore, the fair
market value as of December 31, 2006, was € 106,334
(2005: € 0). This was recorded in other receivables an

the balance sheet. Changes in fair value were recognized
as other income and included in foreign exchange losses
of € 1.2 million for the fiscal year 2006. As of December 31,
2006, unsettled contract premium for derivatives entered
into in January 20046 amounted to € 75,700 (2005: € 138,000).

'7 | PREPAID EXPENSES, OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
| AND INVENTORIES

Prepaid expenses mainly include prepaid sublicense fees
of € 0.1 million as of December 31, 2006 (2005; € 0.1 mil-
lion), and other prepayments in the amount of € 1.2 million
as of December 31, 2006 (2005: € 0.9 million).

Other current assets amount to € 0.8 million, mainly in-
cluding receivables in connection with sales tax (2005:
€ 0.6 million).

Inventories of € 3.5 million are mainly located in Oxford,
UK (2005: €0.5 million).
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- 8 ! PROPERTY, PLANT
.l ‘ AND EQUIPMENT, NET
.l OFFICE AND FURNITURE
LAND AND LABDRATORY AND
in 000's € BUILDUNGS™ o EQUIPMENT n FIXTURES TOTAL
m Cost
m JANUARY 1,2006 T T T 247 5334 1881 9462
Additions 1,487 2,322 613 4,422
o e T e T e e
Foreign Exchange Variance {14} - (10} (24)
i DECEMBER 31, 2006 3,023 7,399 2,219 12,641
ll Accumulated Depreciation
JANUARY 1, 2006 10 3,783 - 972 4,765
ll Depreciation Charge for the Year 66 909 229 1,204
Write-Offs for the Year 57 60 204 321
| m Disposals (33} (247) 2 1545)
|
| 'I Foreign Exchange Variance - 1 1 2
| DECEMBER 31, 2006 100 4,506 1,141 5,747
n Carrying Amount ) -
] CjANUARY 12006 2237 1551 909 4,697
DECEMBER 31, 2006 2,923 2,893 1,078 6,894
||
Cost
ll JANUARY 1, 2005 - 4,986 1,345 6,331
| Additions 2,247 629 536 3,412
M Disposals o T I o
' DECEMBER 31, 2005 2,247 5,334 1,881 o 9,462
B
.. Accumulated Depreciation
JANUARY 1, 2005 - 3,274 726 4,000
ll Depreciation Charge for the Year 10 672 246 928
Disposals - 163 - 163
ll DECEMBER 31, 2005 10 3,783 972 4,765
l .l Carrying Amount
JANUARY 1, 2005 . 1,712 619 2,331
[ ] DECEMBER 31, 2005 2,237 1,651 909 4,697
|
‘ ll * Including reclassifications to current assets held for sale of € 0.7 million
|
N
|
N
|
|
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Property, plant and equipment of the Serotec subsidiaries
are included in additions and disposals, as these items
were added to the MorphoSys Group on january 11, 2006.
Currency translation effects for property, plant and equip-
ment held in foreign currency were minor as of December
31, 2006.

As of December 31, 2006, land and building, located in
Oxford, UK, as well as Brentwood, New Hampshire, USA,
in the total amownt of € 664,108 were reclassified as held
for sale and included in the current assets section of the
AbD segment.

The depreciation charge is included in the following line
items of the statement of operations:

in 000’s € 2006 | 2005 N
Research
and Development 625 568

Sales, Generat
and Administrative
(Depreciation) 528 321

Sales, General
and Administrative

(Write-0ff} 37 -

- Cost of Gooeds Sold 48 39

TOTAL: 1,518 928
N—

As of December 31, 2006, minor foreign exchange effects
were recognized for the assets acquired and accounted for
as other comprehensive income.

For more detailed information, see Appendix 1.




9 | INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET

063 —

KNOW-
HOW AND
SOFT- CUSTOMER
in 000's € PATENTS LICENSES WARE LISTS GOODWILL TarvaL
Cost - o N
CjaNuARY 12006 7 3795 1240 1,392 2,313 4137 23,777
_Adoions _ S0 805 27T adgs 22783 27909
Disp‘;sals e e e e (4).... - ) e T : (4) .
Foreié‘ﬁ—-Exchang;"Variance-kru77% T T o T 525)7“ o 83 -5:
DECEMBER 31, 2006 3,845 12,741 1,669 6,478 27,003 51,736
Accumulated Amortization
JANUARY 1, 2006 1,434 3,683 1,260 827 - 7,204
Amortization for the Year 461 1,286 132 816 ) - 2,695
Write-offs for the Year - - 33 - - 33
Disposals - (4) - - - 4)
Foreign Exchange Variance - - - - - -
DECEMBER 31, 2006 1,895 4,965 1,425 1,643 . 9,928
Carrying Amount
JANUARY 1, 2006 2,361 8,457 132 1,486 4,137 16,573
DEGEMBER 31, 2006 1,950 7,776 244 4,835 27,003 41,808
Cost
 JANUARY 1, 2005 o378 tzid0 1366 - -z
Additions: - - :7 ; ) ?9 o ;"._A_ ._'__..,.._._u._..i{?...,. . 2,51377“ o 41 3777 6534
Disposals T R B 19 LT T R 19
DECEMBER 31, 2065 3,795 12,140 1,392 2,313 4,137 23,777;—"‘
Accumulated Amortization
JANUARY 1, 2005 976 2,469 1,078 - - 4,523
Amortization for the Year 458 1,214 198 827 - 2,697
Disposals - - 16 T - 16
DECEMBER 31, 2005 1,434 3,683 1,260 827 - 7,204
Carrying Amaount
JANUARY 1, 2005 2,790 9,671 288 - - 12,749
DECEMBER 31, 2005 2,361 8,457 132 7,486 4,137 16,573
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Intangibles of the Serotec Group are included in additions
and disposals of the current year, since these items were
acquired by MorphoSys on January i1, 2006. Currency
translaticn effects for intangibles held in foreign currency
amounted to € 0.1 million as of December 31, 2006.

The amortization charge is included in the {ollowing line
items of the statement of operations:

T
in 0CY's € 2006 2005

Research and
Development 203 2,190

Sales, General
and Administrative
{Amariization) 505 507

Sales, General
and Administrative
{(Write-off) 33 -
Cost of Goods Soid 67 -

2,736 2,697
—

As of December 31, 2004, minor foreign exchange effects
were recognized for the assets acquired and accounted for
as other comprehensive income.

The Company has entered into the following license agree-
ments covering certain patented technologies which are
capitalized (noncapitalized license agreements have not
been disclosed in detail):

SCA VENTURES, INC., USA .
In December 1999, the Company concluded a nonexclusive
product-derived license agreement with SCA Ventures,
[nc., USA, in which the Company obtained a nonexclusive
license from SCA Ventures in order to design, discover,
develop, make, use, sell, offer for sale and import
HuCAL-derived products under SCA Ventures’ patent
rights to single-chain antibodies. The Company may use
SCA Ventures' licensed technologies for the research

and discovery of novel therapeutic agents and targets and
may sublicense the technologies to its commercial partners.

The Company may terminate this agreement for any rea-
son upoen six months' prior written notice to SCA Ventures.
The Company pays an up-front license fee in addition to
annual maintenance and transfer fees,

As of December 31, 2006, the license had a remaining amor-
tization period of three years.

BIOSITE DIAGNOSTICS, INC., USA

[n January 2000, the Company signed a collaboration
agreement with Biosite Diagnostics, Inc., under which the
Company received a rovalty-bearing, nonexclusive, world-
wide license to patents owned by Biosite and the XOMA
Corporation covering certain technologies relating to the
display and screening of multi-chain antibodies. The Com-
pany may use the licensed technologies for research and
discovery of novel therapeutic agents and targets, and may
sublicense the technologies to its commercial partners.
Unless terminated earlier, the term of this agreement shall
be the later of the expiration of the parties’ respective
obligations to pay royaities and the expiration of the last
patent right licensed by one party to the other. The Com-
pany pays an up-front technology access fee in addition

to annual maintenance and transfer fees.

As of December 31, 2006, the license had a remaining
amortization period of three vears.

GENENTECH, INC., USA

In May 2000, the Company concluded a license agreement
with Genentech, Inc., granting the Company rights under
Genentech’s patenis relating to the monovalent phage
display screening technolegy. The Company may use the
licensed technologies for research and discovery of novel
therapeutic agents and targets, and may sublicense the
technology to its commercial partners. The Company pays
an up-front technology access fee in addition to annual
maintenance and transfer fees.

As of December 31, 2004, the license had a remaining
amortization period of four years.




XOMA IRELAND LTD., IRELAND
In February 2002, the Company concluded a cross-license
agreement for antibody-related technologies with XOMA
Ireland Ltd. Pursuant to the agreement, MorphoSys paid

€ 1.1 million to XOMA with a second payment of € 4.6
million due September 2002. At the Company’s option,

the second installment could be paid in cash or with new
shares of the Company’s comtmon stock equivalent to € 5.5
million. The Company recorded € 2.5 million as a charge
to research and development expenses in the year 2002.
The remaining € 3.2 million represents the value of the
license received. [t has been capitalized as an intangible
asset and will be amortized over its expected useful life

of ten years.

In October 2002, the Company exercised the option to pay
the second instaliment with 363,466 new shares of its
common stack, which was deiermined with reference to
the market price of the Company’s common stock at the
time of the notice. The Company recorded a charge to in-
terest expense of € 0.7 million at the time the shares were
issued in May 2003 as a consequence of exercising this
aption.

As of December 31, 2006, the license had a remaining
amortization period of six years.

CAMBRIDGE ANTIBODY TECHNOLOGY LTD. {CAT}, CAMBRIDGE, UK
In December 2002 and effective July 2003, the Company
entered into a license and settlement agreement with CAT.
The settlement agreement covers MorphoSys’s past, pre-
sent and future use as well as the commercialization of all
versions of its HuCAL libraries, and all patents in the on-
going disputes between the two companies. This includes
the litigation in the United States regarding CAT's Griffiths,
McCafferty, Winter 11 and Winter/Lerner/Huse patents, as
well as oppositions launched by MorphoSys at the European
Patent Office against CAT's Winter 1] and McCafferty patents.

As of December 31, 2006, the ticense had a remaining
amortization pericd of seven years.
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CRUCELL N.V,, THE NETHERLANDS
In August 2006, MerphoSys AG signed a second PER.C6%
license agreement with Dutch biotechnology company
Crucell N.V. and a bicpharmaceutical manufacturing agree-
ment with its technology partner DSM Biologics. The license
agreements allow MorphoSys to use the PER.C6® cell line
in the production of clinical-grade material for the devel-
opment of its proprietary therapeutic antibody program
MOR103. Production of clinical-grade material is a rele-
vant step to keep to the timeline for this project.

As of December 31, 2006, the license had a remaining
amortization period of ten vears,

For further information, see Appendix 1.

].O " OTHER ASSETS

The Company has classified certain items in other assets
that are not available for use in its operations as restricted
cash. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company
had commitments of € 1,475,182 and € 250,000 for guar-
antees issued as well as € 38,371 and € 50,214 respectively
for convertible bonds issued to emplovees.

]. 1 . PRELIMINARY PURCHASE PRICE ALLOCATION

MorphoSys established a purchase price allocation {PPA)
required by [FRS 3 “Business Combinations” under [FRS
accounting. The Company assigned PricewaterhouseCoopers
for identification and valuation of assets acquired. IFRS
permits the adjustment of fair value amounts identified
within twelve months post-acquisition without effecting
the Group's profits.
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|

Additional tangible assets in land and huilding as well
as in inventories were identified and valued accordingly.

Intangible assets identified consisted of customer lists,
know-how as well as customer relationships and dis-
tributors.

The PPA had the following effect on Group accounts:

SEROTEC GROUP — NET ASSETS

SERCTEC GROUP RECOGNIZED FAER VALUE
Net Assets as of January 11, 2606 - in 000's C VALUE ADIUSTMENT FAIR VALUE
P
Cash and Cash Equivaients ) o R e 33z
Jrade ana Otver Recevebles ol 0 - 1,530
fnventories 3017 1,088 4,105
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net 364 ' 364
Land and Buildings, Net " ags gz a7
Licenses, Net T T T T T e
Software, Net 79 - 79
Customer Lists - 2,451 2,451
Know-how and Unpatented Technology - 1,754 1,754
QOther Assets 345 - 345
Trade and Other Payables . {2,633) - (2,633)
Deferred Taxes ) T (1,853) {1,853)
NET IDENTIFIABLE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 3,733 3,622 7,355
Goodwill on Acquisition 22,797
CONSIDERATION PAID" ' 30,152
Thereof Satisfied in Equity . 8,655
Cash (Acquired) 332
NET CASH OUTFLOW 21,165

* Advisors’ fees amounting to € 1.1 million included




As of December 31, 2006, goodwill was tested as required
by [AS 36.134. On the basis of the cash generating unit,
the AbD segment, the value in use was determined io be
reasonably higher than the carrying amount. Therefore,
o detailed sensitivity analysis was deemed necessary.
Based on the updated outleok to cash flows for the up-
coming years, the value in use was calculated as follows:
beta factor of 1.3, income tax rate of 36%, WACC of 9.9%
and a conservative growth rate of perpetual annuity.

The values assigned to the assumptions represent Man-
agement’s estimates of future trends and are based on in-
ternal planning scenarios as well as external sources.

In the year 2004, the subsidiaries acquired contributed
revenues of € 13.7 million as well as & net loss of € 0.5
million to the consolidated net profit.

|
I
1 2 | ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Accounts payable are nen-interest-bearing and are nermal-
ly settled within 30 days. License payables are partly set-
tled within 30 days. License payables which were expected
to be settled after more than twelve months were discounted
to their net present value applying an interest rate of 13%.

The residual maturity of liabilities is listed in the table
below:

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 33,

in000's € 2006 2005
Accounts Payable 3,326 344
_Accrued Expenses 8876 3617
Other Liabilities 5e b a6l

of which Taxes 6700 13
of which Related
___ o Sccial Security I o
TOTI-\hL‘W T o 10,456 4,322
e

067 ——

Accounts payable include accruals, which mainly contain
accrued expenses for personnel payments of € 1.8

million {2005; € 0.6 million), Expenses for outstanding in-
voices include € 1.5 million mainly for license compensation
{2005: € 1.3 million), € 0.2 million for Supervisory Board
mermbers’ compensation (2005: € 0.2 million), € 0.2 mil-
lion for audit fees and costs related thereto (2005: € 0.1
million) and € 0.2 million for legal services (2005: € 0.5
million).

At the Company’s Annual Shareholders’ Meeting in May
2008, the Supervisory Board was authorized to appoint
KPMG Deutsche Treuhand-Gesellschaft Aktiengesetlschaft
Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft as its auditor, In 2006
and 2005, the auditing company and its partner companies
within the international KPMG network were remunerated
by MorphoSys in the amount of € 303,353 and € 280,173
{thereof € 172,824 and € 213,519 to KPMG Deutsche Treu-
hand-Gesellschaft Aktiengeselischaft Wirtschaftsprifungs-
gesellschaft), including audit fees of € 185,915 (2005

< 121,363) and fees for other services of € 117,438 (2005;
£ 158,810). Accrued expenses for audit fees in the amount
of € 159,419 (2005: € 79,000) are included in these figures.

f
|
1 3 I PROVISIONS AND TAX LIABILITIES

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company recorded
provisions of € 1,144,805 and € 1,041,482 respectively.

Provisions for taxes mainly comprise expenses for income
tax, whereas other obligations mainly include provisions
for legal disputes. Both items remain uncertain with re-
spect to their amounis as of December 31, 2006, and are
expected to be settled in 2007.
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Provisions changed during the fiscal year 2006 as follows:

1 Codrs € 01/01/2006 ADDITIONS UTILIZED RELEASED 12/31,/2006 N
" Taxes ) 780 i 919 - 1,004
‘Other Obligations 2 VT T
Sow T T T T T e 18 100 23 1,145

Provisions of the Serotec Group are included in additions
and disposals of the reporting vear. The Serctec Group had
no provisions at the acquisition date of January 11, 2006.

i
]. 4 ' STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

COMMON STOCK

On December 31, 2006, the commeon stock of the Company
excluding treasury shares was € 20,145,966. This repre-
sented an increase of € 2,068,377 compared to December
31, 2005, when the balance was € 18,077,589, Each share
of common stock is entitled to one vote. An increase of

€ 625,680, or 208,560 shares, arose as a result of a capital
increase against contribution in kind in connection with
the Serotec acquisition executed on January i1, 2004,

A capital increase executed on March 29, 2006, increased
common stock by € 1,§53,014, or 384,338 shares. Through
the conversion and exercise of 96,561 convertible bonds
and options issued to employees, common stock increased
hy an additional € 289,683 in 2006.

On December 31, 2005, the comman stack of the Company
was € 18,077,589, An increase in the number of shares of
€ 1 470,399, or 490,133 shares, was the result of a capital
increase executed on March 15, 2005, Through the conver-
sion and exercise of 96,878 convertible bonds and options
issued to employees, common stock increased by an addi-
tional € 290,634 in 2005.

On December 31, 2006, treasury shares totaling € 10,703
(29,162 shares) remained unchanged compared to Decem-
ber 31, 2005.

AUTHORIZED CAPITAL

On January 11, 2006, 208,560 shares of Authorized Capi-
tal [ were issued for a capital increase against contribu-
tion in kind in connection with the Serotec acquisition.

On March 29, 2006, 384,338 shares of Authorized Capital
1 were issued for a capital increase against contribution
in kind.

On May 17, 2006, the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting
authorized the Company to increase Authorized Capital [
by 526,788 shares to create a maximum of 2,493,769
new shares of Authorized Capital I (December 31, 2005:
2,175,541 shares).

Also approved was an increase to Authorized Capital I
of 443,628 shares to create a maximum of 652,188 new
shares of Authorized Capital Il (December 31, 2005:
592,898 shares).

CONDITIONAL CAPITAL

In 2006, 2,445 shares were raised from Conditional Capi-
tal t through the exercise of the same number of options
hy employees, increasing the subscribed capital by

€ 7,335. Furthermore, 31,265 shares were raised from
Conditional Capital II through the exercise of the same
number of aptions by empioyees, increasing the sub-
scribed capital by € 93,795, and 49,351 shares were
raised from Conditional Capital 1V through the exercise
af the same number of convertible bonds by emplovees,
increasing the subscribed capital by € 148,053. Finally,




13,500 shares were raised from Conditional Capital V
threugh the exercise of the same number of options by
employees, increasing the subscribed capital by € 40,500.

In 2005, 1,400, 34,125, 59,478 and 1,875 shares were raised
from Cenditional Capital [, II, IV and V respectively. Sub-
scribed capital increased by € 4,200, € 102,375, €178,434
and € 5,625 from respective Conditional Capitals.

(On May 17, 2006, the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting author-
ized the Company to create additional shares for Condi-
tional Capital Il and V up to a maximum of 1,829,562 and
343,087 shares respectively.

On May 11, 2005, the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting
authorized the Company to create additional shares for
Conditional Capital [1I, IV and V up to a maximum of
1,602,125, 513,938 and 242,405 shares respectively.

DIVIDENDS

Dividends may only be declared and paid from the accu-
mulated retained earnings {after deduction of certain re-
serves) shuwn in the Company’s annual German statutory
accounts. Such amounts differ from the total of additional
paid-in capital and accumulated deficit as shown in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements as a re-
sult of the adjustments made to present the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with [FRS. The Compa-
ny’'s German statutory accounts showed taxable income in
2006; however, as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, they
reflected no accumulated earnings available for distribution
and the Company’s ability to pay dividends will therefore
depend upon its future earnings.

ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL

On December 31, 2006, additional paid-in capital amount-
ed to € 123,878,001 (December 31, 2005: € 96,412,849).
The total increase of roughly € 27.5 million is due to
stock-based compensation provisions in the amount of

€ 1,250,892, including the intrinsic value of convertible
bonds granted as well as € 7,997,500 (including € 32,060
issuance costs) from a capital increase against coniribu-
tion in Kind stemming from the Serotec acquisition and
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€ 15,477,143 (including costs in connection with the trans-
action of € 756,216) stemming from a capital increase on
March 29, 2006, netted by a deferred tax asset of € 284,032,
Anincrease of € 2,739,618 arose from the exercise and
conversion of options and convertible bonds in the year
2006.

In 2005, the additional paid-in capital increased by € 17.7
million resulting from stock-hased compensation provi-
sions of € 1,132,104 as well as € 15,446,069 (including
costs in connection with the transaction of € 767,068) as
a result of the capital increase on March 15, 2005, netted
by a deferred tax asset of € 283,815. A further increase
of € 1,188,299 came from the exercise and conversion

of options and convertible bonds in the year 2005.

1 5 ‘ CONVERTIBLE BONDS

At the Company's Annual Shareholders’ Meeting in July
2002, the Company was authorized to issue up to 300,000
not-interest-bearing convertible bonds with a par/nominal
value of € 1.00 each to employees and members of the
Management Board of the Company and its affiliates until
June 30, 2006. The preemptive rights of the steckholders
were excluded, On May 16, 2003, and May 11, 2005, the
Annual Shareholders’ Meeting authorized the Company

to grant an additional 150,269 shares until Aprii 30, 2010,
each. On December 9, 2004, 49,914 convertible bonds were
granted to board members and employees of MorphoSys
AG. The exercise price for the convertible bonds was € 38.40.

The convertible bonds cannot he transferred or encum-
bered, other than through inheritance/death. In the event
of inability to work, the Management Board can allow the
transfer with good cause.
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The conversion rights may only be exercised if the termi-
nation of the employment agreement with the owner of the
convertible bonds has not been declared at the time of
exercise and a mutual termination agreement has not been
entered into. In the event of nonexercise of the conversion
rights, beneficiaries are refunded the amount paid to ac-
quire the convertible bonds (i.e., € 1.00 per bond/share).

The beneficiaries may only exercise the conversion rights
after the expiration of a waiting period of cne vear after
the grant date. Each convertible bond with a nominal value
of € 1.00 can be exchanged for one share of ordinary no-
par value common stock of the Company against payment
of the exchange price. The convertible bonds could not be
exercised beyond December 31, 2006.

The exchange price for the convertible bonds issued in the
year 2004 was € 38.40, representing the average closing
price of a share in the Company in the final XETRA auc-
tion at the Frankfurt Stock Exchange during the fast five
trading days preceding the resotution of the Management
Board to issue the convertible bonds.

The conversion rights can only he exercised if the stock
exchange price on at feast one day during the lifetime of
the convertible bonds has amounted to 110% of the aver-
age stock exchange price in the final XETRA auction in
the Frankfurt Stock Exchange during the five trading days
prior to the resolution of the Management Board to issue
the convertible bonds.

Shares which are issued by virtue of the conversion rights
may participate in the profits of the Company for the first

time in the business vear for which no stockholders’ reso-
lution on the distribution of profits has been passed at the
time of the issuance.

In the year 2006, 49,351 bonds of the 2004 grant were con-
verted into shares of ordinary no-par value common stock
with the same amount by employees of the Company.

Of these, 16,193 bonds were exercised by members of the
Management Board. Further details are given in the Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements — section 23,

As of December 31, 2006, all convertible bonds granted in
2004 expired. The nominal value of € 1.00 each was paid
back to ali those concerned.

In the vear 2006, an additional grant to board members
and employees was made under the 2002 Plan, with terms
identical to the 2002 stock convertible bonds grants. On
January 15, 2006, 38,418 convertible honds were granted
to board members and employees of MorphoSys AG. The
exercise price for the convertible bonds is € 44.12, repre-
senting the market price in the final XETRA aucticn at the
Frankfurt Stock Exchange on the trading day preceding
the issuance of the convertible bonds.

A summary of the activity under the Company’s employee
incentive convertible honds plan for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2003, is represented as follows:

N
WEIGHTED~
CONVERTIBLE AVERAGE
_ . BoNDS | PRICE (€]
OQUTSTANDING
ON JANUARY 1, 2005 99,692 24.83
Refunded 10,000 il.eg
Exercised (59.478) 11.30
Forfeited {373) 38.40
_ Exp?red (300) 11:69
OUTSTANDING ON
DECEMBER 31, 2005 49,541 38.40
QUTSTANDING ON
JANUARY 1, 2006 49,541 38.40
Granted 38,418 4432
Exercised (49,351) 38.40
Forfeited (237) 44.172 i
Expired (190) 38.40
QUTSTANDING ON
DECEMBER 31, 2006 38,181 4412
—




Convertille bonds exercisable on December 31, 2006 and
2005, amounted to 38,181 and 49,541 shares respectively.
The weighted-average exercise prices of exercisable con-
vertible bonds were € 44.12 and € 38.40 on December 31,
2006 and 2005, respectively. [n the year 2005, no convert-
ible bonds had been granted.

As aresult of a court decision, 0,000 forfeited convertible
bonds in 2004 were refunded to all those concerned in
2005.

The following table presents the weighted-average price
and information about the contractuat life for significant
convertible bond groups outstanding on December 31,
2006:
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REMAINING WEIGHTED~

CONTRACTUAL AVERAGE

NUMBER LI1FE EXERCISE NUMBER OF EXERCISE

EXERGISE PRICE OUTSTANDING {IN YEARS) PRICE EXERCISABLE PRICE

€44.12 38,181 2.00 €442 0 £€0.00
38,181 0

The Company accounts for stock-hased compensation in
accordance with the provisions of IFRS 2 and IAS 32.28.
The equity portion of the bonds bas to be separated and
presented as additional paid-in capital. The equity compo-
nent is deducted from the fair value of the bonds. The re-
maining value is recognized as stock-based compensation.
The compensation expense recorded in 2606 and 2005

in connection with convertible bonds was € 535,635 and
€ 757965 respectively. The fair value of the convertible
bonds issued in 2006 was calculated using the Black-Scholes
pricing model based on the following assumptions; risk-

free interest rate of 2.84%; dividend yield of 0%; 54 % expect-
ed volatility based on historic data; and an expected life of
2.0 years. The weighted-average fair value of bonds grant-

ed during 2006 is estimated to be € 13.95 accordingly.

Valuation models require the input of highly subjective
assumptions. Because changes in the subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate,
the management does not consider that the existing mod-
els necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the
fair value of its employee convertible bonds.
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1 é | STOCK OPTIONS

1998 EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PROGRAM

Effective June 15, 1998, the Company introduced an in-
centive stock opticn plan (“1998 Plan™) which provides for
the grant of options to purchase shares of the Company’s
common stock to key employees and members of the
Company's Management Board. The 1998 Plan authorized
the grant of options to personrel for 96,075 shares of the
Company’s common stock in the form of 45,450 registered
warrants, each equal to one share of common stock, and
50,625 shares deliverable upon exercise of non-warrant
option rights. The Company reserved 35,350 common
shares plus 68,650 shares of treasury stock for stock op-
tions. All option rights granted under this {998 Plan have
a ten-year term.

Each warrant entitles the holder to recetve one share.
Upon exercise of a warrant, the exercise price, which equals
the fair value of the shares on the date of grant, is due and
payable. Warrant holders can exercise up to the full amount
of warrants six monihs after the date of grant. Warrant
hotders also have the right to sell them. The warrants or
shares obtained upon exercise vest annually on a graded
hasis aver three years.

The non-warrant option rights are granted by the Compa-
ny to the employee by way of an option agreement, For all
grants commencing after June 1998, a two-year holding
pericd is required after the date of grant, after which the
holder of non-warrant option rights can exercise up to the
amount of vested option rights.

For the years 2006 and 2005, 2,445 and 2,300 options
from the {998 Plan were exercised respectively.

1999 EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PROGRAM
Effective fuly 21, 1999, the Company amended the incen-
tive stock optior plan (1999 Plan”) authorizing the addi-
tional grant of options to employees for up to 300,250
shares, arising from conditional capital, and deliverable
upon exercise of non-warrant option rights. On October 31,
1999, a grant of 98,100 shares was made tc Company em-
ployees, the Management Board and the Supervisory Board.
The option rights are nontransferable and have a maxi-
mum life of five years. Additionally, a two-vear holding
period is required after the date of grant, after which the
holder of the option rights ¢can exercise up to the amount
of vesied option rights, on condition that the value of the
underlying stock has appreciated 10% per annum, cumu-
tatively, in the year of exercise. On October 14, 2004, the
Management Board and the Supervisory Board decided

to extend the exercise period of 54,900 options granted to
employees and the Management Board until October 31,
20089.

In July 2004, additional grants to employees were made
under the 1999 Plan with terms identical to the 1999 stock
option grants. 15,250 options were granted on July 1, 2001,
to employees of MorphoSys AG. As of July 1, 2006, the
unexercised options expired.

On September 1, 2001, the Company re-issued 94,100 op-
tions to employees under the 1999 Plan, which had heen
canceled on July 5, 2001. The re-issued options have simi-
lar characteristics and vesting provisions to the original
options granted and are identical to 1999 stock option grants.
As of September 1, 2006, the unexercised options expired.

In the year 2002, additional grants to employees were
made under the 1999 Plan with terms identical to the 1999
stock option grants. 5,500 optinng were granted on January
15, 2002, to employees of MorphoSys AG.

In the year 2003, additional grants to Manragement Board
members were made under the 1992 Plan, with terms
identical to the 1999 stock option grants. 36,000 options
were granted on July 1, 2003, to Management Beard mem-
bers of MorphoSys AG.




For the years 2006 and 2005, 31,265 and 34,125 options
from the 1999 Plan were exercised respectively.

2002 EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PROGRAM

Effective June 6, 2002, the Company amended the incen-
tive stock option plan (“2002 Plan”) authorizing the ad-
ditional grant of options to employees for up to 74,556
shares, arising from conditional capital, and deliverable
upon exercise of non-warrant optien rights. On July 9, 2002,
a grant of 7,500 shares was made to Company employees.
The terms are very similar to those of the “1999 Employee
Stock Option Program.” On May 16, 2003, May 11, 2004,
and May 11, 2005, the Annual Shareholders” Meeting
authorized the Company to grant additional 36,891, 58,816
and 74,017 shares respectively under the “2002 Employee
Stock Option Program” with identical terms.

n the year 2003, grants to employees were made under
the 2002 Plan, with terms identical to the 1999 and 2002
stock option grants. 2,500 options and 15,000 options
were granted to employees of MorphoSys AG on January
15,2003, and July 1, 2003, respectively.

On January 15, 2004, 35,000 options were granted to em-
ployees with terms identical te the 1999, 2002 and 2003
stock option grants.

In the year 2005, additional grants to Management Board
members were made under the 2002 Plan, with terms
identical to the 2002 stock option grants. 97,358 options
were granted on July 1, 2005, to Management Board mem-
bers and employees of MerphoSys.

In the year 2006, grants to employees and a member of the
Management Board were made under the 2002 Plan, with
terms identical to the 1999 and 2002 stock option grants.
40,000 options and 7,500 options were granted to employ-
ees and Management Board of MorphoSys AG on January
15, 2006, and fuly 1, 2006, respectively.

For the years 2006 and 2005, 13,500 and 1,875 cptions
from the 2002 Plan were exercised.

A summary of the activity under the Company's employee
incentive stock option plans for the years ended December
31, 2006 and 2005, is represenied as follows:

R
WEIGHTED-
AVERAGE
. SHARES PRIGE {€}
OUTSTANDING ON |
JANUARY 1, 2005 193,930 | 26.70
Refunded 21,000 | 20.80
Granted ‘ 97,358 31.35
Exercised {38,300 21.41
Forfeited {15,529) 29.38
Expired (7,000) L 217.60
QUTSTANDING ON
DECEMBER 31, 2005 251,459 23.34
OUTSTANDING ON
JANUARY 1, 2006 251,459 23.34
Granted ) ] 47§Op o A443§U
Exercised (47,210) 24.03
Forfeited (10,604) 31.35
Expired (2,100} 44,27
DUTSTANDING ON
DECEMBER 31, 2004 239,045 26.73
M

Stock opiions exercisable on December 31, 2006 and 2005,

amounted to 88,670 and 112,855 shares respectively. The
weighted-average exercise prices of exercisable stock op-
tions were € 17.83 and € 22.25 on December 31, 2006 and
20035, respectively.

As a result of a court decision, 21,000 forfeited stock op-
tions in 2004 were refunded to all those concerned in 2005,
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The following table presents the weighted-average price
and information about the contractual life for significant
option groups cutstanding on December 31, 2006:

REMAINING WEIGHTED- WEIGHTED-

CONTRACTUAL AVERAGE AVERAGE

NUMBER LIFE EXERCISE NUMBER EXERCISE

R RANGE OF EXERCISE PRICES CUTSTANDING {IN YEARS]) PRICE EXERCISABLE PRICE

€10.88- € 54.37 o 7 238.045 3.01 € 26.59 87,670 €17.36

€54.37-€59.51 1,000 0.04 € 59.51 1,000 €59.51
239,045 88,670

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation in
accordance with the provisions of IFRS 2 “Share-hased
Payment.” Compensation expense recorded in 2006 and
2005 in connection with stock options was € 707,336 and
€ 374,138 respectively. In the compensation amount re-
cognized in 2005, approximately € 247,900 was included
for re-issued options. On September [, 2001, the Company
re-issued 94,100 options to employees. In accordance with
1FRS 2 “Share-based Payment,” the re-issued options were
revalued at the date of re-issuance using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model.

The fair value of the options issued in 2006 was calculated
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model based on the
following assumptions: risk-free interest rate of 2.89 %;
dividend vield of 0%; 55% to 60 % expected volatility based
on historic data; and an expected option life of 3.0 years.
For option grants in 2005, the following assumptions were
made: risk-free interest rate of 2.16%; dividend yield of 0%;
50% expected volatility; and the same option life as in 2005,
The weighted-average fair value of options granted during
2006 and 2005 is estimated to be € 18.33 and € 11.23 re-
spectively.

Option valuation models require the input of highly subjec-
tive assumptions. Because changes in the subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate,
the management does not consider that the existing mod-
els necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the
fair value of its employee stack options.

I
]. 7' PERSONNEL EXPENSES

S —

_in000's € 2006 | 2005
Wages and Salaries 17,251 9,596
Secial Security
Contributions 1,612 1,383
Stock-based ‘

Compensation Expense 1,243 1,132

Temporary Staff {External) 22 Vi

Other {760} {(161)

TOTAL 19,368 11,952
—

The average number of employees during the vear ended
December 31, 2006, was 265 (2003 170).
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1 8 ! INCOME TAXES

The Company and its German subsidiaries MorphoSys [P
GmbH and Serotec GmbH are subject to cerporate tax,
solidarity surcharge and trade tax. Since 2001, a corporate
tax rate of 25% plus 5.5% solidarity surcharge applies.
Considering the multiplier rate (“Hebesatz”) of 300% for
municipal trade tax, the trade tax rate amounts to approxi-
matety 13.04 % of the taxable income and is deductible in
the calculation of the corporate tax. With regard to affili-
ated companies in foreign countries, income tax rates of
30% and 39 % appiy to the UK and the USA respectively.

The income tax for the current fiscal year comprises as
follows:

070

in 000's € 12/31/2006 12/31/2005
Current Tax Expense {Thereof Income Tax Expense Accounted Directly in Equity According

1015 32.35: [in 000's €] 284; 2005: 284) e oy 4o B8
Current Tax Expense for Previous Years (24) -
Deferred Tax Expense/Benefit Resulting from the
Existence or the Reversa! of Temporary Differences L 1_,(_)_09 _{?_37}_
Deferred Tax Benefit with Regard to the Recognition of DTA on Previously
Unrecognized DTA with Regard to Future Reversal of Differences Between IFRS and Tax Balance Sheet 919 917
Total Income Tax ) 72 434
TOTAL AMOUNT OF DEFERRED TAXES RESULTING
FROM ENTRIES DIRECTLY RECOGNIZED IN EQUITY (821) (321)

-/

Deferred taxes are recognized only to the extent that it is
more likely than not that the related tax benefits will be re-
alized. As of December 31, 2006, the Company recognized
deferred tax assets in the amount of € 1.2 miilion due to
husiness expectations in 2007,

The recognition of deferred tax assets on previously unrec-
ognized deferred tax assets amounted to € 0.9 million
{2005: € 0.9 miltion). The current assessment with regard
to the usability of deferred tax assets can change dependent
on the income situation of future years and may resuit in
higher or lower valuation allowances.
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The following table reconciles the statutory income tax ex-
pense to the actual income tax expense presented in the
financial statements, To calculate the statutory income tax
expense in fiscal year 2006, the combined income tax rate
of 36% (2005: 36%) was applied to income before taxes. The
tax rate applied in the reconciliation statement includes
corporate tax and solidarity surcharge, and amounts to
26.38% plus the effective trade tax rate based on the multi-
plier rate {(“Hehbesatz") of 300% for municipal trade tax,
which amounts to 9.60% taking into account that the trade
tax is deductible in the calculation of the corporate tax.

RECONCILIATION STATEMENT

in 000's € 2006 2005

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAXES 5,286 5112

Expected Tax Rate 36% 36%

EXPECTED INCOME TAX (1,903} {1,840}

TAX EFFECTS RESULTING FROM:

Deferred Income Tax Arising from the Recognition of DTA™ on Previously

Unrecognized DTA with Regard to Future Reversal of Differences Between

IFRS and Tax Balance Sheet 918 7

Non-recognition of DTA on Current Year Tax Losses 5 - T
_Fx;s_t-“tlm; Recogr_'ut:o;l_oFD_Tf\ on_ T-a;-ljaés C‘af‘rwfgrw:irds h 1,186 ~ o

Deferred Income Tax Arising from the Recognition of DTA on Previously

Unrecognized DTA on Tax Loss Carry-forwards 1,309 1,041
 Steck-based Compensation i (4a8) | (408)

}‘J(]T‘I—ti;x—;j eductible Items o I (23 5] S ““—-‘“ [55)_-

Cther Effects (86) (51)
CACTUAL INCOME TAX 742 (436)

-~

* Deferred Tax Asset

No deferred tax assets were reported for corporate tax loss
carry-forwards in the amount of € 14.5 million and German
trade tax loss carry-forwards in the amount of € 13.8 mil-
lion. The loss carry-forwards may be carried forward in-

definitely and in unlimited amounts. From 2004 onwards,

German tax law restricts the offset of taxable income against
existing tax loss carry-forwards to an amount of € 1.0 mil-
{ion plus 60% of taxable income above € 1.0 million. The
benefit from a previgusly unrecognized tax loss reduced
the current tax expense by € {.3 million in 2006. Deferred




tax assets on assets and liabilities of the German entities
were only reparted to the extent of existing deferred tax li-
abilities on assets and liabilities of the German entities. No
deferred tax asset with regard to future reversal of differ-
ences hetween IFRS and tax balance sheet in the amount
of € 2.7 million (2005: € 3.6 million) exists.

Significant components of the deferred tax assets and

liabilities are as follows:

inQQ0C’s € DTA 2006 oTa 2005 DTt 2006 DTL 2005
Intangible Assets 3,858 4,821 3,020 i 1,750
Non-recognition of DTA
on Intangible Assets o (2673 f@sy -
" Property, Plant and Equipment 41
- _ 267
o e e e e - - ;]
o o i 219 (;2_
Advanced Payments B . o ) . WHAME s - =
Be_c_gi\{g_bfs and Other As';s-etéﬁm R Vﬁﬁﬁ : - - o #75(3 o 3(1
TreasuryStock | Ty e -
_Prepaid Expenses and Deferred Charges 3 _;.... - _ -
Short-term Securi-t?es Investments ) S D i 6-79 325
h Other Acc;aa;;;;;}ovisions e 34 ) T 1 . _‘ S
Trade Accounts Payablem L R - ! i ~ 4?‘_
Bonds, thereof Convertible - - | A _ _"_1_8
Other Lisbilties ) 2y 2 - -
Tax Losges N 1,261 - - % -
R Tww | T e T am|
N

As of December 31, 2006, the Company accounted for tax-
related contingent liabilities in the amount of € 0.1 million.
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]. 9 } EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic profit per share is based on the net
profit for the year of € 6,027,934 (2003: € 4,676,369) and
the weighted-average number of shares of common stock
outstanding for the respective years (2006: 6,379,044; 2005:
5,578,865).

The weighted-average number of shares of common stock
was calculated as follows:

2006 N 2005 ~
SHARES ISSUED ON JANUARY 1 6,025,863 5,438,852
Effect of Treasury Shares Held _ ) (29,15&_2 (29,162)
l_“E[lfegtj;F—Sj;ares Issuedki;.j;r;d;r;m o _— N a L 162990 ) 2,260
Effect of Shares Issued in Feoruary 9,136 8,158
Effect of Shares Issued in March . 203,299 143.0-&_“_
Efles o Shares ssued infprl e e ~ 25| nz
Effect of Shares Issued in May 172 13
Effect of Shares Issued in june - 21
Effec-t Bf Shares Issued in Julyw ................ - o 1,34_2_ 8()_2_
Effect of Shares Issue.:;! n August ) 1,221 1,542
_ uEffgct of Shares Issued in September o - 5@ o _1(_):117_
Effect of Shares Issued in October - - ’ 2,626 758
" Effect of Shares Issued in November ) 174 1,858
) gf_f_e_cig Of Shares Issued in December o 342: B
_\_‘V?i_GH_TgD_-AVER;GE—NIJMBEROF SHAREMS O fCO_I\alMO_IiST_OCK_:___ ____ _____ o 6,379,046‘7 5,578,365
.. 0

The diluted profit per share is calculated taking into ac-
count the Company’s potential common shares from out-
standing steck options and convertible bonds.




The table below illustrates the reconciliation from basic to
diluted earnings per share (in thousands of euros, except
per share data):

079

1 2006 . 2005
Numerator: I i
Net Profit for the Year 1 ez aers
Denominator: T - . ——_~ : R o _— o
Weightéd—éverage Shares Used for Basic EPS . ¢ 6379046 5,578.865
B ‘DililrjtrivteVShiarérs Arisir?g from Stock Options 7 : 90,793 71,513
Dilutive Shares Arising from Convertible Bonds o i - -
CCromLoenommaon B Rrvvy= B vy
“Iéarning-; pe-r S.ha-re (in- €): “ ) N o E - .
L Basic . : SR IO A
0.83

Dituted

20 ' FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

In addition to the risks highlighted in the Management
Report, the Company has identified the following risks:

CURRENCY RISK

The Group accounts are administered in euros. While the
expenses of MorphoSys are predominantly paid in euros,
a significant part of the revenues depends on the current
exchange rate of the US dollar and the euro. The Company
examines the necessity of hedging foreign exchange trans-
actions te minimize currency risk during the year and
addresses this risk by employing derivative financial
instruments.

INTEREST RATE RISK
The exposure of the Group to changes in interest rates re-
lates mainly to investments in available-for-sale deht se-

curities. Changes in the general level of interest rates may

lead to an increase or decrease in the fair value of these in-
vestments. With regard to the liabilities shown in the bal-
ance sheet, the Group is currently not subject to signifi-
cant interest rate risks.

CREDIT AND LIQUIDITY RISK
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company
to concentrations of credit and liquidity risk consist prima-
rily of ¢ash, cash equivalents, marketable securities and
accounts receivable. The Company’s cash and cash equiva-
lents are principally denominated in euros and US dollars.
Marketable securities are placed in high-guality securities.
Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities are
maintained principally with two high-quality financial in-
stitutions in Germany, The Company continually monitors
its positions with, and the credit quality of, the financial
institutions, which are counterparties to its financial
instruments, and does not anticipate non-performance.

1
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It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification pro-
cedures. However, the Company’s revenues and accounts
receivable are subject to credit risk as a result of customer
concentration. One customer individually accounted for
approximately 20% of the Company’s 2006 accounts re-
ceivable balance. [n addition, three customers individually
accounted for 25%, 12% and 3% of the Company’s total
revenues in the year 2006. On December 31, 2005, one
customer accounted for 44 % of the prior year's accounts
receivable balance and three customers individually
accounted for 31%, 19% and 4% of the Company’s reve-
nues in Z2005. Based on the management’s assessment,
allowances of € 189,103 and € 41,461 in relation io the
reagent business unit were necessary as of December 31,
2006 and 2005.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying value of financial instruments such as cash
and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts
payable approximates their fair value due to the short-term
maturities of these instruments. The fair value of market-
able securities is based upon quoted market prices (see
note 4). The fair value of license payables is determined
by the effective interest method. Cenvertible bonds are
recorded at their accreted values, which approximate the
cash outlay that is due upon the note settlements.

i
2 ]. * OPERATING LEASES

The Company leases facilities and equipment on long-term
operating leases. Total rent expense amounted to € 1,672,888
and € 880,173 for the yvears ended December 31, 2006 and
2005, respectively. In January 2004, MorphaSys amended

the existing lease agreement for its facilities. The new lease

agreement will expire in September 2009. Future minimum
pavments under noncancelable operating leases, insurances
and other services are as follows:

N
in000s ¢ 2006 2005
Up to One Year 2921 1,880
Between One and
Five Years 5.263 2,954
Mcre Than
Five Years 1.22¢ -
15,413 4,834
.~/

The Company’s total expenses due to operating leases, in-
surances and other services in the years ended December
31, 2006 and 2005, totaled approximately € 2,896,961 and
€ 1,185,515 respectively.

22 r CONTINGENCIES

The management is not aware of any matters that could
give rise to any material liability to the Company that would
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial
condition or results of operations.

23 l RELATED PARTIES

The Group has related party transactions with its manage-
ment and with members of the Supervisory Board. In addi-
tion to the cash remuneration, the Company has issued
stock optiens and convertible bonds to the Management
Board and to members of the Supervisory Board.




The table below shows the shares, stock options and con-
vertible bends, as well as the changes of ownership of the
same, which were held by members of the Management
Board and the Supervisory Board during the year 2006;

SHARES

a1,/01/06 ADDITiONS FORFEITURES
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S

12/31/06

MANAGEMENT BOARD

Dr. Simon E. Moroney

113,463 - -

113,461

Dave Lemus

TOTAL

Dr. Marlies Sproll*

35 - -

113,496 - -

SUPERVISCRY BOARD

Or. Gerald I\_ﬁ_t_illfr

Prof. Dr. Jiirgen Drews - - - -
Or. Daniel Camus - B - [
Dr. Metin Colpan - - ] o - I

Prof. Dr. Andreas Plﬂckthun

59,300 - -

59,300

TOTAL

Dr. Geoffrey N. Verncn

STOCK OPTIONS

c1/01/06 ADDITIONS FORFEITURES

S RE—
12/31/06

MANAGEMENT BOARD

Or, Simen E. Morongy

83,000 - -

83,000

Dr. Marlies Sproll

TOTAL

48,000 - -

2,500 C 25000 N -

133,500 25,000 -

48,000,

SUPERVISCRY BOARD

Dr. Gerald Méller - - -

Prof. Dr. Jiirgen Drews

2,430

. Dr Danie)Camus - o N N I
o Mein Colpan o T T
" brat, e Andrens Pliektnan T T T e o e T
... Dr Geoffrey N. Vernon =~~~ - e o e
JJoTAa 280 - o o 830

* Bought by Dr. Sproll prior to election te the Management Board
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS

01/01/2006 ADDITIONS FORFEITURES SALES 12/31/2006
" MANAGEMENT BOARD
----_- P__r_, S_iT(?_n_ E Mororjg_y_'_ e 7474 5,608 - 7474 5,696
B Dave Lemus ' 4 622; 4,749 a - 6,228 4,749
" Dr. Marlies Sproli o 2am 3,800 . 2,491 3,800
TOTAL 16,193 14,248 - 16,193 14,248
.“‘AS”I"J_I_J_ERVIS_ORY_’ BOARD o T
©Or Gerald Moller —— - -
------- Prgf._ _D_(._ ] Eﬁrgen _Drews - - - o -
'~ Dr.Daniel Camus - - o - -
7 Dr Metin. 60—Ipan h - - - - -
Prof. Or. Andreas Plickthun - - - - -
N —EJr. Geoffrg_y N, Vernon L - - i T - -
ToTaL o - - . -
N/
Compensation for both the Management Board and the
Supervisory Board consisted of fixed and variable compo-
nents, Total compensation for the Supervisory Board ex-
cluding reimbursements of travel expenses amounted to
€ 259,000 in 2006 (2005: € 190,500). The tables below
show the detailed compensation for the Management
Board and the Supervisory Board:
MANAGEMENT BOARD
OTHER
FIXED VARIABLE COMPENSATORY TOTAL
COMPENSAYION COMPENSATION BEMNEFITS COMPENSATION
T S S Y
2006 2005 ! 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Dr, Simen E. Moroney 290,000 257,453 139,024 136,231 77313 66,789 506,337 ) 460.473v
Dave Lemus 204,750 184,174 104,973 102,495 90,456 106,779 409,179 393,448
b7, Varies Sprol- | eison | wiseo | wosy | - | wesw | asis | waoss | aeoss
Total 676,250 | 469,127 | 257,049 | 238726 | 223,116 180,111 | 1,156,415 | 887,964
o - —

* Joined Management Board an November i, 2005
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FIXED VARIABLE TOTAL
COMPENSATION

COMPENSATION COMPENSATION

—
R 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006
Dr. Gerald Méller 40,000 25,000 24,500 26,000 64,500
brof. r Jurgen Drews T 50000 | 18,500 | 11,000 | 14,000
Dr. Daniel Camus 13,500 16.090
r. Andreas Plickthun o 12,000 7500 )
"Or. Geoffrey N. Vernon i 715,000 " 17,000
Dr. Metin Colpan 25,000 13,500 7,500 12,500 32,500 26.,9({0_
TTotal o 170,000 | 97500 | 89,000 | 93,000 | 259,000 | 190,500
_ - _

At the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting on May 17, 2006,
phantom stocks were granted to all members of the Super-
visory Board. The Chairman of the Supervisory Board

has received 2,560 stock appreciation rights, the Deputy
Chairman 2,000 stock appreciation rights and the mem-
bers of the Supervisory Board 1,500 stock appreciation
rights each.

In 2006, MorphoSys entered into consulting agreements
with the member of the Supervisory Board Prof, D, Andreas
Plickthun and another scientist of Prof. Dr. Plickthun’s
research team at the University of Zurich, Switzerland,
ending December 2008. According to the agreements, the
consultants shall provide consulting services in the anti-
body and scaffold fields. Under this agreement, Dr. Andreas
Pliickthun may receive payments of up to € 14,000 per
year, depending on the extent to which the Company
draws on his consultancy. Additionally, MorphoSys pays

a yearly fee of SFr. 135,000 for its sponsored research agree-
ment to the University of Zurich, represented by Prof. Dr.
Andreas Pliickthun. Both agreements were approved by
the Supervisory Board plenum. No other consultancy
agreements with members of the Supervisory Board are
currently in place.

24 ' CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company issued its statement according to section 161
of the German Stock Corporation Act {Aktiengesetz). This de-
claration was published and made accessible to stockhold-

ers accordingiy on December 12, 2006.

2 5 ' RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
AGREEMENTS

The Company has a significant number of research and de-
velopment agreements relating to its discovery and devel-
opment strategy. The fellowing is a brief description of these
agreements, which have had, or may have, a significant
financial impact (in alphabetical order).

BAYER CORPORATION, USA

In December 1999, the Company announced a collaboration
with Bayer AG (“Bayer”) encompassing a research coliaho-
ration and license agreement for the application of the Com-
pany's proprietary technologies in a number of Bayer's re-
search and development programs. The coliaboration was
extended by another four years in July 2001. The agree-
ment specified four areas in which the two companies ap-
plied the Company’s technologies. The Company’s HuCAL
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(Human Combinatorial Antibody Library) technology was
used to generate fully human therapeutic antibodies against
up to ten targets provided by Baver. In additior, Bayer had
an optien to develop antibodies generated using the HuCAL
technology as in vitro diagnostics. Furthermore, FluCAL
was used to identify antibodies for use in monitoring the
progress of clinical trials with selected drugs. The fourth
and last area of application was the use of MorphoSys tech-
nologies to identify and validate new targets emerging from
Bayer's genomics program, which will be used by Bayer in
screenings for new drug candidates.

Under the terms of the agreement, Bayer made an up-front
payment to the Company upon signing the agreement, and
paid additional annuat license fees and support for re-
search and development funding at the Company. Further-
more, Baver paid exclusivity fees for using the HuCAL
technology an up to ten potential targets as well as mile-
stane fees on antibodies delivered by the Company that
met pre-agreed success criteria. Any antibody-hased prod-
ucts developed in the collaboration triggered development-
refated milestone and royalty payments by Bayer to the
Company. Over the course of the agreement, Bayer has
thus far taken two exclusive licenses on antibodies from
MarphoSys and cross-licensed its HKB-11 cell line as a
countermove to the installation of HuCAL GOLD at selected
Baver sites.

In December 2005, the collaboration was extended by an-
other five vears, with a termination option after the first
collaboration year. Under the terms of the extended agree-
ment, MorphoSys granted Bayer access to its proprietary
HuCAL GOLD antibody library for use in Bayer's drug dis-
covery programs at its research site in West Haven, Con-
necticut, USA. Additicnally, the two parties undertook to
commence up to 25 new therapeutic antibody programs
should the collaboration run its full course.

After Bayer AG’s acquisition of Schering AG, the collabora-
tions with the two companies will be consolidated under
the existing contract with Schering AG. The contract with
Bayer AG was terminated as of December 7, 20086, accord-

ingly.

BOEHRINGER INGELHEIM GMBH, GERMANY
In February 2003, MorphoSys and Boghringer [ngelheim
GmbH {“Boehringer Ingelheim”) entered into a therapeutic
antibody collaboration and cross-license agreements.
Under the terms of the agreements, MorphoSys recetved
an exclusive, werldwide license to patents owned or con-
trolled by Boehringer [ngelheim to develop, make and sell
therapeutic and diagnostic antibodies targeting the [CAM-
1 molecute. Boehringer Ingelheim has received exclusive
commercial licenses to therapeutic antibodies against two
undisclosed targets, which MorphoSys generated utilizing
its HuCAL GOLD antibody technology.

In November 2003, Boehringer ingetheim exercised its
first optien fer the development of a therapeutic antibody.
As a result, MorphoSys developed a therapeutic antibody
for Boghringer Ingelheim against an undisclosed target
motecule for the treatment of inflammatory diseases such
as asthma and rheumatoid arthritis.

In August 2004, Boehringer Ingelheim exercised its sec-
ond option for the development of a therapeutic antibody.
Both parties initiated a new program for the development
of a therapeutic antibody against an undisclosed target
molecule invoived in cardiovascular diseases. Boehringer
[ngelheim witl be responsible for the preclinical and clini-
cal development and subsequent marketing of any resuit-
ant preducts, on which MorphoSys could earn milestones
and royalties.




in March 2005, Boehringer Ingelheim and MorphoSys
signed an expansion of their existing cooperation involv-
ing bath research and therapeutic applications. Boehringer
Ingelheim has acquired an option to receive several ex-
clusive licenses on new therapeutic antibody programs.
Additionally, Boehringer Ingelheim will obtain access to
MorphoSys's HuCAL GOLD library for research purposes
at a number of the firm’s research facilities. The HuCAL
GOLD library was installed at Boehringer Ingetheim’s re-
search site in Vienna, Austria. MorphoSys received a tech-
nology access fee, and will receive annual license fees
and optionat R&D funding aver the five-year collaboration
term. For therapeutic antihodies emerging from the collab-
oration, Boehringer Ingelheim will pay milestone fees

and royalties to MorphoSys.

In November 2006, Boehringer Ingetheim exercised an op-
tion for optimizing a therapeutic HuCAL antibody and ac-
quired an exclusive license for this project. The antibody
identified by Boehringer Ingelheim at its research site in
Vienna is directed against a cancer disease-related target
molecule.

BRISTOL-MYERS SQUIBB, USA

In August 1898, the Company and the Bristol-Myers Squibb
Company (“Bristol-Myers Squibb,” formerly the “DuPont
Pharmaceuticals Company”} entered into a cooperation
agreement under which Bristol-Myers Squibb acquired

a non exclusive license to MorphoSys's HuCAL antibedy
library technology. Under the agreement, Bristol-Myers
Squibb applied the HuCAL technology in its pharmaceu-
ticai discovery programs for target characterization and
validation. In July 2000, the parties extended this research

license and agreed to collaborate in developing a system
for fully automated high-throughput antibody generation,
called AutoCAL. The amended agreement provided for
Bristol-Myers Squibb’s continued use of the HUCAL libraries
and for the instaltation of AutoCAL at Bristol-Myers Squibb'’s

facilities in Wilmington, Delaware, USA. Milestones were
achieved in 2000 and 2001 with the successful generation
of research antibodies against target molecules provided
by Bristol-Myers Squibb using AutoCAL.

In January 2005, MorphoSys announced a further expan-
sion of the existing license agreement to grant Bristol-Myers
Squibb access to the HuCAL GOLD library.

CENTOCOR, ING., USA

In December 2000, the Company signed a subscription
and license agreement with Centocor, Inc. (“Centocor”).
The intention of the cotlaboration is to facilitate the re-
search, discovery and development of novel antibody ther-
apeutics. Centocor has access to the HuCAL technology at
various sites; in addition, the Company generates antibod-
ies against Centocor targets. Under the agreement, the
Company will receive committed technology license fees,
exclusivity fees, research and development funding, and
milestone payments. Centocor will be responsible for the
development and marketing of any potential drugs. Sheuld
Centocor market any drugs as a result of the collaboration,
the Company will receive royalty payments. The original
contract had a duration of five years and was to end in
December 2005. [n December 2004, hoth parties extended
their agreement until the end of 2007. The extension agree-
ment provides for increased levels of research and devel-
opment funding and an up-front payment by Centocor to
MorphoSys.
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ELI LILLY & COMPANY, USA
In September 2005, MorphoSys and Eli Lilly & Company
(“Lilly™) signed a cross-license agreement for the use of their
recombinant protein technologies. The agreement was
part of a settlement to resolve the patent litigation with
Applied Molecular Evolution {AME). Under the agreement,
MaorphoSys received a license under the Kauffman patent
estate to generate and screen certain recombinant peptide
and protein libraries and to commercialize any resulting
products. The agreement also provided Lilly access to the
MorphoSys HuCAL GOLD technology for Litly's internal
research and development programs, For any therapeutic
antibodies Lilly develops under the agreement, it will pay
MorphoSys exclusive license fees, success fees, milestone
payments and royalties on end products. The settlement
agreement covers MorphoSys’s and its partners’ past, pres-
ent and future use and cemmercialization of all versions of
its HuCAL libraries as well as its TRIM technology. The
agreement also gives Lilly access under agreed terms to
Antibedies by Design, MorphoSys's business unit focusing
on the development of custom monoclonal antibadies for
nontherapeutic purposes.

F. HOFFMANN-LA ROCHE, SWITZERLAND

In September 2000, MorphoSys entered into a collabora-
tion and license agreement with F. Hoffmann-La Roche
{“Reche”) for the development of hurman therapeutic anti-
bodies against a Roche target. Under the terms of the
agreement, the Company received a license payment, and
will receive development-related milestone payments and
royalties on marketed products. The Company applied its
HuCAL technology to the generation and eptimization of
antibodies for the Roche target. Rache is responsible for
the clinical development, regulatory approval and world-
wide marketing of any resulting products. In January 2006,

MorphoSys announced that Roche had filed all necessary
apptications to commence a European phase 1 clinical trial
with the HuCAL antibedy to ireat Alzhsimer’s disease.
The applications filing to commence clinical trials triggered
a clinical milestone payment from Roche to MorphoSys.

Expanding on the relationship in Alzhgimer’s disease,
MorphoSys and Rache announced a new collaboration to
develop new therapeutic antibodies in oncology in March
20046. Roche will elect two new target molecules against
which MorphoSys will generate antibodies using its HuCAL
GOLD technology.

GPC BIOTECH AG, GERMANY

[ April 1996, the Company signed a coilaboration and li-
cense agreement with GPC Biotech AG {(“CPC"). The objec-
tive of the collaboration was to utilize the Company’s tech-
nelogies to generate human antibodies against GPC targets
and te deliver such antibody products to GPC for confirma-
tion of achievement of predefined success criteria. The Com-
pany received up-front research and development funding/
exclusivity payments as well as the potential for milestone
and royalty payments from GPC. in January 2005, GPC
started a phase 1 clinical trial with a fully human cancer
antibody (tD0YC3) generated by MorphoSys, evaluating
the antibody in patients with relapsed ar refractory B-cell
lymphomas such as Hodgkin’s and non-Hodgkin’s tympho-
mas. The commencement of clinical trials triggered a cli-
nical milestone payment from GPC Biotech to MorphoSys.
The European Commission granted orphan drug des-
ignation for the antibody in the treatment of Hedgkin's
lymphortna in mid-2005 and for the treatment of chronic
lymphocytic leukemia {CLL) and multiple myeloma {MM)
in early 2006.




IMMUNOGEN, USA

In September 2000, the Company signed a collaboration and
license agreement with ImmunoGen, USA {*ImmunoGen”).
The parties collaborate in the discovery and development
of human monoclonal antibodies against certain specified
targets. ImmunoGen will be responsible for developing
one or more antibodies generated by MorphoSys into a
marketable product. Under the agreement, the Company
received a license payment as well as development-related
milestone payments and royalties on marketed products.

The existing agreement between the two companies was
expanded in June 2001. The new agreement provided for a
research license from the Company to ImmunoGen for
MorphoSys’s HuCaL antibody library technology for the
generation of research antibodies for use in ImmunoGen’s
functional genomics programs, in order to help validate
new targets. The expanded agreement had a duration of
four years.

In June 2005, the existing license agreement for Immuno-
Gen's internal target research programs was extended for
another year. The research collaboration was successfully
concluded at the end of May 2006.

MERCK & CO., INC., USA

In December 2005, MorphoSys signed a five-year license
agreement with Merck & Co., Inc. (“Merck™). Under the terms
of the agreement, MorphoSys grants Merck access to its
proprietary technologies HUCAL GOLD and AutoCAL for
use in Merck's drug discovery programs. Furthermore,the
agreement enables Merck to develop HuCAL-derived thera-
peutic antibodies in a range of indications. MorphoSys
received an up-front payment and will receive annual
user fees and R&D funding. MorphoSys is also eligible to
receive license and milestone payments on projects in
clinical development as well as royalties on any end prod-
ucts emerging from the collaboration.
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NOVARTIS AG, SWITZERLAND
In May 2004, MorphoSys AG and Novartis AG (“Novartis”)
announced a collaboration to discover and develop anti-
hody-based biopharmaceuticals as therapeutic agents in
order to address unmet medical needs across a variety of
diseases. MorphoSys brings validated and robust human
antibody technologies (HuCAL GOLD) to Novartis's new
strategic research directions, building a collaboration that
will identify and develop novel therapeutic agents rapidly
and efficiently. MorphoSys scientists will work directly
with Novartis scientists across the global sites of the
Novartis Institutes for BioMedical Research (NIBR), includ-
ing the new world headquarters in Cambridge, Massachu-
setts, USA. The MorphoSys HuCAL GOLD technology has
become an integral part of Novartis's drug discovery and
development efforts. During the three-vear term of the
initial agreement, Novartis funded internal research at
MorphoSys. The Company generated and eptimized HuCAL
GOLD antibodies against targets identified by Novartis.

In addition, Novartis has access to the current MorphoSys
HuCAL GOLD library at two of its sites. Additionally, under
the terms of this collaboration, Novartis was MorphoSys’s
first partner to receive a nonexclusive option on internal-
ization of the entire MorphoSys technology platform,

which would trigger an additional payment by Nevartis to
MorphoSys. Novartis made an approximately € 9 million
investment in MorphoSys by purchasing non-interest-bearing
convertible bonds of MorphoSys. In addition, MorphoSys
was to receive over USS 30 million in committed R&D
funding and technology license fees over the first three
years. MorphoSys also stands to receive technology license
payments, research and developmental milestones as well
as royalties on marketed antibody products.




[n jure 2006, MorphoSys announced an expansion of its
collaboration with Novartis. The collaboration will now go
through May 20i1.

Within the framework of the extended agreement, Novartis
committed to an increase in the number of new therapeu-
tic antibody projects annually - resulting in increased
levels of Novartis's funding for research and development
at MorphoSys. In addition, Novartis has the option to re-
ceive access to the MorphoSys HuCAL GOLD library at an
additional research site and has access to a certain HuCAL
affinity optimization technology at the HuCAL library in-
stallation sites at Novartis for optimization of non-therapeuric
antibedies. Furthermore, the agreement also provides for
increased annual license fees, with commercial license
fees, research and developmental milestones, and royalties
on marketed antibody products remaining unchanged.

NOVOPLANT GMBH, GERMANY

In June 2004, MorphoSys AG and Novoplant GmbH (“Novo-
plant”) announced the signing of a collaboration for the
development of therapeutic antibodies in animal heaith
applications. Under the three-year agreerment, Novoplant
received a license for the development and commerciali-
zation of therapeutic antibodies as feed components for
use in veterinary medicine. Novoplant paid a technology
access fee to MorphoSys in addition to annual license fees.
Additionally, MorphoSys receives milestone fees and royal-
ties for the suhsequent development and marketing of any
resulting products. In the context of the cooperation, Novo-
plant uses MorphoSys’s HuCAL GOLD technology to gener-
ate antibodies against viruses, parasites and pathogenic
microorganisms. The addition of such MorphoSys antibodies

to animal feed stock may offer protection against infec-
tigus diseases in the respective animal’s gastrointestinal
tract. MorphoSys retains all rights in any human thera-
peutics or diagnostics emerging from the collaboration.

PFIZER, INC., USA

In December 2003, the Company announced a collabora-
tion and license agreement with Pfizer, Inc. ("Pfizer”).

The intention of the collabaoration is to facilitate the re-
search, discovery and development of novel antibody thera-
peutics. The Company applies its HuCAL GOLD technology
to the generation and optimization of antibodies for multi-
ple Plizer targets. Under the agreement, the Company re-
ceived a committed up-front fee and research support, and
will, depending on collaboration progress, receive mile-
stone payments and royalties. Pfizer is responsible for the
clinical development, regulatory approval and worldwide
marketing of any resulting products.

In December 2006, MorphoSys announced an early expan-
sion of its collahoration with Pfizer until the end of 2011,
Under the extended agreement, Pfizer has the option to
begin new therapeutic antibody projects with MorphoSys
resulting in an increased level of programs to be performed
within the collaboration. The extension triggered a one-off
payment from Pfizer to MorphoSys.




SCHERING AG, GERMANY
In December 2001, the Company and Schering AG {"Scher-
ing") formed a sirategic alliance for the develepment of
antibody therapeutics and in vive diagnaostics. As part of
the agreement, Schering and the Company combined their
resources over the three-year collaboration term to exclusively
pursie a minimum of five therapeutic and several in vive
diagnastic projects. Furthermore, the two partners jointly
undertook research to identify additional potential thera-
peutic and diagnostic targets emerging from Schering’s
genomics program.

Additienally, in February 2002, Schering purchased 357,880
shares at an average price of € 66.79 per share as part of
their strategic commitment to the partnership.

In December 2004, both parties extended the collaboration
agreement by at least two more vears until the end of 2006,
with the option of a further extension period of one year
beyond this time frame. The contract with the former
Schering AG was extended for an additional year until the
end of 2007. Cver the lifetime of the agreement, the Com-
pany will receive license fees, milestone payments and
royalties on any end products emerging from the collabo-
ration.

SHIONOGI & CO., LTD., JAPAN
In September 2005, MorphoSys signed a three-year license
agreement with Shionogi & Co., Ltd., (“Shionogi”) on the use
of MorphoSys’s HuCAL technelogy. Under the terms of the
agreement, MorphoSys grants Shionogi access to its HuCAL
GOLD antibody library for use in Shionogi's pharmaceuti-
cal drug discovery programs. In return, MorphoSys has
received an up-front payment and stands to receive annu-
al user fees during the life span of the agreement.

XOMA TECHNOLOGY LTD., UK/XOMA IRELAND LTD., IRELAND

In February 2002, MorphoSys and XOMA Technology Ltd./
XOMA Treland Ltd. (*XOMA”) concluded mutual license
agreements for their antibody technologies. Under the
terms of these agreements, MorphoSys received a license
for its own and its collaboration partners’ past and future
use of XOMA antibody expression technology for the de-
velopment of antibody products in connection with the
phage display-based HuCAL antibody library {the “XOMA
license”). [n return, XOMA received a five-year license
from MorphoSys to use the MorphoSys HuCAL GOLD anti-
body library, which XOMA will use for its own target mol-
ecule identification and research programs. Moreaver, an
option is included for the development of therapeutic anti-
hodies. MorphoSys acquired the XOMA license by issuing
363,466 shares arising from a capital increase in 2003,



— (090

ROLL-FORWARD OF FIXED ASSETS (APPENDIX 1)

ACQUISITION AND PRODUCTION COST

_in € G1 /0172006 ADDITIONS DISPOSALS " VAH!A:{::Z_" 12 /3172006
L. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Land and Buildings 2.247.115 1,486,857 696,805 (13,777) 3,023,390 ]
Office and Laboratory Equipment 5,333,716 2,322,048 257,396 127 7398495
Furniture and Fixtures T igenat 13367 264784 (1.063) 2,219,251
9,462,562 4,422,272 1,218,985 (24,713) 12,641,136
II.INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Patents 3,794,561 40,094 - - 3.844,555 i
License Rignts ) 12,140,398 404,657 4,090 - 12740965 _
Software 1391635 276,645 - - 1668580 u
Know-how and Customer List 2,312,685 4104660 - (28,005) 6,478,449
" Goodwil 7 T iz 22782613 e o ._
T 23,776,628 27,008,878 4090 53,724 51,735,140 -

* Including reclasses (o current assets held for sale of € 0.7 millicn

CHART OF THE CONSQOLIDATED ENTITY AS GF DECEMBER 31, 2006 (APPENDIX 2)

NAME AND CORPORATE SEAT OF THE COMPANY

EXCHANGE RATE
ON BEC. 12/31
ONME UNIT OF eura
IN FOREIGM

CURRENGY CURRENCY

COMPANY CONSOLIDATED (APART FROM PARENT COMPANY)

TIIIIII

) Morprlg_Sys U.S.A, Inc., Chariotte, North Carolina, USA ] Uss ) 1.3134 ._ N
MorphaSys IP GmbH, Munich, Germany € -

 MorphoSys UK Ltd., Poole, UK - - B £ 06709 B
MorphoSys US, Inc., Brentwood, New Hampshire, USA Uss 1.3134

"Serotec Ltd., Oxford, UK fincluding its affiliates) £ 0.6709 [}

* Before elimination of intercompany transactions

P
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MET BOOK VALUES

. 01/01/2006 DEPRECIATION WRITE-OFF* DISPOSALS VARlArzé: 12 /3172006 o 1Z2/31/2006 12/31/2005‘
‘m 10,310 66.433 56,640 32,697 (387) 100,299 2,923,091 2,236,805
3,782,739 900,462 50,622 247,357 813 4,505,279 2893216 1,650,977
:—.l“- T Tgrne50 228447 204203 264788 030 1,141,446 1,077805 . 909,081
4,765,699 1,204,342 320,465 544,838 1,356 5,747,024 6,894,112 4,696,863
[ 1]
I || 1,433,556 460,845 - - - 1894401 1,950,154 2,361,005
3,683,307 1,285,374 ) 4,090 R 4964591 7.776,374 8,457,091
T Tz wmisas e T T T e T maens 131,506
T T emne siesrr < T T ass 1648060 4834280 1485567
B - R - I S A7
__.I 7 7208110 2,694,682 32,792 4,090 465 9,927,919 41,807,221 16,572,518
[ ]
n
[ 1]
m
m
TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL PROFIT/
m EQUEITY IN ASSETS IN LIABILITIES REVENUE N (LOSS) IN
SHARE OF FOREIGN FOREIGN 1N FOREIGN FOREIGN FOREIGN
_m CAPITAL % CLHRRENCY CURRENCY " N CURRENCY ™ CURRENCY™ CURRENCY"
- 2000 38523 32088 - (19020
100 25,000 17,028,440 18,566,486 4,364,180 -
N ] i 200 1417.648 494,765 1,595,660 73,546
T h0 oo sasza2 422367 1033957 (115225)
n T C 100 6,289,319 4144545 0,370,845  (279,623)
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Auditor’s Report

We have issued the following unqualified auditor’s repert:

“AUDITOR’S REPORT

We have audited the consolidated financial statements prepared by the MorphoSys AG, Martins-
ried, -comprising the balance sheets, the statements of operations, the statements of cash

flows, the statemnents of changes in stockholders’ equity and the notes to the consolidated finan-
cial statements-- together with the group management report for the business year from Janu-
ary | to December 31, 2006, The preparation of the consolidated financial statements and the
group management report in accordance with [FRSs, as adopted by the EU, and the additional
requirements of German commercial law pursuant to Section 315a Para. 1 HGB are the respon-
sibility of the parent company’s management. Our responsibility is tc express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements and on the group management report based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with Section 317
HGB [Handelsgesetzbuch; “German Commercial Code”] and German generally accepted stan-
dards for the audit of financial statements promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftspriifer
(IDW). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit such that misstatements
materially affecting the presentation of the net assets, financial position and results of opera-
tions in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the applicable financial report-
ing framework and in the group management report are detected with reasonahble assurance.
Knowledge of the business activities and the economic and legal environment of the Group and
expectations as to possible misstatements are taken into account in the determination of audit
procedures. The effectiveness of the accounting-related internal control system and the evidence
supporting the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements and the group management
report are examined primarily on a test basis within the framework of the audit. The audit
includes assessing the annual financial statements of those entities included in consolidation,
the determination of entities to be included in consolidation, the accounting and consolidation
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentaticn of the consolidated financial statements and group management report. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion,
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Our audit has not led to any reservations.

In our opinion, based on the findings of cur audit, the consolidated financial statements comply
with IFRSs, as adopted by the EU, the additional requirements of German commercial law pursu-
ant to Section 315a Para. 1 HGB and give a true and fair view of the net assets, financial position
and results of operations of the Group in accordance with these requirements. The group man-
agement report is consistent with the consolidated financial statements and as a whole provides
a suitable view of the Group's position and sujtably presents the opportunities and risks of
future development.”

Munich, February 6, 2007
KPMG Deutsche Treuhand-Gesellschaft

Aktiengesellschaft
Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft

Maurer Rahn
Wirtschaftspriifer Wirtschaftspriifer
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Press Release L ":‘;.z L
Martinsried/Munich, February 28, 2007

MorphoSys AG Reports Financial Results for Fiscal Year 2006

MorphoSys AG (FSE: MOR; Prime Standard Segment; TecDAX) today announced its financial
results according to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) for the three-months’
period and fiscal year ending December 31, 2006. The Company achieved Group revenues of
EUR 53.0 million, a positive cash flow from operations of EUR 16.3 million, and a net profit of
EUR 6.0 million,

Highlights of the Year 2006:

* Therapeutic segment: Conclusion of three new multi-year partnerships with Schering-
Plough, OncoMed Pharmaceuticals as well as Japanese pharmaceutical group Daiichi
Sankyo; Extension and substantial enlargement of three existing collaborations including
Pfizer, Roche and Novartis

* Partnered pipeline: Substantial growth of partnered pipeline to 43 therapeutic antibody
projects (up from 29 at the beginning of 2006); European Phase 1 clinical trials with HUCAL-
derived antibody from partnership with Roche to treat Alzheimer's disease are ongoing.
First preliminary clinical data of HuCAL-derived antibody from partnership with GPC Biotech
suggest that antibody is well tolerated, hints of anti-tumor activity were observed

e Proprietary pipeline: Development of lead compound MOR103 and MOR202 remain on
track; MorphoSys confirms plan to submit all necessary information to regulatory authorities
and ethics committees to start clinical trials for MOR103 for rheumatoid arthritis in H2 2007;
For MOR202, a formal pre-clinical candidate was selected and MorphoSys intends to
continue the pre-clinical development

» Research segment: Consolidation of Research Antibody segment through acquisition of
the Serotec Group in January 2006 and successful integration

e Successful private placement of 384,338 shares raising gross proceeds of approx.
EUR 17.1 million

* Presentation of new RapMAT antibody technology as one visible result of the ongoing
technology development process

“Antibodies comprise the largest class of biotherapeutic agents and one of the most important
life sciences research tools,” stated Dr. Simon Moroney, Chief Executive Officer of MorphoSys
AG. ‘“In 2006, MorphoSys cemented its position as one of the pre-eminent players in the
antibody space. We expect increasing demand for antibodies and antibody-related capabilities
in both the therapeutic and research segments to continue to drive MorphoSys's growth in the
years ahead.”

"Both operationally and financially speaking, 2006 represented another banner year for
MorphoSys,” commented Dave Lemus, Chief Financial Officer of MorphoSys AG. “Looking
ahead, we believe we are ideally positioned to capitalize on the expanding and lucrative trade
for both antibody therapeutics and research reagents.”
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Financial Review for the fiscal year 2006 (IFRS):

Under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), revenues for the year 2006
amounted to EUR 53.0 million (2005: EUR 33.5 million), an increase of 58 % over the prior
year. Revenues arising from the Therapeutic Antibodies segment accounted for 65 % or
EUR 34.7 million of total revenues. The AbD segment, formerly the Research Antibodies
segment, generated 35 % or EUR 18.3 million of total revenues. MorphoSys's revenue growth
was driven primarily by revenues arising from extended deals, success-based payments from
existing collaborations, as well as the inclusion of Serotec Group revenues, contributing 23 % of
total revenues.

Total operating expenses including stock-based compensation for the full year 2006 were
EUR 46.9 million {2005: EUR 27.3 million), representing an increase of 72 % over the prior
year. Cost of goods sold (COGS), arising solely from the AbD segment, amounted to EUR 8.0
million (2005: EUR 2.5 miliion), and largely reflected the inclusion of the Serotec Group in
MorphoSys Group accounts. Research and development expenses rose by EUR 3.5 million to
EUR 17.5 million in 2006 (2005: EUR 14.0 million). The increase in R&D expenses mainly
resulted from higher expenses for product and technology development amounting to € 3.0
million. Sales, general and administrative expenses increased by EUR 10.6 million to EUR 21.4
million (2005: EUR 10.8 million). The increase mainly derived from the inclusion of the Serotec
Group in the amount of EUR 8.3 million, higher S,G&A personnel costs at MorphoSys AG in
Munich, and integration costs associated with acquired companies. Non-cash charges related
to stock-based compensation amounted to EUR 1.2 million (2005: EUR 1.1 million). Non-
operating expenses, including taxes, amounted in 2006 to EUR 0.1 million (2005: Non-operating
expenses of EUR 1.5 million). As a result of the forecast for taxable income in 2007, a deferred
tax asset on tax loss carry-forwards has been capitalized which reduced tax expenses by € 1.2
million.,

For the full year 2006 MorphoSys posted a net profit of EUR 6.0 million compared to a net profit
of EUR 4.7 million in the same period of the previous year. The resulting diluted earnings per
share for the year 2006 amounted to EUR 0.93 (2005: earnings per share of EUR 0.83).

On December 31, 2006, the Company had EUR 66.0 million in cash, cash equivalents, and
marketable securities, compared to the EUR 53.6 million balance as of December 31, 2005.
The increased cash item mainly derived from higher cash inflows as a result of the expanded
operational activity and from a capital increase successfully executed in March 2006. The
number of issued shares at December 31, 2006 was 6,715,322 shares, compared to 6,025,863
at December 31, 2005.

Fourth Quarter of 2006 (IFRS):

In the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company generated revenues of EUR 14.0 million, compared
to EUR 9.7 million in the same quarter of 2005, an increase of 44 %. Total operating expenses
amounted to EUR 15.7 million, compared to EUR 7.3 million in the same quarter of 2005. The
increase of operating expenses was mainly due to higher product and technology development
cost in addition to restructuring costs in the UK, in the fourth quarter of 2006. The resulting net
loss for the fourth quarter 2006 was EUR 0.1 million, compared to a net profit of EUR 0.8 million
in the fourth quarter of 2005,
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Financial Outlook for 2007

MorphoSys is projecting total revenues of EUR 80 to 65 million, and profit from operations for
the MorphoSys Group of EUR 7 to 10 millicn for the fiscal year 2007. Of total Group revenues,
the Therapeutic Antibodies segment will provide approximately two thirds of Group revenues,
the AbD segment one third. The Company will provide detailed guidance in today's press
conference and conference call.

MorphoSys will hold a public conference call today at 10:30 CET to present the Annual
Financial Results 2006 and report on current developments.

Dial-in number for the Conference Call (listen-only):
Germany: +49 (0)89 9982 99912

For U.K. residents: +44 (0)20 7806 1958

Please dial in 10 minutes before the beginning of the conference.

In addition, MorphoSys offers participants the opportunity to follow the presentation through a
simultaneous slide presentation online at hitp://www.morphosys.com. Approximately two hours
after the press conference, a slide-synchronized audio replay of the conference will be available
on http://www.morphosys.com.

About MorphoSys:
MorphoSys develops and applies innovative technologies for the production of synthetic antibodies, which accelerate

drug discovery and target characterization. Founded in 1992, the Company's proprietary Human Combinatorial
Antibody Library (HuCAL) technology is used by researchers worldwide for human antibody generation. The
Company currently has licensing agreements andfor research collaborations with Bayer-Schering (Germany/USA),
Boehringer Ingelheim (Gemmany), Bristol-Myers Squibb (USA), Centocor Inc. (USA), Daiichi Sankyo & Co., Litd.
{Japan), GPC Biotech AG (Germany), Hoffmann-La Roche AG (Switzerland), ImmunoGen Inc. (USA), Merck & Co.,
Inc. (USA), Novartis AG (Switzerland), Novoplant GmbH (Germany), OncoMed Phamaceuticals, Ing. (USA), Pfizer
Inc. (USA), ProChon Biotech Ltd. (Israel), Schering-Plough (USA), Shionogi & Co., Ltd. (Japan), Xoma Ltd. (USA)
and others. Additionally, MorphoSys is active in the antibody research market through its AbD Serotec business unit.
The business unit was founded in 2003 for the purpose of exploiting the MorphoSys non-therapeutic antibody
markets. MorphoSys' activities in the research antibody segment were significantly strengthened through the
acquisition of the U.K. and U.S.-based Bipgenesis Group in January 2005 and Serotec Group in 2008. For further
information please visit the corporate website at: http://www.morphosys.comy.

Statements included in this press release which are not historical in nature are intended to be, and are hereby
identified as, ‘forward-looking statements” for purposes of the safe harbour provided by Section 21E of the Securitias
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 Forward-looking
statements may be identified by words including “anticipates”, “believes”, “intends”, “estimates”, “expects” and similar
expressions. The company cautions readers that forward-looking statements, including without fimitation those
relating to the company’s future operations and business prospects, are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that
could cause actual resulls to differ matenally from those indicated in the forward-looking statements. Factors that may
affect future operations and business prospects include, but are not limited to, clinical and scientific results and
davelopments concerning corporate collaborations and the company’s proprietary rights and other factors described

in the prospectus relating fo the company’s recent public offering.

HUCAL® and HUCAL GOLD® are registered trademarks of MorphoSys AG, RapMAT™ is a trademark of MorphoSys
AG.
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For more information, please contact MorphoSys AG:

Dave Lemus

Chief Financial Officer

Tel: +49 (0) 89/ 899 27439
Fax: +49 (0) 89/ 899 27-5439

investors@morphosys.com
Dr. Claudia Gutjahr-Léser

Mario Brkulj

Senior Director Corporate Communications Manager Public Relations
Tel: +49 {0) 89 / 899 27-454
Fax: +49 (0) 89 / 899 27-5454

Tel: +49 (0) 89/ 899 27-122
Fax: +49 (0) 89 / 899 27-5122

gutiahr-loeser@morphosys.com

brkuli@morphosys.com

Consolidated Statement of Operations (IFRS)

Q4 2006

in €, except share data (unaudited) 2006 2005
Revenues 14,001,749 53,031,172 33,486,843

Cost of Goods Sold 2,505,671 7,978,641 2,543,465

Research & Development Expenses 5,743,784 17,458,347 14,029,312

Sales, General & Administrative Expenses 7,406,765 21,418,416 10,753,725
Total Operating Expenses 15,660,220 46,855,404 27,326,502
Profit/{Loss) from Operations (1,658,471) 6,175,768 6,160,341
Interest Income 17,480 60,241 108,101
Interest Expense 27,588 143,197 277,228
Other Expenses, Net 396,833 806,924 879,259
Profit/{Loss) before Taxes {2,065,423) 5,285,888 5,111,955
Income Tax/{Income Tax Expense) 1,943,933 742,046 (435,586)
NET PROFIT/(LOSS) {121,490) 6,027,934 4,676,369
Basic Net Profit per Share 0.94 0.84
Diluted Net Profit per Share 0.93 0.83
Shares Used in Computing Basic Net Profit per Share 6,379,046 5,578,865
Shares Used in Computing Diluted Net Profit per Share 6,469,839 5,650,378
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Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet (IFRS)

in€ 12/31/12006 12/31/2005
Current Asseots
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Available-for-Sale Financial Assets 66,025,872 53,559,570
Accounts Receivable and Other Receivables 3,810,120 3,370,845
Inventories, Net 3,511,405 485,713
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets 2,096,991 1,058,461
Assets Classified as Held for Sale 664,108 -
~ Total Currant Assets 76,108,496 58,474,689
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net 6,894,112 4,656,863
Patents, Net 1,850,154 2,361,005
Licenses, Net 7,776,374 8,457,091
Software, Net 243,813 131,506
Know-how & Customer Lists, Net 4,834,289 1,485,567
Goodwill 27,002,591 4,137,349
Deferred Tax Asset 1,455,723 -
Other Assets 1,577,570 372,574
™ Total Non-Current Assets 51,734,626 21,641,955
Total Assats 127,843,122 80,116,644
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 10,455,799 4,321,591
Current Portion of Licenses Payable 126,382 1,012,233
Provisions and Tax Liabilities 1,082,042 978,719
Current Portion of Deferred Revenue 6,648,107 4,735,208
™ Total Curront Liabilities 18,312,330 11,087,751
Non-Curront Llabilities
Provisions, Net of Current Portion 62,763 62,763
Deferred Revenue, Net of Current Partion 6,216,007 3,687,199
Convertible Bonds Due to Related Parties 38,371 50,214
Deferred Tax Liability 3,162,332 1,260,946
"Total Non-Current Liabllities 8,470,473 5,061,122
™ Total Stockholders' Equity 100,061,319 64,007,771
Total Liabllitios and Stockholders Equity 127,843,122 80,116,644

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows (IFRS)

in€ 2006 2005
Net Profit 6,027,934 4,676,369
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 16,348,727 4,445,643
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (36,178,635) (31,398,354)
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 18,552,910 18,397,783
Effect of Exchange Rate Differences on Cash 25,289 40,759
(Decrease} in Cash and Cash Equivalents (251,709) (8,514,169)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Period 4,017,029 12,531,198
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Period 3,765,320 4,017,029
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Press Release ST
Martinsried/Munich, Germany, January 25, 2007

MorphoSys Expands Japanese Alliance with GeneFrontier

MorphoSys AG (Frankfurt Stock Exchange: MOR; Prime Standard Segment, TecDAX) today
announced an expansion of its existing marketing alliance with its Tokyo-based partner
GeneFrontier Corporation. The expanded collaboration now also covers the generation of
HuCAL-derived fully human antibodies for protecme research and target validation together with
a renowned Japanese research organization as well as commercialization of resulting antibody
products. Under the terms of the agreement, GeneFrontier will utilize MorphoSys's HuCAL
GOLD antibody library to generate novel HuCAL antibodies against targets provided by its
collaboration partner. For this purpose, the HuCAL antibody technology was installed at
GeneFrontier's research laboratories within a research facility in Tokyo. GeneFrontier will
provide MorphoSys with financial compensation for access to the HuCAL technology.
GeneFrontier and MorphoSys agreed to share commercialization rights for all antibodies
discovered in this project against targets identified and validated by GeneFrontier with its
partner. Further financial details of the agreement were not disclosed.

“GeneFrontier, as a local Japanese partner, is uniquely placed to target specific areas of the life
science market, which would be not accessible for a foreign company. The logic behind this
deal is in many respects the same as the research collaborations we have with other leading
institutes, such as the recently announced alliance with The Burnham Institute,” commented Dr.
Simon Moroney, Chief Executive Officer of MorphoSys AG. “Collaborating with GeneFrontier as
a local partner in Japan has paid off for MorphoSys. In the past 16 months, they have helped us
secure significant contracts with the pharmaceutical companies Daiichi Sankyo and Shionogi,
as well as new customers and research relationships for AbD Serotec.”

“We are excited at this opportunity to expand our alliance with MorphoSys to apply the HuCAL
technology to a number of our ongoing research programs with our partner,” commented
Makoto Ogasawara, President & CEO of GeneFrontier Corporation. “This state-of-the-art
technology will significantly accelerate the target validation process, and lead to the rapid
discovery of novel therapeutics.”

About MorphoSys:
MorphoSys develops and applies innovative technologies for the production of synthetic antibodies, which accelerate

drug discovery and target characterization. Founded in 1992, the Company's proprietary Human Combinatorial
Antibody Library {HuCAL) technology is used by researchers worldwide for human amntibody generation. The
Campany currently has licensing agreements and/or research collaborations with Bayer (LISA), Boehringer Ingelheim
(Germany), Bristol-Myers Squibb (USA), Centocor Inc. {USA), Daiichi Sankyo & Co., Ltd. (Japan), GPC Biotech AG
(Germany), Hoffmann-La Roche AG (Switzerand), ImmunoGen Ing. (USA), Merck & Co., Inc. (USA), Novartis AG
(Switzerland), Novoplant GmbH (Germany), OncoMed Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (USA), Pfizer Inc. (USA), ProChon
Biotech Ltd. (Israel), Schering AG (Gemnany), Schering-Plough {USA), Shionogi & Co., Ltd. {(Japan}, Xoma Ltd.
(USA) and others. Additionally, MorphoSys is active in the antibody research market through its AbD Serotec




business unit. The business unit was founded in 2003 for the purpose of exploiting the MorphoSys non-therapeutic
antibody markets. MorphoSys' activities in the research antibody segment were significantly strengthened through
the acquisition of the U.K. and U.5.-based Biogenesis Group in January 2005 and Serotec Group in 2006. For
further information please visit the corporate website at: http:/iwww.morphosys.com/.

About GeneFrontier.

GeneFrontier was established in 2003 as an innovative solution provider for genomic drug research & development.
GeneFrontier has the strength and wealth of experience of its three founding shareholders; the business creation
expertise and broad network of ITX CORPORATION, the biotechnology and extensive clinical {aboratory experience
of BML and the bioinformatics technology and know-how of INFOCOM. GeneFrontier's expertise lies in the fast
introduction of state-of-the-art technologies into the Japanese biotech research and drug-discovery markets, ie.
menoclonal antibodies, microarrays, and many other innovative technologies from all over the world. GeneFrontier
also develops its own drug pipeline utilizing these technologies in order to contribute to the improvement of Quality of
Life. For further information please visit the corporate website at: http://www.genefrantier.com/

Statementis included in this press release which are not historical in nature are intended to be, and are hereby
identified as, “forward-looking staterments” for purposes of the safe harbour provided by Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1985, Forward-looking
statements may be identified by words including “anticipates”. “believes”, “intends”, “estimates”, “expects” and similar
expressions. The company caulions readers that forward-looking statements, including without limitation those
relating to the company’s fulure operations and business prospects, are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that
could cause actual resulls to differ matenaily from those indicated in the forward-locking statements. Factors that
may affect future operations and business prospects inciuds, but are not limited to, clinical and scientific results and
developments concerning corporate collaborations and the company’s proprietary rights and other factors described

in the prospectus relating to the company’s recent public offering.

HUCAL® and HUCAL GOLD® are registered trademarks of MorphoSys AG

For more information, please contact MorphoSys AG:

Dave Lemus

Chief Financial Officer

Phone: +49 (0) 89 / 899 27-439
Fax: +49 (0) 89/ 899 27-5439
investors@morphosys.com

Dr. Claudia Gutjahr-Léser Mario Brkulj

Senior Director Corporate Communications Manager Public Relations
Phone: +49 (0) 89 / 899 27-122 Phone : +49 (0) 89 / 899 27-454
Fax: +49 (0) 89/ 899 27-5122 Fax: +49 (0) 89 / 899 27-5454

gutiahr-loeser@morphosys.com brkuli@morphosys.com
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Press Release
Martinsried/Munich, Germany, and Oxford, U.X., January 22, 2007

MorphoSys Inaugurates New Facilities in Oxford, U.K.
U.K. Minister of Science Malcolm Wicks presides over opening ceremonies

MorphoSys AG (Frankfurt: MOR; Prime Standard Segment, TecDAX), a leading German-based
biotechnology company, announced today that it has opened new U.K. headquarters in
Kidlington, North Oxford. The 2,200 square meter facility acts as the new U.K. headquarters for
the MorphoSys Group of companies situated in the U.K. Today's official opening ceremony was
performed by U.K. Minister of State for Science and Innovation, Malcolm Wicks. Dr. Simon
Moroney, Chief Executive Officer of MorpheSys Group, also attended along with Chief Financial
Officer Dave Lemus, Head of AbD Serotec Dieter Lingelbach, Tim Bernard, Head of Sales of
AbD Serotec and the Managing Director of AbD Serctec James Bernard.

MorphoSys's business unit, AbD Serotec delivers high-quality antibodies to the research
market. Successful acquisitions of U.K. and U.S.-based antibody suppliers with strong catalog
and industrial antibody production business have significantly strengthened and broadened
MorphoSys's position in the research antibody market. In April 2006, on the back of its Q1
results, the Company announced plans to consolidate its U.K. operations at a single site in
Oxford. The operation is now complete and the Company looks forward to growing its research
antibody business from this new base in the U.K.

U.K. Minister of State for Science and Innovation, Malcolm Wicks, said: “The UK. has a
deserved reputation for excellence in biotechnology. This new facility demonstrates further that
the UK. is an attractive |location for European businesses to invest. | welcome this investment
by the MorphoSys Group, which links two of Europe’s most successful biotech clusters, and
wish the company well for its plans to grow its business in the U.K. and abroad.”

“The Oxford region provides us with a strong infrastructure and a high concentration of
excellent academic researchers and innovative biotechnology companies - both potential
customers for our technology,” commented Dr. Simon Moroney, Chief Executive Officer of
MorphoSys AG. “Since the U.K. represents one of the top three markets for our research
antibody segment operating under the AbD Serotec brand, a strong presence in this region will
remain a key element of our future strategy.”




The official opening ceremony of the new AbD Serotec facility at Endeavour House will take
place today, January 22, 2007, at 10.30 a.m. in Langford Lane, Kidlington, Oxford. Please arrive
in good time to be seated before the official start of the ceremony.

Key note speakers at today’s official opening ceremony are Malcolm Wicks, Minister of State
for Science and Innovation and Dr. Simon Moroney, Chief Executive Officer of MorphoSys
Group.

About MorphoSys:

MomphoSys develops and applies innovative technologies for the production of synthetic antibodies, which accelerate
drug discovery and target characterization. Founded in 1992, the Company's proprietary Human Combinatorial
Antibody Library (HUCAL®) technology is used by researchers worldwide for human antibody generation. The
Company currently has licensing agreements and/for research collaborations with Bayer (Berkeley, California/lUSA),
Boehringer Ingelheim (Ingelheim, Germany), Bristol-Myers Squibb (New Jersey/USA), Centocor Inc. (Malvern,
Pennsylvania/lUSA), Daiichi Sankyo & Co., Ltd. (Tokyc/Japan), GPC Biotech AG (Munich/Germany), Hoffmann-La
Roche AG (Basel/Switzerland}, ImmunoGen Inc. (Cambridge, Massachusetts/USA), Merck & Co., Inc. (Whitehouse
Station, New Jersey/USA}, Novartis AG (Basel, Switzerland), Novoplant GmbH (Gatersleben, Germany), OncoMed
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (Mountain View, USA), Pfizer Inc. (Delaware/USA), ProChon Biotech Ltd. (Rehovot/israel),
Schering AG (Berin/Germany), Schering-Plough (Palpo Alg/USA), Shionogi & Co., Ltd. (Osaka/Japan), Xoma Ltd.
(Berkeley, California/lUSA) and others. Additionally, MorphoSys is active in the antibody research market through its
AbD Serotec business unit. The business unit was founded in 2003 for the purpase of exploiting the MorphoSys non-
therapeutic antibody markets. MorphoSys' activities in the research antibody segment were significantly strengthened
through the acquisition of the U.K. and U.S.-based Biogenesis Group in January 2005 and Serotec Group in 2006.
For further information please visit the corporate website at: http //www morphosys.com/.

Statements included in this press release which are not historical in nature are intended to be, and are hereby
identified as, “forward-looking statements” for purposes of the safe harbour provided by Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-fooking
statements may be identified by words inciuding “anticipates”, *belisves”, “inlends”, “estimates”, “expects” and simifar
expressions. The company cautions readers thal forward-looking statements, inciuding without limitation those
relating to the company’s fufure operations and business prospects, are subject lo certain risks and uncertainties that
could cause actual results to differ materially from those indicated in the forward-looking statements. Factors that
may affect future operalions and business prospects include, but are not limited to, clinical and scientific results and
developments concerning corporate collaborations and the company's proprietary rights and other factors described
in the prospectus relating to the company's recent public offering.

HuCAL® and HUCAL GOLD® are registered trademarks of MorphoSys AG

For more information, please contact MorphoSys AG:

Dave Lemus

Chief Financial Officer

Phone: +49 (0) 89 / 899 27-439
Fax: +49 (0) 89/ 895 27-5439
investors@morphosys.com

Dr. Claudia Gutjahr-Loser Mario Brkulj

Senior Director Corporate Communications Manager Public Relations
Phone: +49 (0) 89 /899 27-122 Phone : +49 ((0) 89 / 899 27-454
Fax: +49 (0) 89 /899 27-5122 Fax: +49 (0) 89 /899 27-5454

gutiahr-loeser@morphosys.com brkuli@morphosys.com
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Year End 2006: Press Conference and Analyst Meeting

' Frankfurt, February 28, 2007
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Safe Harbour

This presentation includes forward-looking statements.
Actual results could differ maierially from those included in the forward-locking statements
due to various risk factors and uncertainties including changes in business, economic

competitive conditions, regulatory reforms, ioreign exchange rate fluctuations and the
availability of financing.
These and other risks and uncertainties are detailed in the Company’s Prospectus.
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Questions & Answers
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8 Revenue growth of 58% to € 53 million
B Enter new partnerships and expand existing alliances

W Develop pipeline
* Second HuCAL antibody starts clinical trials: Roche starts - -
phase 1 trial for Alzheimer’s disease
» GPC Biotech reports positive first clinical data for 1D09C3
* Strong partnered pipeline growth: 43 programs by end of 2006
* Focused proprietary development on MOR103 & MOR202

B Technology Development:
= New RapMAT technology provides improvement for antibody
generation

B Strengthen Research Antibody division
» Acquisition of Serotec Group takes MorphoSys into global top
20 research antibody suppliers
= MorphaSys leads technological transformation
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Therapeutic Antibodies: ﬂumﬂgl}nﬂmguﬂg

A Market Hotter Than Ever

O Acquisitions prove importance of antibodies to big pharma
2005 2006
Roche/Glycart _ -

Pfizer/Bioren ; s

Amgen/Abgenix

Merck/GlycoFi, Abmaxis ..

Pfizer/Rinat ]
AstraZeneca/CAT ®

Novartis/NeuTec ' S
: : >
ﬁ,‘\n

<>

Genentech/Tanox

GSK/Domantis

O Tysabri returns to market for treatment of multiple sclercsis
O Lucentis makes successful debut — 20 marketed therapeutic antibodies
O Sales of therapeutic antibodies pass US$ 15 billion

phoSys AG | February 2007 @ MorphaSys AG Page &




Recent Deal Flow — Existing Partnerships

morphosys

Increased number of therapeutic antibody projects

* Additional license fees & FTE support
» Committed to 2011

1/3 of Novartis pre-clinical biologics pipeline

Early expansion until end of 2011
Extension doubles potential deal volume

IND for Alzheimer's antibody
March 2006: Two new programs in oncology

Bayer-Schering collaboration was
consolidated under the Schering contract

Schering extended contract till end of 2007

Discussions ongoing

[ |
Iy NovarTs
]
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a
Roched> ™
]
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B [ ]
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phaSys AQ Compamny

| Fbruacy 2007

© UorphaSys AG Page t

Deal Flow 2006 — Three New Partnerships

morphosys

‘ ) ® Up to five year HuCAL GOLD license
o & Second Top10 pharma partner in Japan
Dauchl-Sankyo & Volume exceeds 2005 deal with Shionogi
Scherng P B Up to five year license agreement
¢ B Up to 10 therapeutic programs
ﬁ 8 Two year license agreement; option for
O therapeutic antibodies
OncoMed B Unigue approach in cancer therapy largeting
T cancer stem cells
MorphoBya AG Gonpany | Fobrumry 2007
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Partnered HUCAL Therapeutic Antibody inorphosys
Pipeline — Growth and Maturing

i {Drug development

i Praclinica) " Clinical developmant
! ———
' Phase 1 Phasa 2 Phase 3

| I
Multiple Myeloma {(GPC Biotech)
Alzheimer's Disease {Roche)
\ |
14 Compounds

27 Compounds

)

= Currently 43 active, partnered
therapautic antibody programs

» Year-end 2006 goal of 38 active,
partnered programs out-performed

» Oncaagy

B A PATRTTACH
2 Cardovasciter

3G

4 irbachous Censen

* Macuos el

Roche’s HuCAL-based Alzheimer lllﬂl'llhﬂsus
. [ ]
Antibody

B Trial |: Randomized, double-blind, multiple ascending dose study
* In patients
« Target sample size is <100 individuals

& Trial II: Randomized, double-blind, single dose study
= |n patients
* Target sample size is <100 individuals

8 Conducted in clinical centers in Denmark, Nethertands, Sweden
and United Kingdom




First HUCAL Antibody in Man — lllﬂl:llhﬂSlls
GPC Biotech’s 1D09C3

B Ongoing Phase 1 trial at three European sites

B Preliminary clinical phase 1data indicates
» 1D09C3 well tolerated within patients
« First hints of anti-tumor activity

B GPC expects final results in mid 2007
B GPC intends to move into Phase 2 testing thereafter
® Orphan Drug Status in CLL, MM, and Hodgkin's lymphoma

Marph: AG Comgpany Pr | February 2067 ©MorphoSys AG Page 11

Year-End 2006 Illlll:pllllsus

Press Conference and Analyst Meeting

: Highlights 2006 MOR 1 03 g
: Operational Review

- Therapeutic Antibodies
- Proprietary Programs MOR202

- Technology Development

- AbD Segment Proceed as

Financial Review 2006

Financial Outiook 2007 Planned

QOutlook 2007

Questions & Answers




“The $100 Million IND” - Biotech’s nionphosys
Increased Leverage with Big Pharma

B Recent deals show that pharma is prepared to value an IND-
stage drug at $100 million

. Upfront payment. - } Milestanes:, .

Roche - Actelion USD 75m Up to USD 555m ~ \
Roche - Plexxikon Uso 40m USD 150 - 550m i . ! ‘
Roche - Intermune USD 60m USD 150 - 470m :
Medimmune - Infinity usD 70m Up to USD 430m
Biogen - UCB USD 30m Up to USD 170m
Novartis - SGX USD 25m Up to USD 500m

E average - | UsD som Up to USD 450m

W Investment in proprietary drugs to maximize pipeline value

AG Company | Fabruary 2007 © MorphoSys AG Page 13

MOR103 on Track to H2 2007 IND inorphosys

8 Rheumatolegists now accept biological drugs for RA, but
desperately need new alternatives:

= RA patients adequately treated: Under 25%
* Non-responders to anti-TNFs: 30%
= Non-responders after 2 years on anti-TNF: 50%

» Long-term safety issues with anti-TNFs

B HuCAL antibody vs. undisclosed target for rheumnatoid
arthritis (RA)
= Very high affinity and expression: CoGS advantage
« Potential in other inflammatory indications

B Milestones:
= H2 2006: Manufacturing agreement with Crucell/DSM M
= H2 2007: Filing for phase | clinical trial a ‘

AG Company Pr | February 2007 © MorphoSys AG Page 14




Proprietary Cancer Program:
MOR202

morphosys

O HuCAL antibodies against CD38
* Initial indication multiple mysloma
= Potential in other blood-borne cancers
* Promising data from SCID mouse model
* Mechanism is ADCC plus effector cell independent

O High unmet clinical need

O Next MOR202 milestone
= End of 20086: Lead candidate selected

» Continue pre-clinical development in 2007
- Define therapeutic window
- Define affective dose level
- Stability study

Al Company | Februsey 2007
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Technology Development: RapMAT IIIUI:Fhﬂsus
Increases Affinity & Diversity

selection process
» Shortens timelines for about 30% of Ax programs
= Time savings can amount to up to three months

B Increases affinity of selected HUCAL-based antibodies early in the O

B Increases variety of hinders

Standard Project:

16
COM &S0n

AG Company | Fabruary 2807

O MorphaSys AG Page 1T
Technology Development: RapMAT lllﬂl:llllUSlIS
Increases Affinity & Diversity (I1)
100000} W Antigen: B galactosidase
- ffinity improvement comparing
‘ Median N " A \
3 10000 4 ™ the best Fabs: 37 fold
B ; . B Best affinity: 5 pM
= [ 5 R
= B High diversity
=4 w000 —%— ¢ .
o o W A fast track generation of
=) 5 hd o therapeutic or research antibodies
i = L Sl with high affinities
2 IEE —3
10- Sesene®
.
1 T T
Standard RapMAT ™
AG Company Pr [ February 2007

& MorphaSys AG Page 13




Year-End 2006 lllﬂl:Fhﬂsus

Press Conference and Analyst Meeling

:: L::Z(:':i:i::a! Review AbD SCTOteC

- Therapeutic Antibodies

- Proprietary Programs Among Top 20

- Technology Development

- AbD Segment Supp]iers

. Financial Review 2006
: Financial Qutlock 2007
. Outlook 2007

;. Questions & Answers

Global MorphoSys Group Sites llll]l:llllﬂSlls

| Raleigh, NC and Brentwood, NH I l Qxford, UK I | Hamar, Norway |

Disseldort, Germany | Martinsried, Germany

AG Company | February 2007 © MorphoSys AG Page20

10




AbD Serotec — Highlights 2006 llllll:phllsus

B [ntegration successfully completed
B Revenue target of € 18 million hit
m Commercial relationships
* Chemicon — marketing
* Thermo Fisher — technology/marketing
* Chimera Biotec — technology/marketing
» Kasuza Institute, Japan — supplier to proteomics project
* USAMRID - sole source supplier for biodetense project
@ Discovery relationships
» The Bumham Institute — discovery collaboration

= GeneFrontier/\Japanese research institute — discovery
collaboration

AG Gompany | Februsry 2007 © UorphoSys AG Page 21

Year-End 2006
ear-Enc ||||]|:Phﬂsus

Press Conference and Analyst Meeting

Introduction
Operational Review S trO n g

: Financial Review 2006

Financial Qutlcok 2007 Re V e nu e S
Outlock 2007 GrOWth and

Questions & Answers

Sustainable
Profit

11



Financial Review: Highlights 2006 |||ﬂ|:|lhﬂ$l|s

@ Strong top-line overall growth of 58 %
= Qrganic growth of 22 %

Net Profit of € 6.0 million

Acquisition of Serotec Group strengthened AbD segment ' j

B Cash Item of € 66.0 million
= Private placement in March 2006
« Strong Operating Cash Flow of € 16.3 million

MorphoSys recognized in STEP Award, category ,,Finance”

AG Company | Febtuaty 2007 © MorphoSys AG Pogn 21

Revenue Breakdown 2006 |||ll|:||h03|.|s

In € millions 2005 Change

Group Revenues 53.0 335 58 %
Group Revenues at Constant Currency 52.0 33.8 -
Segment Therapeutic Antibodies 34.7 29.1 19 %
Licensing and R&D Funding 272 222 23 %
Milestone Payments 7.5 6.9 9%

Segment AbD

Revenues Excluding Serotec

| February 2007




Revenues (Group): Geographic Split |||ﬂ|:|l|'|[|3||3

® Revenue split 2006 In %
= Europe and Asia: 62%
» North America: 38%

8 Eurcpe and Asia become
increasingly important

® Revenue split by segments mirror
Company structure

® North America
w Europe and Asia

MoephoSys AG Company Prassntation | Februsey 2007 © MorphaSys AG Fage 28

Revenues Therapeutic Antibodies Segment: |||ﬂ|:||hﬂ$l|s
Performance-Based Payments

B Performance-basad Payments In € mitons
* Increasing number of
performance-based payments

* Increase of clinical milestones
expected over the coming years

B Funded Research and Paid License 20 4
Fees

v Several multi-year partnerships

committad ® Fuxdad Researcty

» Already 2/3 of TAB revenues for Paid License Fees
2007 committed I .
= Success-based
9 Payments
2008 2005 2004

ys AG Company | February 200t © MorphaSys AG Page 26
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Operating Expenses (Group)

|nnqphusus

In € milions 2005 Change
Cost of Goods Sold 8.0 25 220%
Research and Development Expenses 17.5 14.0 25%
Sales, General & Administrative Expenses 21.4 10.8 98%

Total Operating Expenses 46.9 27.3 72%

B Increase in COGS axpenses because of inclusion of Serotec Group and depreciation

R&D expenses include € 3 million of product and technology expenses

Increase in S,G&A expenses because of inclusion of Serotec Group in the amount of

€ 8.3 million, integration costs associated with acquired companies and higher S,G&A

cost at the headquaners

B Stock-based compensation expenses of € 1.2 million are embedded in COGS, R&D and

S,G&A expenses

PhoSys AG Company ion | February 2007

& UomphoSys Al Page 27

Results by Segment

|nnqphusus

Revenues 34.7 291
Operating Expenses 18.1 14.3
Segment Result 16.6 14.8
e Bl -
Revenues 18.3 4.3
COGS 8.0 25
Gross profit 103 1.8
Operating Expensas 13.7 4.7
Segment Result (3.49) (2.9)
poSys AG Company Pr | Febiuary 2007

% Therapeutic
Antibodies

> Research
Antibodies

)

© WorphaSys AG Page 28
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AbD Segment:
Cash Flow & Restructuring Cost

morphosys

i € s f 2005
Segment Net Loss (3.9) 3.1)
+ Amortization 1.0 0.2 _ -
+ Impairment - 0.5 -
+ Depreciation 0.9 0.3
+ Stock-based Compensation 0.2 -
J. Capex 1.9 0.1
Segment Cash Flow (3.2) (2.2)
Restructuring Cost 1.7 -
Operational Cash Flow {1.5} (2.2}

| Fabruary 2007

© MorphaSys AG Page 23

Sites Consolidation & Streamlining of
Group Corporate Structure

B New U.K. Headquarters in Oxford
» Serotac's strong tradition in the Oxford area

8 Poole site will be sold
B |egal entity: MorphoSys UK Ltd.

New U.S. Site in Ralaigh, Technology Triangle
Additional sales force in New Hampshire

Legal entity: MorphoSys US, Ing,

Corporate Structure to be further streamlined in 2007
= Increase efficacy, lower costs




New Group Corporate Structure |||ﬂ|:|l||03l|3

MorphoSys AG

T T

\

r
[MnrphoSys USA Inc] Poole 'T_':;“ Estate J {MorphnSys P Gmbﬂ [MorphoSys UK Lid. ]
(NC, USA) {Pools, UKY (Germany} (Oxtord, LK)

r
:em?ngg;y?g {in [M""P““SYS us '"C'} MorphoSys AbD }
Liquidation) (NC, USA} GmbH (Germany)

Oxtord Biomarketing
L1d. {in Liquidation)

m Divesliture of equipment in Poole (former Bicgenesis site in UK), Renting of Poole site
W ntegration of sites compieted

B Country headquarters in Oxford (UK} and Raleigh, NC (USA)

B Sales offices in Gemany (Dusseldorf), Norway, and in the US (Brentwood)

AG Company Pr | Fabewary 2007 O MorphoSys AG Page 31

Non-Operating Items and Taxes (Group) lllﬂl:llhﬂsus

it € millions. m 2005

Profit from Operations 6.2 6.2
Interest Income 0.1 0.1
Interest Expense 0.1 0.3
Other Expenses, Nat 0.8 0.9

Profit Before Taxes 5.3 5.1
Income Tax Benefit/ (Income Tax Expense) 0.7 (0.4)

Net Profit 6.0 4.7

Earnings per Share (diluted) in EUR 0.93 0.83

B EBIT: € 5.4 million (2005: € 5.3 million)
B EBITDA: € 10.3 million (2005: € 8.8 million)

- Diftarameas dus ts tounding

AQ Company | Fabrumy 2007 © Uarphosiys AG Pagea2




Capital Expenditure by Segments

Illlll:lll'lllSlls

In € miions E 200GHNNN 2005
Therapeutic Antibodies Segment 21 0.5
AbD Segment 1.9 0.1

Total: 4.0 0.6

MorphoSys AG Company Presentalion | February 2007

© MorphoSys AG Peya 33

Consolidated Balance Sheet (Group):

|||n|:||nns||s

Assets
In € miiong -E!E: ::- 123112005
Current Assats

Cash, Cash Equivalents &

Availatie for Sale Financial Assels s6.0 95
Accounts Receivable ar 3.3
Other Recaivables 0.1 0.1
Imventories. Nel 15 0.5
Prepaid Expenses & Other Current Assels 2.1 1.1
Asse15 Classified as Held for Sale o7
Total Current Assets 761 58.5"
Non-current Assets
Propedy. Plan and Equipment, Net 6.9 47
Patents, Nal 2.0 24
Licenses, Net 7.8 8.5
Software, Net 02 a1
Know-how and Customer Lists, Nat 4.8 15
Goodwill 27.0 4.1
Deferted Tax Asset 15 B
Cther Assels 1.6 04
Total Non-current Assets. 517 216"
Total Aszets 127.8 80.1

* Diffarancas dun 10 tounding
hoSys AG Gompany { Fehruary 2007

© UorphoSys AG Page 34
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Consolidated Balance Sheets (Group): |||ll|':|lhﬂ$|.|s
Liabilities

In € millions 12312005

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable 10.5 4.3
Current Porticn of Licenses Payable 0.1 1.0
Provisions and Tax Liabilities 11 10
Current Postion of Deferred Revenues 6.6 47
Total Current Liabilities 18.3 1.0
Non-current Liabilitias
Provisions, Net of Current Portion 0.1 0.1
Deferred Revenue, Net of Current Portion 6.2 37
Convertible Bonds Due to Related Parties 0.1 0.1
Daferred Tax Liability 32 1.3
Total Non-current Liabilities 9.5° 5.1
Total Stockholders’ Equity 100.1 64.0
Total Liabilities & Stockholders’ Equity 127.8* 80.1
* Daffwramtd s dusb lo rodmding
AG Company | Fabeuary 1oa?

Share [ssuances 2006

Total Shares Issued December 31, 2005 6,025,863

Capital Increase against Contribution in Kind:

Serotec Acquisition 208,560

Private Placement (March 2006) 384,338

Share Issuance for Employees and
Management (Exercise of Stock Options and 96,561
Convertible Bonds)

Total Shares issued December 31, 2006 6,715,322

AG Company | Fatorysy 2007 @ Marphebys AG Pagn 38




Shareholder Structure

iorphosys

/ / \ | Institutional Shareholders
: Novartis

u AstraZeneca
@ Management & Supervisory Boards

1 Retail & Others

Number of Shares Issued at December 31, 2006 6,715,322
B Novartis ~7 %
Aslra Zeneca ~6%
Free float - 87 %
@ Institutional Sharehelders {roughly doubled during 2006) - 40 %
Retail & Others ~ 44 %
8 Management & Supervisory Boards ~3%
Prodys AG Company | February 3007 © HorphoSys AG Frage 37
Employees |||U|:|lh|]8l|3
2006 2005
Total Employees 279 172

Geographic Split

Germany 183 145
UK 78 23
USA 18 4

Split by Segments

Employees of the Therapeutic Segment 158 129
Employees of the AbD Segment 121 43
¥4 AG Company | Fabruary 2007
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Year-End 2006 nonphosys

Press Conference and Analyst Meeting

Introduction M h
Operational Review Orp O S y S -

Financial Review 2006

Financial Outlook 2007 SUCCGSSfUI
23:::::”25027Answef5 Perfo rmance
to Continue

Financial Outlook 2007 |||l]l:|llll18l|s

in € millions ‘ 2007E*

e

Total Group Revenues 60 - 65 -
r"
Therapeutic Antibody Segment 23 of total Group \/«3 T
revenues ) S

- !
Research Antibody Segment 1/3 of total Group '

ravenues ' I
Operating Profit 7-10 | '
Operaling Profit includes: l, J
Investment in Product Development Approx. 5 -
Investment in Technology Development Approx. 1

B Revenues of the Therapeutic Antibodies segment include
success-based payments of approx. € 10 million

® ABD target EBIT margin: 5 - 10%

- Estimated numbers

AQ Company | Fabrusy 7007 O MorphaSys AG Page 40




Year-Bnd 2006 nmn hosys
Press Conlfsrenss and Anailys: Mesting i

@ Cremtsmtatan MomphoSys =
ot — Criticall Mass

4 Jrinancial[Qutlook

& Achieved

6 W@ Lestionsla¥Answers]

Partnerships Hit Critical Mass ﬂﬂﬂﬂllﬂ:p[ims&u%

O Therapeutic partnerships today may result in...

@ I;:):'r HeafthCare ® Boehringer C:o ,Ein”m

—

D2ichi-Sankyo

8
IMVINOGEN, INC. Aps ¢ MERCK ¢ Novartis 0:95«1

e BB PROCHON ob stamgPoup . . .
~ N e T Y iguate e s -~ ’,
~. . ~ - ’ -
.
< el
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\\ Y LY 4 ’, r
~ ~ ~ e - rd
~ A Y -~ L4 rd ’
~ ~ ~ ra ’ rl
~ ~ ~ b’ L 4
4 4 4 o o

9 Marketed HUCAL Drugs

AG Company Pr ion | February 2007 © UorghoSys AG Paga 4t
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Partnered Programs: Today & Tomorrow |||ﬂ|:||||ll$lls

! | n ]
2 Programs in Phase 1

i
l

14 in Pre-clinic

27 in Research

| [
7 Programs in 2007
| |

40 Programs 2008-2011
] I I |

UMBER OF HUCAL PRGRAMS FROM ONGOING PARTNERSHIPS = 90

PhoSys AG Company | Fabruary 2007 © MorphaSys AG Page &3

Developmental Success Probabilities |||ﬂ|:ilh03l|s

Target to Antibody
Antibody Candidate
Candidate to Phase 1

Success
| Probability [ 80% w L 37.5% ] [_ 30% |

B Source: MorphoSys internal statistics and Tufts University
assumptions

Phase 1

1o Market

B Tufts University studies Drug Development via dedicated center
since 30 years

AQ Company | February 2007 © MorphaSyy AG Page 44
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Partnered Programs: Expected Output

norphosys

Mid-Term:
Yield.

2 Prorams in Phase 1 )

N
yo

14 in Pre-clinic
on market

5 HuCAL drugs

27 in Research ; -

[

Long-Term
- Yield!

| |
7 Programs in 2007 ]
! |

}

4 HuCAL drugs
on market

40 Programs 2008-2011 —
| | | |L

E-‘l TOTAL HuCAL DRUGS REACHING MARKET FROM ONGOING PARTNERSHIPS = G

AG Company | Fubrumry 2007

@ UorphoSys AG Prge 45

MorphoSys Core Technology HuCAL:
How We’re Exploiting It

IIII]I:PllllSlIS

<A ' Drug Targets

—_———————

Technology

e ———e

¥ AG Company | Fubruary 2007

b
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Strategic Research Alliance |||ﬂ|:|l||ﬂ$||s
— The Burnham Institute

m | everaging HuCAL as a research tool in return for access to targsts from the best
research institutions worldwide

B Bumham consistently ranks among the top 20 organizations for the impact of its research
publications, invented the ELISA

® Responsible for five FDA-approved therapies, additicnal 9 clinical candidates

MorphoSys gets... The Research Institute gets ...

E » AbD Serotec products * Accelerated access to HuCAL
- Validated targets antibodies against new targets

L . . to speed up research
Rights for commercial use in

both areas

B MorphoSys is actively pursuing additional research alliances to maximize the
uptake of our technology in medical research

AG Company | Fabruaey 2007 & MorphoSys AG Page 47

Key Factors for Future Growth lllﬂl:Phﬂsus

B Both business segment have reached critical mass
* Therapeutic pipeline today secures financial strength and
flexibility for the future
= AbD Serotac set to position itself among world leading suppliers |
of research reagents

B Improving technology to enable generation of even better antibody-
based substances even faster

B Proving that HuCAL antibodies are not only effective in pra-clinical
assays but also in the clinic

B Leveraging our proprietary technology in the research space to
source novel targets

B MorphoSys can become an indispensable partner to the
pharmaceutical and research communities

AG Company | February 2007 © MorphaSys AG Page 48
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Goals 2007 ||lll|:|l|'|ﬂ$||8

Revenua € 60 - 65 million, split 2/3 therapsutics: 1/3 research
products

W Operating profit € 7 = 10 million

Therapeutic Segment AbD Serotec

| MOR103 IND B Over 20% revenue growth
| 1-3 partner INDs B Profitable
B Parinered therapeutic B New marketing alliance
programs reach 50 B8 Increase uptake of HUCAL
B New / expanded in research community
partnerships
an Py | Februmry o0t © WorphaSys AG Pago 4%

Q & A Session lllnl:phnsus

We are happy to
answer your
questions now.

Brantwood, NH

AG Company | Fadeusmy 2007 © WorphaSys AG Page 50
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morphosys

Thank You For Participating!

www.morphosys.com

HuCAL® and HuCAL GOLD® are ragistared trademarks of MorphoSys AG, RapMAT™ is a trademark of MorphoSys AG
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